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Sky is a valued part of everyday life in more than 10 million
homes We entertain, excite and inspire customers with a
great choice of high-quality television in high defintion We
make technology simple and put viewers in control We
connect people to each other and to the world with our
breadband and phone services

Because we never forget that Sky 1s a choice, we put
customers first and work hard to earn their trust We
make our products affordable so millions can join in
And we back 1t all up with a commitment to exceptional
customer service

Seeing the bigger picture I1s part and parcel of the way
we do business That's why we're committed to doing
the nght thing and playing our part in the communities
where we live and work

We strive to be the best for our customers and our
people, and to make a positive contribution to life in the
UK and Ireland We believe that focusing on long-term
sustainability I1s the best way to achieve lasting success
and create value for shareholders

We're always looking for ways to improve That spint
has made us what we are today, and it wili drive us to
become what we want to be tomorrow
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Forward looking statements

This constitutes the Annual
Report of British Sky
Broadcasting Group plc (the
“Company”) in accordance
with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS”)
and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006
apphcable to companies
reporting under IFRS and

1s dated 25 July 2012 This
Annual Report makes
references to various
Company websites The
information on our websites
shall not be deemed to be
part of, or incorporated by
reference into, this Annual
Report
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This document contains certain forward looking statements

with respect to our financial condition, resuits of operations

and business and our strategy, plans and cbjectives These
statements include, without imitation those that express
forecasts, expectations and projections, such as forecasts,
expectations and projections with respect to new praducts and
services the potential for growth of free-to-air and pay television,
fixed hne telephony broadband and bandwidth requirements
advertising growth, Direct-to-Home (“DTH") customer growth,
Over-the-top ("OTT") customer growth, Multiroom, Sky Anytime
TV, Sky Anytime*, Now TV, Sky Go, Sky*, Sky*HD and other services’
penetration, churn DTH and other revenue, profitability and
margin growth, cash flow generation, programming costs
subscriber management and supply chain costs, administration
costs and other costs, marketing expenditure capital
expenditure programmes and proposals for returning capital to
shareholders

Although the Company believes that, the expectations reflected
i such forward looking statements are reasonable these
statements (and all other forward jooking statements contained
in this document) are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors some of
which are beyond our control, are difficult to predict and could
cause actual results to differ matenally from those expressed

or implied or forecast in the forward looking statements These
factors include but are not hmited to those risks that are
highlighted in this document in the section entitled ' Directors’
report - Business review - Principal nsks & uncertamnties”, and
information on the significant nisks and uncertanties associated
with our business 1s described therein

No part of these results constitutes or shall be taken to
constitute, an iInvitation or iInducement to invest in the Company
or any other entity and must not be relled upon tn any way In
connection with any investment decsion All forward locking
statements in this document are based on information known to
us on the date hereof Except as required by law, we undertake
no obligation publicly to update or revise any forward looking
statements whether as a result of new information future
events or otherwise
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Chairman’s statement

2012 has been another year of achievement for Sky In a challenging
economic emaronment, the Company has continued to make strong
progress on all fronts. More customers are choosing Sky and at the
same time, are taking a greater number of products from us. Combined
with a strong commutment to operational efficency this growth

has resulted i excellent finonaial results and increased returns for
shareholders, continuing the Company’s track record of delvery aver
recent years ! would like to thank all our colleagues at Sky for their
commutment and focus over the last year without which none of this
would be possible

~

This sustained performance would be good in any erwvironment.
but it 1s exceptional in a peniod when household budgets

have been under sustained pressure It 1s the result of a clear,
consistent strategy and first-rate execution by the management
team While we must never be complacent in such a dynamic

and competitive marketplace the Board I1s confident that the
Company is well positicned to continue to take advantage of the
growth opportunity in home entertainment and communications

As the Company looks to develop further we also recognise the
importance that customers place on dealing with respensible
businesses that have a pesitve Impact on the wider community We
have a very good story to tell both in terms of our support for the UK
creative industries and cur contribution to the wider economy This
year, a new Independent. report has measured for the first tme the
very substantial impact made by Sky in terms of GDP contnbution,
employment and tax generation In additson, through our Bigger
Picture programme, we are working with schools to help inspire
young people and develop their skifs with the opering of our new Sky
Skills Studios expenence on our campus Inwest London as well as
continumg to develop our work 1In sport arts and the ermronment,

During the year a number of changes have taken place in the
Board In Aprl James Murdoch stepped down as Chairman, while
staying on as a Director and | was asked by the Board to succeed
him On behalf of the entire Board 1 would 1ike to pay tribute to
James for the vision drive and strategic insight he contributed
both as Chawman and prevtously as Chief Executive

In parallel with my appointment as Chairman, Andy Higginson was
appointed as the Sentor Independent. Director and Tom Mockndge
as Deputy Chairman From the Independent Directors Allan Leighton
and Dawvd Evans retired after the 201 AGM and Dame Gail Rebuck
retired in June 2012. They were succeeded by Matthieu Prgasse
Martin Gilbert and Tracy Clarke. We thank all those Directors for their
considerable contnbution over many years, and we warmly welcome
the three new Board members Later this year, Lord Richard Wilson
and Jacques Nasser wilt also retire and we are making good progress
towards the appontment of their replacemenits

This means that the majonty of the Independent Directors

will have joined within twelve months This i1s in part due to

the delay in replacements caused by the proposed bid by
News Corporation |norder to ensure that we have sufficient
Independent Directors with more than three years experience
we have asked Andy Higginson to stay on for two additionat
years beyond September 2013, and 1 will stay on for sufficient
time to ensure the necessary continuity Through these steps,
we will safeguard the interests of shareholders by ensuring the
necessary balance of expenence for a well-functioning Board

Finally, in view of the Company’s continued strong performance,
the Board proposes a 9% increase in the full-year dwvidend to 254
pence per share and intends to seek shareholder approval for a
further £500 million of share repurchases The entire Board and
management team remain fully focused on maintaining our strong
performance and | would hke to thank shareholders for their
continued support.

Nicholas Ferguson
Chairman
25 July 2012
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Chief Executive
Officer's statement

Cur goalis tong-term, sustamnable success that creates value for
shareholders and has a positive impact on the communties in which
we operate We believe that the most durable businesses stand out
for thewr commitment to continuous improvement They constantly
seek to adapt so that they stay relevant tomorrow and into the
future That 1s why Sky’s story has always involved constant renewal
We know that to remain successful we can t stand stilf

To satisfy our existing customers and to attract more people

to Sky we need to keep moving forward and improving what

we offer That means getting better on screen providing great
entertamnment that i1s worth paying for it means making it easy
for our customers to access Sky content easy to watch it when
and where it suits them and easy to get more value from their
subscription And it means expanding our range of services so we
offer a set of entertainment and communications products that
meet customers’ needs better than anyone else

Looking back on 2012 we've continued our consistent approach
to growth and returns We've combined investment where

it matters most to customers with a strong focus on dnving
greater efficiency across our operations We believe this 1s the
best formula to achieve sustainable growth in revenue profit
and cash flow over time Qur results show that this approach s
working well Despite what continues to be a tough economic
environment, more customers are choosing Sky for a wider range
of products than ever and our rates of customer loyalty remain
very strong. During the year we added almost three million
subscription products to reach a total of more than 28 mitlion and
more than 300,000 net new households jomed us This means
that Sky 15 now the choice of around 40% of UK households and
a growing proportion of those customers choose Sky for home
communications as well as for television

This year s strong operational growth builds further onthe
progress that we've made over recent years We've successfully
transitioned the business to a mutt-product strategy doubling
our total product base since 2008, while adding 16 millton new
customers as well Importantly we've achieved this growthwhile
delivering an increasingly strong financial performance Over
the same penod, we've added almost £2 billion to revenue and
doubled adjusted bastc earrmings per share, which exceeded

50 pence for the first time this year
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POSITIVE IMPACT ON THE UK ECONOMY

As Sky has evolved, so has the positive impact that our business
has on our Industry and the wider economy For example we

are now the UK s biggest investor in telewision programming
working with more than 100 independent producers for our
entertainment channels alone And we prowide support and
investment for British sport at all levels from the elite to the
grassroots

To measure and explatn the scale of our waider economic iImpact
on the UK, this year we commissioned a report from independent
consultants Oxford Economics It found that Sky contnbutes
over £5 billion a year to UK GDP supports nearly 120 000 jobs and
generates £2 3 billion of tax revenues

We hope that our story provides a good example of the important
contnbution that a successful British company can make
particularly at a time when economic growth s harder to come

by Our appetite to do more remains strong and we hope to
contribute even more In the future

BELIVERING FOR CUSTOMERS

Because the main reason customers choose Sky 1s for a better
choice of telewision, we have to keep getting better on screen
Sowe have continued to build on our traditional strengths

in sport, movies and news, while making a step change in our
entertainment offering This year we added Formula1to the
variety of sports we cover with the launch of a dedicated channel
- Sky Sports F1 - to provide greater depth of coverage than ever
before Following a number of other nghts renewals we secured

a new agreement for Sky to remamn the home of lve Premuier
League football for the three seasons to 2016 As aresult, we have
ensured the continued breadth and quality of our sports offenng,
allowing customers to look forward to continued coverage of the
UEFA Champions League, Hetneken Cup rugby, English domestic
and international cricket, European Tour Golf and the Ryder Cup

In entertainment, our growing commitment to onginal British
production 1s bringing more of the best acting and wniting talent
to Sky, including Sir David Attenborough, Melvyn Bragg Ruth
Jones and James Corden Many of our home-grown comedies
and dramas such as Steffa Trollied and Mad Dogs, have already
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returned or been re-commissioned for new senes At the same
time, we continue to offer the best of US drama, with Sky Atlantic
bnnging customers new series of much-loved shows like Game of
Thrones and Mad Men Sky News continues to offer outstanding
reporting from home and abroad white Sky Arts attracted its
highest ever audiences for the Playhouse Presents senes of
onginal plays

We are also offenng customers more ways to enjoy our content,
whether at home or on the move Alongside our market-teading
Sky* and high definition (HD) services, we have expanded the range
of content available on our wideo on demand service, which has now
reached more than one million active users Sky Go which allows
customers to access our programmes on devices such as laptops
smartphones and tablets goes from strength to strengthwith a
better choice of content and record usage figures

To give milllons more pecple an easy and flexible way to access
Sky content in July 2012, we announced the launch of a new
internet TV service NOW TV Available across a wide range of
Internet-connected devices, NOW TV will initially offer mowies for
instant streaming and expand to offer sports and entertainment
content. Alongside the continued growth of our satellite

service, this 1$ a distinctive new way for us to meet the needs of
customers who don t yet take pay TV

Qver the past year, we've continued to perform strongly (in home
communications as more new and existing customers recognise
the quality and value of our products Around a third of Sky
customers now choose to take all three of TV, broadband and
tetephony, which means we are Britans most popular provider
of the 'triple play’ service During the year we have continued

to enhance our range of broadband services with the launch of
more than 11,000 free WiFi hotspots and the introduction of a
fibre product for customers who want higher speeds We see a
significant opporturity for continued growth as mihons more
customers have the opportunity to get a great quality service and
save money by switching their communications services to Sky

RECORD FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Combined with a continued focus on aperational efficiency this
strong growth has translated to a record finanaial performance
with earnings per share exceeding 50 pence for the first time
Total revenue increased by 3% as the growth in customers and
products more than offset headwinds in advertising and Sky
Business Adjusted operating profit rose by 14% to £1,223 million
the highest level for six years, and we delivered adjusted basic EPS
of 50 8 pence up 22% onthe prior year

The Board has proposed a full-year dividend of 25 4 pence per
share, an ngrease of 9% year on year This represents the eighth
consecutive year of growth and is further amplified by our
cor"ltlnumg programme to return £750 million to shareholders
through a share buy-back In addition, we intend to seek

shareholder approval at the Company’s AGM in November 2012
for a further £500 million of share repurchases As withthe
current programme, News Corporation has agreed to participate
inthe buy-back. The effect of that agreement 1s to provide that
there will be no change in News Corporation’s economic or voting
interests In the Company as a result of the share buy-back
programme

Looking ahead, we remain confident about the long-term
opportunity that exists for our business With around 13 million
homes yet to take pay TV and two thirds of Sky customers not yet
taking all three of TV broadband and telephony, there remains
considerable headroom for growth in home entertasnment and
communications

At the same time, we are in no way complacent about the future
We expect the economic emvironment to remain challenging for
all consumer businesses and the attractive markets inwhich we
operate will continue to be both highly competitive and dynamic.
Against that backdrop we will remain focused on executing our
clear and consistent plan We will continue to deploy capital in
areas where customers see value - In getting better on screen
and improving our products and services - and mamntain an acute
focus on operating efficiency to underpin those Investments and
deliver increasing returns for shareholders

RESPONSIBLE JOURNALISM

Sky News 15 the only national television news service that
operates without any form of public subsidy or support We are
proud of the contribution it has made to media plurality in the

UK and its track record of independent, impartial coverage Ata
tume of heightened interest in editonal practices across the media
sector, and as part of our commitment to acting responsibly
throughout our business we commissioned both an external
review of emaill records at Sky News and an internal audit of
payment records Reporting to the Audit Committee, these
reviews found no evidence of iImpropniety or cause for concern

Also this year the Audit Committee reviewed the Company s
approach to two separate investigations in which one of its
Journalists accessed the email of iIndmduals suspected of criminal
activity Following a thorough review we are satisfied that the
action was justified in the public interest and subject to proper
editonal oversight

MAKING A BROADER CONTRIBUTION

We recognise that our future success depends on long-term
relationships with mithons of families across the UK and freland
Furthermore, we also understand that customers are increasingly
choosing to reward companies that share their values and make a
positive contribution to society
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Qur position as a broadcaster allows us to inspire our customers
to make a posttive difference through our Bigger Picture
programme - improving lives through sport bringing the arts to
more people, helping to tackle cimate change and raising the
aspirations of young people

Through Sky Rainforest Rescue, our partnership with WWF and
the State Government of Acre in Brazil, we are protecting a bilion
trees in the Amazon rainforest from deforestation This year, we
were delighted to meet our fundraising target of £4 milion and to
extend the project for a further three years so it can continue to
support the Iivelhoods of more local famifies

In sport, we also extended our hugely successful partnership
with British Cycling which 1s well on track to get a milhon more
people cycling regulady Team Sky our professicnal road racing
team, made sporting history in Juty 2012 as Bradley Wiggins
became the first ever British wainner of the Tour de France Over
35,000 young people have now taken part in Sky Sports Living for
Sports, a programme which uses sport to engage young people

1n education and boost their confidence And our scholarships
are helping premising young British and Insh athletes fulfil ther
potential and prepare for life in the spotlight.

As part of our Sky Arts Ignition series, we re working with arts
organusations including Tate Liverpool to create exciting new
art works around the country We've also anndunced our first
frve bursanes to help support young artists and kick start thew
careers

At our headquarters in west London, our new Sky Skills Studios
aims to raise the aspirations of young people by bringing to

Iife the expenence of creating media content aligning with the
national curnculum and helping to build confidence and Iife skills
The Studios will be open from September 2012 and will offer a free
learntng expenence to all schools across the country, with the am
of engaging 12 000 young pecple each year

We see these activities as a vital ingredsent of bullding long-term
sustainable success And we will look to continue to grow what
were doing In all these areas 1n the future

Our people are vital to everything that we do So | would like thank
them for their focus energy and creatnity over the past year With
therr continued support and commitment we can continue to
execute aganst our pnonties, deliver for customers and increase
returns for shareholders

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer
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Our business

WHO WE ARE

WHAT WE DO

Sky (s the leading pay tetevision prowider in the UK and ireland and
the fastest growing provider of home communications services in
the UK. As at 30 June 2012 we had 10 6 milhon customers taking a
total of 28 4 million products

OUR APPROACH

We have a dlear and consistent strategy to attract new customers
to Sky sell more products and services to our existing customers,
and develop our adjacent bustnesses To achieve this broadly-
based growth we continue to invest in the customer experence
while improving the efficiency of our operations all with the aim of
building a larger, more profitable business

OUR PAID-FOR SUBSCRIPTION PRODUCTS

Television:

» DTH via the satellite
* Internet streaming
via NOW TV

Broadband

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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High Definition

Telephony

Sky retails pay TV services to residential customers in 5D, HD

and 3D via satellite, on demand with Anytime* and on the move
with Sky Go We keep our customers connected with great-value
broadband and telephony products in the home vta DSL and fibre,
and away from the home with The Cloud WiFI

We also offer a number of our TV services to commercial
customers and we operate adjacent businesses wholesaling our
channel portfolio, selling advertising on our own and partner
channels and offering a range of betting and gaming services

In July 2012 we launched our new intermet streaming service under
adifferent brand, NOW TV giving consumers a new, flexible way

to access Sky s content and allowing us to distribute our content.
more broadly across new platforms

Multiroom
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Add value
through
innovation

Invest in
standout
content

Grow share in
home
communications

We want to be the first chotce for entertainment and
communications so we put customers at the heart of everything
we do Through focus on quahty, flexibility value and service we can
grow n avartety of ways, create value for shareholders, and make a
broader contribution to the community

Grow adjacent
businesses

Build a larger, more profitable business

- We invest in high-quality, exclusive content to give
customers a greater choice of TV that they are
passionate about.

. We delver innovative new products and services which
improve the expenence of watching TV and add more
value for customers

- More customers are choosing Sky home
communtcations products over other providers for gur
quality, value and reliable service

HOW WE DO BUSINESS

Qur content Investments supports growth in
our adjacent wholesale, advertising and Sky Bet
businesses

@ We focus on operating efficiency to deliver the best
service, underpin investment in future growth and
increase profit, cash flow and returns

. We continue to invest in the key bullding blocks of
our brand our people and our infrastructure as key
components of long-term success

At Sky, we are focused on bullding a sustainable business because we believe that 15 the best way to achieve long-term success and
create value for sharsholders We know that our reputation Is a valuable asset and we want to be known for being a great company to
do business with, for making a positive contribution to UK and Insh!ife and for being a great place to work

A responsible business day to day

Because we never forget that people make a choice when they
buy our products or watch our programmes, we pay as much
attention to the way we do business as we do to the quality of
the services we offer (see page 19)

Our people

We know that the performance of our people Is cnitical to our
growth and success We aim to attract the best talent and create
a culture where our people can achieve their potential and have a
great career (see page 25).

Inspinng action

At Sky we use our innovative technology to connect, entertain
inform and Inspire our customers to take action, extending our
reach beyond the screen to make a positive impact on society

(seepage 23)

How we manage nsk

The Group has a formal risk management framework embedded
withun the business to support the identification and effective
management of nsk across the Group (see page 28)
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Our performance

Strong demand across our growing product range translated into growth in each of revenue, operating profit,
earnings per share and free cash flow, on an adjusted basis We have identified a number of key performance
indicators, both operational and financial that we use to assess the Group’s performance against its core strategic

priorities We also have 25 independently assured KPis we use to measure our sustainability performance, which can

be found at www sky com/thebigger picture

OPERATIONAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

PRODUCTS & CUSTOMERS (million)
W Total products B Total customers

CHURN (%)

CUSTOMERS TAKING EACH OF TV,
BROADBAND AND TELEPHONY (mtllion)

2012

10.2%

M 104% 0 103%

2010 20m 2012
Descrption Andlyus
Acustomer o defined it & Toral customers and products are
subscnber toone of our TV both key determnants of the
packages or stanctalone home: Groups value Our strategysto

communications senos Total ot adding customers and
products s defined as the total sefling mone products tocur

of all subscnption products taken  eastingbase In 2012, we added
by our customers and indudes.
TV HD Muttrsam, Broadband

Telephory and Line Pental 28 4 milion

We have included an environment
metric whieh 1s one of 10 iIndependently
assured KPls we use to measure

our enmircnmental performance

(see www sky com/thebiggerpicture)
and a people metnc as a measure of
employee satisfaction in pursuit of

our goal to be a great place to work
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F12000 new customers and grew
thetotal product s taken by 2% to

Dascription Analysis

Chutn repre<ents the Humber Churnis a good measure of

of customers over a grven customaern satisfachion, which
iperind who tarmurated they 8 & katy ciriveer of value For our
subscriptxsns, net of former butiness Churmn forehe vear

customers who reinstated ther
subscnption (within 12 months
of erminaung therr onginal
SUDICNPUON), £xpressed A5 &
percentage of total average
cuttoment

2012 was stable at 10 2%.

GROSS CO,e EMISSIONS
(t/Em REVENUE)
W Gross COze emussions (UEm) === Target raduction

Descrpteon Analyes
The number of customers talung Thes 15 an mportant measure
oneofour TVproducts andbotha  for our business. with hgher
Sky Broadtand and a Sky Talk penetration positvely impacting
product. Customers may alsoopt ARPU and customer kyalty
for our fine rental product At 30 June 2012, 3 4 milhon
customers choseeach of TV
broadband and telephony
up N%from the pror year

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

B Sky engagement @ UK National Norm

---:l--far

2009 2010 20m 202

Description Analysis

Total gross 00;@ emussions We audit our carban footpant

inclucie amaDons from premses each year and use the nesuits

and company-owmed vetaces todnve reductions across the

Goopeland 21 busewess, Ove absohze gross
e ernsssions fel by 10%in

* 2012 despate Soy growing as &

buziness As such, we have
alreacy achuweved our target to

reeduce our COz8 #MSSIONS.
(WEm revenue) by 25% by 2000
versus & 2008/09 baseline

raduction

employees ae asked & senes of engagement. we have improved
questons designed to quantfy o the last year and performed
engagement. better than an independert

extemal benchmark of other
blue-chep companses in pach of
the tast two years
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hl

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

ARPU (E)? REVENUE (£Em)' ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT (Em)'?
6597 675
5709
2000 on 202 2000 201 2012 2010 201 2012
Deacription Analysis Descripbon Anabysis Description Analysis
Average revenue per user (ARPU) ARPU s mpacted by the type Ravenyue includes revenue from Revenus 15 a kay measure of how Ad)justed cperating profit for the Adjusted operating profitis
15 calculated by taling the amoynt,  of yubtenption packages taken ratal subscnptions. wholesale the Group 1s deliverngon s Group excdudes any axceptional & key measure of the underhang
spent by the Group's residential by doustomer aswell as the reverue advertrsing and $trategy to grow the business In or one-off tems business performance
customars (ex VAT), davded by numberof addmonal pad for nstallation hardwareand sernce 2012, reverue griw by 3% on last ftincreased by 14% o N2
the average number of resdential  products APPU increased by revene year notwrthstandg prices were
tustomens E10 &s customers rewarded fromen for exstng customerns
uswith mareof ther busness,
ADJUSTED BASIC ADJUSTED FREE CASH FLOW (Em)'? TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (%)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (p)'?

W SKY W FTSE

S0
161%
2012 +22% 8o 0 i
26%f
] ———
577 201
o —
R
2070
o 416p (+30%) X'0321p (+H15%) T P
2010 2om 2012
Descnption Anabysrs Dezcription Analysis Descrigtion Analysis
Adjusted basikc EPS 15 the profit Adjusted bask EPS prondes a Adjusted free cash flow s Free cashflow IS an mportant Total shareholder return (TSR) TSR represents acomparable
afar tax for the year excluding maasure of sharehoider return dafined as cash generated from measure of the Group s success nepresents the change in value marasure of shareholder rturn

exceptional tems and related
tax effects dradled by the

1 From continuing operat.ons

that is comparabie cver e
Adjusted basec EPS increased
by 22% 1o reach a record level
of 50 8p.

‘Gpersbons after the impact of
caprtal eypenciiture, Pet Fmtenest
and tax paod, cash flows ta and
from jont vertures. excuding
exceptional cams.

2 Farfurther detals see note 10 of the consofidated financial statements
3 Forareconcihation of non-GAAP measures including a reconaliation of ARPU which has been restated for 201 and 2010 see page 128

i corverting profits to cash fow
and of the undertying health of
the business Adpsted frea cash
Fow ncreased by 5% as aresut of
ugher proftabilty and strong
workang capital

of aghare held for the 12 months

the ex-cradend cate The vtlue
of the share s based onthe
average thare pnoe over the
three months pror to 30 kune

Over Uuma BSkyB shares under
parformed the FTSE 10O ndex by
135 percentage posits i the year
0 30 June 2012 howeever our
share pnca was heavlly nfuenced
by tha withdrawal of the proposed
offer ty News Corparaton on,

13 juy 2001 Inthe penod smos the
withdrawal, we cutperformed the
FTSE by 4 T%on a TSR bass
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DIRECTORS REPCRT - BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business

INTRODUCTION

Overview of the business

Sky operates the most comprehensive multichanne!, multi-
platform pay telewision service In the’'UK and Ireland We have led
the UK into the age of HDTV and {aunched Europess first 30TV
channel, Sky 3D We give our customers greater access, control
and choice while on the move with Sky Go and at home with
Anytime®, our video on demand service NOW TV our new internet,
TV service launched in July 2012 gives consumers a new flexible
way to access Sky’s content Since launching Sky Broadband and
Sky Talk tn 2006 Sky has been the UK's fastest growing provider
of home communications

At 30 June 2012, we had 10 6 million customers taking a total

of 28 4 million products We are the UK s fastest growing home
communications provider and the UK's largest triple play prowider
with 3 4 million customers choosing to take each of TV broadband
and telephony

Our consistent operational performance is translating into
record financial results For the year ended 30 June 2012 total
revenue ncreased by 3% with continued growth in products and
customers Combined with our continued focus on efficiency
revenue growth translated into 14% growth in adjusted operating
profit to reach a record £1223 million and the highest operating
profit margin for six years at 18% We continued our strong
track record for shareholder returns with 9% growth in the full
year divdend of 25 4p our eighth consecutive year of growth In
addition, we have returned £543 milion to shareholders via our
ongeing share buy-back programme meaning that we will have
returned almost £1 bilhon throughout the course of 2012

This review of the business sets out the Group's main activities
which are summarised as follows

+ Ourretall business - our products and services
= Qur content - our channel portfolio

+  Qur adjacent businesses - Sky Media, Wholesale Distribution
and Sky Betting and Gaming

+ Infrastructure and technology - satellites playout and uphnk
facilities, digital satellite reception equipment, encryption and
secunty and communications infrastructure

Certaimn terms used herein are defined in the “Glossary of terms”
which appears at the end of this Annual Report.

The Company a public company limited by shares and domiciled
in the UK operates under the laws of England and Wales it was
incerporated in England and Wales on 25 Apnl 1988 Our principal
executive offices are located at Grant Way, Isleworth Middlesex
TW7 5QD England A hist of our significant investments 1s set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
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OUR RETAIL BUSINESS

Overview of our retail business

We retail subscrption TV and communications services to
residential and commeraal premises inthe UK and freland Our
customers enjoy an unprecedented choice of entertainment
sports movies, news and arts channels We own and broadcast
the Sky Channels which we retall together with the Sky
Oistnbuted Channels to our TV customers and since July 2012
we offer simple and commitment free access to aninternet TV
service We keep our customers connected with great value
broadband and telephony products in the home via DSL and
fibre, and away from the home with The Cloud WiF

Products and Services

Television

« The Sky Channels and Sky Distributed Channels For our
TV Customers, we group the Sky Distributed Channels
(other than the Premium Sky Distnibuted Channels) and
the Sky Basic Channels into two packs, Entertainment and
Entertainment Extra Entertainment s available for £20 per
menth and includes popular entertainment channels such
as Sky 1, Sky Atlantic, Sky Living, Comedy Central Watch, Gold,
Albrand FX Entertanment Extra 1s available from £25 per
month and includes a!l the ¢channels from our entertainment
pack plus additional channels including Discovery and Disney
Customers then have the option to add a combination
of Premium Channels to their package The Sky platform
currently offers access to 174 pay television channels (145 Sky
Distributed Channels and 29 Sky Channels) and in addition all
customers can receve more than 300 free-to-ar television
and radio channels and services Our agreements with the
owners of the Sky Distributed Channels typically grant us
the exclusive right to offer these channels to residential DTH
customers in the UK and Ireland

+  Sky' TV Customers canuse Sky” to record two programmes
simultaneously whilst they are watching another programme
recorded earlier TV Customers can also use Sky* to pause
and rewind live TV and record entire series at the touch of a
button with the ‘Senes Link’ feature The Sky* app on selected
smartphones allows TV customers to see what Is on, view
recommendations record programmes and set up a Senes
Link whilst onthe move

+  Sky HD We operate an HD service which consists of over 60
HD channels offenng a range of content across all key genres
including six Sky Sports channels, 1 Sky Movies channels,
Sky 1 HD, Sky Lnang HD, Sky Atlantic HD Sky Arts THD and
2 HD, Sky News HD two Sky Box Office HD channels, 30 HD
channels provided by our partner broadcasters and six
free-to-air HD channels

= SkyMultiroom We also offer our DTH customers a multiroom
subscription, allowing customers to watch Sky TV in different
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rooms at the same time by purchasing additional set-top
boxes

Sky Anytime TV and Sky Anytime* Sky Anytime TV offers a
wide selection of content from across the Sky platform, from
both the Sky Channels and the Sky Distributed Channels

for customers to watch ondemand Sky Anytime* our IP
delivered video on demand service 15 avallable to homes
that have an active broadband connection Once connected
relevant TV Customers have the opportunity to access a
broad and regularly updated library of content on demand
with thousands of hours of TV to choose from, customers
can access over 600 films poputar entertainment and drama
‘box-sets’ (Including iconic series from HBO) documentaries
the arts and much more

Sky Go DTH customers can access the Sky Go senice to enjoy
live TV from their Sky TV package and on demand content

via therr PCs laptops, selected smartphones and iPads Each
Sky home is entitled to register up to two compatible devices
On1Phone 1Pod Touch, iPad and supported Android devices,
customers are able to access all six Sky Sports channels,
ESPN British Eurosport, Sky News, Sky 1, Sky Living Sky Arts,
Sky Movies and Sky Atlantic with further channels and
devices to be added over time On laptops and computers
customers are able to access more than 30 live channels
including all six Sky Sports channels, Sky Mowvies, Sky News,
Sky 1, Sky Atlantic Sky Arts MTV, Disney, GO LD Nickelodeon,
NatGeo, History, Eden and ESPN supported by an extensve
Iibrary of on demand content.

Sky Box Office Qur Sky Box Office service currently offers our
DTH customers television premieres of mowvies and occasional
Iive sports entertainment events on a pay-per-view basis

Sky Store Sky Store 15 our on demand rentals service, giving
customers a choice of over 1,000 movies including new
releases just out on DVD and a whole library of favourites all
available to rent instantly

NOW TV NOW TV, a brand new internet TV service giving
consumers an easy and commitment-free way to access some
of the best Sky content 15 now avallable across awide range
of Internet-connected devices The service, which launched on
17 Juty 2012 with Sky Movies, offers easy access to hundreds
of the best and latest Hollywood ttles on a flexible basis
Mowvie fans have the option of choosing from a £15 monthty
pass offering completely unlimited access to more than 450
different films each week, or renting movies on a simple pay-
as-you-go basis with prices starting from S9p

Home communications

Sky Broadband Sky Broadband 1s now the choice of over
four million homes across the UK As at 30 June 2012 our
broadband network covered almost 83% of UK households

For homes covered by our broadband network, two different
broadband products are available Sky Broadband Everyday
Lite and Sky Broadband Unlimited Both products offera
maximum download speed of up to 14Mbps (depending on
location) and up to 1 3Mbps upload speeds Sky Broadband
Everyday Lite 1s hmited to a 2GB monthly usage allowance
whereas Sky Broadband Unlimited has no limit on menthty
usage We also offer Sky Broadband Connect to customers

In the UK who are not within the coverage area of our
broadband network, Sky Broadband Connect offers a
maximum download speed of up to 6Mbps (depending on
location) and 40GB monthly usage Sky Broadband Unhmited
and Sky Broadband Connect are also avarlable to customers
who do not take a television service from Sky As part of a Sky
Broadband subscnption, we provide customers with a WiFI
capable DSL modem/router We also offer installation and
equipment repair and exchange services From April 2012, we
gave Sky customers even greater choice with the launch of

a fibre broadband offering called Sky Fibre Unhmited, which
gives customers access to download speeds of up to 38 Mbps
or up to 76 Mbps for £20 and £30 per month respectively
without usage caps The fibre product 1s wholesaled from BT
and therefore available to Sky customers who reside within
the coverage area of BT Infinsty

*  Sky Talk Sky Talk s atelephony seraice available to homes n

the LUK and has over 3 7 million customers Sky Talk Freetime
offers customers inclusive evening and weekend calls of

up to an hour to UK landlines and Sky Talk Unlimited offers
customers unlimited calls {for up to one hour per call) to UK
landlines and certain international destinations Sky Talk
customers are also able to take their telephony hine rental
directly from Sky As with Sky Broadband Unlimited Sky Talk
1s now available to customers who do not take a television
service

+ The Cloud WiFi We have further enhanced our broadband
service with the commercial launch of The Cloud WiF)
hotspots in April, to give seamless internet access free of
charge to Sky Broadband Unlimited, Sky Fibre Unlimited
and Sky Connect customers We now have over 11000 high
bandwidth, public access hotspots across the UK, providing
valued Wifi1 access for customers in locations where people
dwell The service provides even greater flexibtlity and
cornvenience and will prove particularly valuable for customers
who access Sky content on the go with high quality wireless
delivering an even better expenence for Sky Go and Sky s
other video-rich applications

Sky Business

We offer a number of our services including ocur HD service to
commercial TV customers inthe UK and ireland under a range

of contracts The types of contract, and the channels, which are
avallable to any particutar commercial customer depend primarnly
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Review of our business

continued

upon the type of business premises within which such customers
wish to show our services Qur commercial TV customers indude
offices retall outlets, hotels, pubs and clubs Following our
acquisition of The Cloud Networks Limited we also offer WiFi
services to commercial customers

ECJ judgment On 4 October 2011 the Eurcpean Court of Justice
("ECI) handed down its judgment in acttons brought by the
Premier League ("PL) amongst others, agamst pubs using

{and suppliers supplying) foreign decoder cards and boxes to
view live PL football The ECJ determined that restrictions in an
agreement between the PL and its Greek licensee which obliged
that licensee not to supply decoding devices to persons outside
the licensed terntory are contrary to EU laws The ECJ found
that, although the PL did not have copynight in the live coverage
of its football matches, the PL title sequences logo anthem and
graphical elements did attract protection under the Copyright
Directive The High Court consistently applied the ECJ's judgment.
to the cases before it and the defendants in the el itigation
(the foreign card suppliersy were found to have infringed the

PL's copynight. The High Court also held that certain provisions
in the PU's agreements with foreign distributors prohibiting the
distribution of decoder cards outside of the authorised terntory
were void under competition law

QUR CONTENT

Overview of our content

A key element of our approach is to invest in high quality content
to give customers a greater choice of TV that they value and are
passionate about, Qur investment on-screen differentiates Sky
from free-to-arr offerings, gives customers more reasons to join
and helps keep our existing customer base loyal Our investment
approach 1s aimed at building on our traditional strengths n
sport movies and news and at the same time driving a step
change in our entertainment portfolic We know that home-
grown exclusive content resonates strongly with our customers
so as part of the accelerated development of cur entertainment
offering, we have committed to increasing our investment in high-
quality British content by 50% to around E600 million per year

Qur channel portfolio

Our entertainment channels

«  Sky 1 Sky1HD s targeted primanly at a16-44 age group
audience and includes UK-commussiened comedy and
drama factual and features, factual entertainment and big
popular family entertainment in addition to the best of US
programming in the last year, Sky 1 aired some of the most
popular original comedy and drama in multi ¢hannel history
including Mount Pleasant, Stefla and Troflted Sky 2 broadcasts
primanly a catch-up schedule of programming from Sky1and
15 complemented by Sky 1s programming library and some
exclusive content

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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s+ Sky Living Sky Living HD 1s targeted pnmarily at our female
customers During this financial year notable onginal
commussions include the dating show Love Machine, hosted by
Chris Moyles and Stacey Solomon Steps Reunron and follow up
Steps on the Road Agarn, and the second series of the original
British Drama Badfam Sky Living also continues to bring the
best of US content ta our customers including Bones and
Crirminal Minds.

v SkyAtlantic Sky Atlantic HD was launched in February
2011 following Sky s exclusive deal with HBO It has become
best known for showing some of the most icomic and hotly
anticipated shows in television and is committed to investing
in, and showcasing, world-class UK onginabions across drama
(including its first UK drama Hit and Miss starning Chloe
Sevigny) comedy and documentaries as well as bnnging the
best programming from the US

«  SkyArts Sky Arts 1HD provides contemporary culture and
entertalnment programmes and documentaries such as
Playhouse Presents starring Tom Jones, Emma Thompson
and David Tennant and The South Bank Show Sky Arts 2 HD
broadcasts a range of the best in classical arts programming
from around the world including opera literature, theatre film
and dance

Sky 1 Sky Lving Sky Atlantic Sky Arts1and Sky Arts 2 are all
broadcast in HD and are also available on Sky Go (except Sky Arts
2) and content from the channels 1s avalable on demand via Sky
Anmytime Sky Anytime* and Sky Go

Sky Movies

+  Sky Mowies Overview The Sky Movies channels show a broad
range of movies from the latest Hollywood blockbusters to
cult dassics Through our agreements with the major studios
and some of the leading independents, Sky Mowvies offers
customers over 450 different movies a week, induding up to
five new premieres before any other pay TV channel To make
it easter for customers to find thewr way around the choice
of films, movies are grouped into different genre channels
including Sci-Fi & Horror Comedy Drama & Romance and
Family The Sky Movies channels are dvided into two packs
Customers taking both packs receve 11 Sky Movies channels
plus bonus channels Disney Cnemagic and MGM HD All of
the Sky Mowvies channels are avallable in HD We don't show
any advertisements dunng our films and we PIN-protect
pre-watershed Sky Movies canbe enjoyed by Sky Movies TV
customers on demand wia Sky Anytime, Sky Anytime* and
Sky Go

» Competition Commussion Investigation In August 2010, Ofcom
announced its decision to refer the supply and acquisrtion of
pay TV mowvie nghts and the wholesale supply and acquisition
of pay TV packages mcluding Sky s movie channels to the
Competition Commission (“CC") for investigation On 23 May
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2012, the CC reached revised provisional findings that Sky's
position concerning the acquisition and distnbution of
subscription pay TV movie nghts does not adversely affect
competition between pay TV retallers As a result, the CCis
not propostng any regulatory intervention The statutory
deadiine for completing the investigation 1s 3 August 2012

Sky Sports

Sky Sports Overview The Sky Sports Channels are Sky Sports
1, Sky Sports 2 Sky Sports 3, Sky Sports 4, Sky Sports News
and Sky Sports F1 Sky Sports F1, our dedicated Formula 1
("F1"} channel, was launched this year and gives in-depth
access to all 20 Grand Prix races at no extra charge for Sky
TV customers who subscribe to Sky Sports 1and 2 orour HD
pack Each of the Sky Sports channels s also available in HD
to subscribers to our Sky HD service who are entitled to the
corresponding standard definition channel Sky Sports 1, Sky
Sports 2, Sky Sports 3 Sky Sports 4 Sky Sports News and
Sky Sports F1 are all available online on Sky Go Some content
from those channels is also available on demand via Sky
Anytime, Sky Anytime* and Sky Go

Sky Sports programming nghts In March 2006, the European
Commission rendered legally binding the PLs commitment

to sell ive TV nights in six balanced packages forthe three
seasons from 2010/11, with no one bidder being allowed to
buy all six packages In February 2009, the Group successfully
bid for five of those six avallable packages (each of 23 games)
of live nights to PL football in the UK These nghts run from
the beginnung of the 2010/11 season to the end of the 201213
season in June 2012, following a restructure of the tender
process, seven packages of live Premier League rights to 154
matches for seasons 2013/14 to 201516 were offered by the
PL Noone bidder was allowed to win more than 116 matches
We successfully secured five of the seven PL packages (16 ive
matches per year from the 2013/14 season). In addition to the
PL nights our programming nghts for the Sky Sports channels
include exclusive live nights to broadcast, in the UK (and in
most cases lreland) a range of sport including a number of
football motorspert rugby union rugby league cricket golf
and tennis events We also give valuable exposure to other
sports which appeal to a smaller but equally committed
audence

Wholesale must-offer obligations On 31 March 2010, Ofcom
published its decision to impose wholesale must-offer
obligations on Sky (the “WMO Obligations™) for the channels
Sky Sports 1, Sky Sports 2 Sky Sports 1 HD and Sky Sports 2
HD (the "Affected Channels™) The WMO Obligations require
Sky amongst other things, to offer the Affected Channels

on awholesale basis to thurd parties which satisfy vanous
minimum qualifying cnitena (including financial, technical and
security cntena) The WMO Obligations specify maximum
prices that Sky may charge for Sky Sports 1 and/or Sky Sports

2 Under the WMO Obligations the wholesale price 1s inked
te Sky's retaill pnce The WMO Obligations do not specify
amaximum price for Sky Sports 1 HD andfor Sky Sports 2
HD Rather, Sky 1s required to offer these channels on a far,
reasenable and non-discniminatory basis In Apnl 2010 Sky
apphied to the Competition Appeal Tribunal ("CAT™) for a
suspension of the implementation of the WMO Obligations
On 29 Apnil 2010, Sky's apphcation was resolved by way of
an agreed Order from the President of the CAT The terms of
the Order resulted in the suspension of certain aspects of
Ofcom's decision pending the outcome of Sky s substantive
appeal In summary, the effect of the Order 1s as follows

+  Skys required to offer the Affected Channels to each of
BT, Top Up TV and Virgin Medra ("VM™) for distnbution via
Digital Terrestrnal TV and to VWM for distribution wia cable
QOther parties may apply to the CAT to be added to the hst
of persons to whom Sky is required to offer its channels

* Inthe event that BT, Top Up TV or VMenterinto a
distnbution agreement for Sky Sports 1 and/or Sky Sports 2,
the distributor s required to pay Sky the equivalent of the
maximum price Sky may charge for the channel(s) under the
WMO Obligations The difference between that price and
the rate card price set by Sky will be paid into escrow

« Atthe conclusion of Sky s appeal the CAT will determine
the distnbution of the monies held in escrow

On 23 November 2010, the CAT made an agreed Order
extending the implementation of the WMO Cbligationsto a
company called REAL Digital EPG Services Limited inrespect
of distnbution wia DTH satellite

On1June 2010 Sky submitted its appeal against Ofcoms
decision to impose the WMO Obligations on the following
grounds

«  Ofcom had no junsdiction to adopt its deasion under its
sectoral powers

» Ofcom erred In finding that Sky acted on an incentive to
withhold supply of the Channels N

+ Ofcom erred inits assessment of the impact and
proportionality of the WMO Obligations and

+  Ofcom acted unlawfully in imposing the WMO Obligations

The appeal has now been heard at the CAT and judgment 1s
awaited

On 1 August 2010, Ofcom issued a deaision that a term
included in the agreement between Sky and Top Up TV for
the supply of Sky Sports1and Sky Sports 2 to Top Up TV on
WMO terms breached the conditions of Sky s broadcasting
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Review of our business

continued

licences that implement the WMOQ Obligations (the "WMO
Conditions™) Sky submitted two appeals against this decision
on 11 October 2010 and 14 February 2011 respectively These
two appeals were dealt with by wrnitten submissions without a
heanng Judgment of these appeals is also awarted

Sky News

Sky News provides national and international news to viewers in
the UK, Ireland and across the globe The channel s broadcast
unencrypted on Astra satellites (see “Satellites” on page 17} and
distributed to viewers via cable and satellite networks in Europe,
Africa, the Middle East and Asia IL1s also currently shown onmost
cable networks in the UK and Ireland and on DTT as part of the
Freeview offenng in the UK Sky News is also available to viewers
on the Sky News website, Sky News mobile applications, the Sky
News for IPad application and on Sky Go In 2012 Sky News won
the Royal Telewision Society award for both best home news
coverage and best international coverage for its work during the
UK nots and in Libya Special correspondent Alex Crawford was
also named Television Journalist of the Year for the fourth time by
the Royal Televisicn Society and Anna Botting won Best Presenter

In May 2012 Sky News Arabia, the multi-platform 24-hour Arabic
rolling news channel joint venture between Sky and ADMIC was
broadcast for the first time to over 50 millon homes across the
Middle East and North Africa to offer a new and fresh approach
to news across the Arabworld Sky News Arabsa 1s committed

to providing independent news, whatever the story and offers
its audience must-view content from breakmg stores to sport
from business to entertainment. The channel 1s supported by an
Edrtorial Advisory Committee, a first for the region, to ensure Sky
News Aratia delivers balanced accurate and consistent news
Broadcasting from its state of the art headquarters in Abu Dhab,
the charnel promises a ‘new honzon in the way it delivers news
across multiple platforms

OUR ADJACENT BUSINESSES

Overview of our adjacent businesses

In addition to the retaill operations descnbed above we operate
a number of other businesses including whalesaling our channel
portfolio, selhng advertising on durs and partner channels and
Sky Bet. We are able to monetise our content investments more
broadly with these businesses as they benefit from a larger
customer base.

Sky Medha

In frscal 2012 we derved revenue from continuing operations
of £440 million from advertising sales and sponsoership (2071
£458 million). Sky Media sells advertising and sponsorship
across all of the Sky Channels and alsc acts as the advertising
and sponsorship sales representative for more than 63 partner
channels We also sell online advertising across Sky’'s network
of websites, mobite advertising, green-button advertising,
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advertising across Sky's video on demand service and product
placement opportunities

Wholesale Distnbution

Overview of wholesale distribution

In fiscal 2012, we derived £351 million in revenues from

continuing operations from the wholesale distribution of our

channel portfolic (2011 £323 millon) Wholesale operators (see

"Wholesale Operators” section below) acquire the nghts from !
us to distnbute certain of the Sky Channels which they combine
with other channels from third parties and distribute to their
subscnbers

Wholesale Operators

In the UK we have arrangements in place with VM for the re-
transmisston of certamn of the Sky Channels and assoctated on
demand services on Iits cable systems as well as agreements
with British Telecommunications and Top Up TV Limited for

the distribution of Sky Sports 1 and Sky Sports 2via DTT On13
July 2012 we entered into an arrangement with TalkTalk for the
retransmission of certain of the Sky Channels for distribution en
its IPTV system Inlreland we have arrangements in place with
UPC Communications lreland Limited for the re-transmisston of
certain of the Sky Channels to therr subscnbers via its cable and
MMDS systems We also have contracts with a number of smaller
regional cable operators in both the UK and Ireland

Free-to-Atr DTT distnbution

We currently broadcast verstons of three of our channeis Sky ‘
News Challenge and Pick TV unencrypted free-to-arviaDTT In \
the UK

Betting and Gaming

We offer a range of betting and gaming services under the "Sky
Bet , “Sky Poker” “Sky Vegas’ and "Sky Bingo” brands, in relation
towhich Sky acts as bookmaker and operator These products
are licensed by the Alderney Gambling Control Commission

and are made avallable across multiple platforms, including

by means of Sky set-top boxes by telephone, on the internet.
and on mobile devices The gambling business ss certified by
the gambling chanity GamCare and has In place stringent sccial
responsibility measures for the protection of minors and other
vulnerable people We also take active measures to prevent
persons resident In the US and other restncted junsdictions from
participating in our internet gaming and betting services

INFRASTRUCTURE AND TECHNOLOGY

Overview of our infrastructure and technology

Sky utihses a powerful hybrid network to support our leading
tnnovation for customers and deliver a high quality integrated
entertainment experience for our customers The satellite 1s
the most efficent means to broadcast high definition live TV
into the home and the local storage of the HD set-top box gives
customers the added capability of tme-shifted viewing Our
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HD box is Ethernet enabled and connects via broadband to give
customers access to an extensive hbrary of additional content
to view at times convenient to them We have also developed a
range of software apphications that enable access to our content
across muitiple devices and away from the home Developing

and maintaining our technological capabilities s critical to our
commitment to and passion for continued innovation

Satellites

The digital transmissions of our channels for reception both by
DTH customers and cable operators take place using capacity on
a number of satellite transponders on the SES Astra 2A, 2B and
IF satellites and the Eutelsat 28A satellite We contract with SES
Astra for the majonity of this capacity (currently 32 transponders)
and with Arqiva for the remaining capacity (four transponders
on the Eutelsat 28A satellite) In June 2009, we signed along
term transponder arrangement with SES Astra which covers the
renewal of the arrangements on 24 of our transponders Those
transponder agreements have expiry dates between 2019 and
2025 and thus provide long term secunity for the platform As
part of this arrangement we also entered Into an inter-satelite
back-up transponder agreement which provides protection

for all of our SES Astra supplied transponders in the event of
transponder or satellite falures We have been designated a
“non pre-emptible customer’ under each of our transponder
agreements This means that, in the event of satellite or
transponder malfunction, our use of these transponders cannot
be suspended or terminated by SES Astra or Eutelsat in favour
of another broadcaster with pre-emption nghts in preference to
us We have also put in place disaster recovery plans in the event
that we expenence any significant disruption of our transponder
capacity

We consider that these arrangements with SES Astra are
essential to the business of the Group within the meaning of
section M17(5Xc) of the Companies Act 2006

In addition to using some of the transponder capacity that

we have contracted to broadcast Sky Channels some of our
transponder capacity (and in some cases all of the capacity ona
particular transponder) is sub-contracted to third parties for the
transmission of other channels or services including certain of
the Sky Distributed Channels

Playout and uplink faciities

Qur uplinking faciities, located in southern England, provide
uplinking capacity for our digital services to the satellites referred
to above Qur television channels are distributed from two sites
with each of the sites providing backup service for the cther

Digital satellite reception equipment

In order to receive our DTH service, customers are required to
have a digital satellite system which includes a satellite dish
and LNB (low naise block converter) a digital satellite recever
("set-top box ) asmartcard and a remote control We source

all of our set-top boxes from our own manufacturing dwision,
Home Service and Supply Home Senvice and Supply designs,
specifies, develops and sells HD set-top boxes (both PVRs and
standard set-top boxes) (although the actual manufacture of
these set-top boxes 15 outsourced to factones in Romama and
China) and in conjunction with such activities supports the
development of additional new features and functicnality for

those set-top boxes
'

Encryption and secunty

We use VideoGuard conditional access technology to encrypt
and decrypt digital television and audio services and to control
access to certain channels on our DTH platform We use the
VideoGuard technology and distnbute smartcards in the

UK and Iretand under an agreement with NDS NDS supplies
smartcards and undertakes ongoing security development

and other support services in return for the payment of fees

by us In conjunction with NDS, we maintain a policy of refining
and updating the VideoGuard technology in order to restrict
unauthornsed DTH reception of our services We take appropnate
measures to counter the threats of unauthonsed reception
incluching the implementation of over-the-air countermeasures
altering authonised smartcards in a manner which then renders
counterfeit smartcards obsolete and seeking lega! remedies
both cvil and erimimnal reasonably avallable to us We constantly
monitor and review other methods of piracy of our services that
may be developed and where appropnate we deploy counter-
measures to thwart such actvities

Other digital nghts management and/or conditional access
systems are used to protect our content when it 1s distributed
by means of other platforms (e g cable DTT orvia the range of
dewvices relying on Internet-delivery) Where we wholesale our
content these systems will have been deployed and are operated
by the relevant wholesale customer (eg VM or Top Up TV} and
similarty in relation to certain devices (e g. IPhones or Xbox)

the device manufacturer may determine the type of content
protection system deployed

Communications Infrastructure

Qur broadband network comprises a fixed access network,

a public WiFi access network, and a long distance core fibre
network To provide broadband, we rent the copper line to the
customer from BT on regulated terms Those lines are connected
to our own electronic equipment in the local telephone exchange
Our electroric equipment 1s currently sited n 1965 telephone
exchanges, covering an area contamuing 83% of the UKs
population In April 2012, we launched fibre broadband, offening
achoice of up to 38 Mbps or up to 76 Mbps To provide fibre
broadband we purchased a further wholesale product from BT,
which BT i1s again obliged by regulation to supply, which makes
use of BT's electronics in the cabinet before being put onto our
network Our WiFi network The Cloud was made available to all
bro?dband customers onour Unlimited packages in Apnl 2012
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DIRECTORS REPORT - BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business

continued

It provides public WiFi access in over 11000 venues across the

UK The Coud's hotpsots are in the final stages of a migration
onto our own broadband platform using Sky's equipment in local
exchanges and using our broeadband backbone network Qur
core fibre network 1s one of the most extensive all-IP fibre optic
networks inthe UK It comprises 7500 kiometres of high capacity
fibre optic circuits stretching from Cornwall to Scotland This
state of the art network has recently been upgraded to increase
capacity and uses the latest |P Multimedia Subsystem (IMS)
technology

SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

The Companies Act 2006 requires us to disclose the following
significant agreements that take effect alter or terminateon a
change of control of the Company

Premier League

In 2009, British Sky Broadcasting Limited (a group subsidiary)
entered into an agreement (the "PL Licence™ with The Premier
League Limited (the "PL"), pursuant to which the Group was
awarded five of six availlable packages of live audio-visual nghts
for Premier League football (the six packages are together the
“Live Packages™) The PL will not award all of the Live Packages

to a single licensee (erther on its own or as part of a consortium
or through one or more of its related parties) (the "Single Buyer
Rule*) Pursuant to the PL Licence, the PL can suspend and/or
terminate all of the rights which are included in or exercisable as
part of one of the six avalable Live Packages in the event that

a change of control of the Company occurs at any time pnor to
the expiry of the PL Licence which, if it had occurred prior to the
award of the Live Packages to the Group, would have resulted in a
breach of the Single Buyer Rule

In June 2012, following a restructure of the tender process

seven packages of Iive PL nghts for seasons 2013114 to 201516
were offered by the PL The Group successfully secured five of
the seven PL packages (116 live matches per year from 2013114
season) and we will now enter into exclusive negotiations with the
PL to agree the terms of along form agreement which (in relation
to the consequences of a change of control of the Company) Is
expected to be based on the terms of the current PL Licence

Revohling Credit Faciity

The Group has a £743 milion syndicated revohang credit facility
(*RCF)wath a matunty date of 31 October 2016 There are two
opportunities to request an extension of one further year to the
RCF., at the lenders discretion with a potential final matunty of
October 2018 The lenders can require any amounts outstanding
under the RCF to be repaid in the event of a change of control of
the Company (other than in the event that News Corporation or
any subsidiary or holding company thereof acquires such control).
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News Corporation voting agreement

On 21 September 2005 the Company BSkyB Holdco Inc., News UK
Nomnees Limited and News Corporation entered Into a voting
agreement pursuant to which News UK Nominees Limited's
voting rights at any general meeting are capped at 3719% (the
“Voting Agreement”). The provistons of the Voting Agreement
cease to apply inter aha on a change of control of the Company

L
EMTN bond 1ssue
On 3 April 2007 the Group established a Euro medium term note
programme {the "EMTN Programme”) which provides the Group
with a standardised documentation platform to allow for senior
debt issuance in the Eurobond markets The maximum potential
1ssuance under the EMTN Programme s £1 bilon On 14 May 2007,
under the EMTN Programme the Company issued Eurobonds '
consisting of £300 million guaranteed notes paying 6 000%
mterest and maturing on 14 May 2027 (the "Notes™) Pursuant
to the final terms attaching to the Notes, a holder of the Notes
has the option to require the Company to redeem or (at the
Company's option) purchase its Notes at its prncipal amount
plus interest for the relevant perod if there 1s a change of control
of the Company (1) whrch within 90 days of the change of contral,
If the Notes carry an investment grade credit rating results in
a downgrade to a non-investment grade rating or a withdrawal
of that rating or (i} where, if the Notes carry a non-investment
grade rating results in adowngrade by one or more notches or
awthdrawal of that non-investment grade rating, or (In) where,
if the Notes do not carry a credit rating, the Company does not
seek such a rating or 1s unable to achieve such a rating, provided
that In each case, the change of control 1s cited by the ratings
agencies as being the rationale for the downgrade

February 2008 and November 2008 bond i1ssues
In February 2008 the Group entered into an indenture in
respect of US$750 million 6 100% senior unsecured notes due
2018 In November 2008 the Group entered into an indenture In
respect of US$600 miflion 9 500% senior unsecured notes due
2018 Pursuant to the final terms attaching to the secunties a
holder of the securities has the option to require the Company
“to redeem or purchase its secunties at a price equal to 101%
of their pnncipal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest up
to the date of repurchase 1f there is a change of control of the
Company (1) which, If the secunties carry an investment grade
credit rating, results 1n a downgrade to a non-investment grade
rating or awithdrawal of that rating or (0} which, within 90 days
of the change of control, iIf the secunties carry a non-investment.
grade rating, results tn a downgrade by one or more notches or a
withdrawal of that non-investment grade rating, or (u) where if
the secunties do not carry a credit rating the Company does not
seek such arating or 1s unable to achieve such a rating, provided
that in each case, the change of controlis cited by the ratings
agencies as being the rationale for the downgrade
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UK broadcasttng licences

The Group Is party to a number of Ofcom broadcasting icences
for the broadcast of the Sky Channels The Broadcasting Act
1990 (as amended by the Broadcasting Act 1996 and the
Communications Act) lays down a number of restrictions on
those parties permitted to hold Ofcomn broadcasting licences
Among those restricted from holding Ofcom broadcasting
licences or from controlling a hcensed company are (a) local
authonities (b) political bodies, (¢) religious bodies (d) any
company controlled by any of the previous categories or by their
officers or associates, (€) advertising agencies or any company
controlled by such an agency or in which it holds more than a 5%
Interest, Licensees have an ongoing obligation to comply with
these ownership restnctions Failure by alicensee to do so (either
by the licensee becoming a "disqualified person” or any change
affecting the nature characteristics or control of the licensee
which would have precluded the original grant of the licence) may
constitute a breach of the licence and, if not rectsfied could result
n revocation of the icence

Ofcom also has a duty under the Broadcasting Acts to be
satisfied that any person holding a broadcasting licence 1s fit
and proper to hold those licences and may revoke those hcences
if it ceases to be so satisfied On 9 March 2012 Ofcom stated
that it 15 continuing to gather and assess evidence as part of its
ongoing assessment of whether Sky s fit and proper to hold s
broadcasting licences

HOW WE DO BUSINESS

Sky 1s part of the everyday iives of millions of people in the UK
and Ireland and has an unparalleled opportunity to ensure our
impact on seciety 13 a positive one By connecting people to the
wider world we can inspire action that makes a difference to the
communities where we live and work

This also helps us to be a better business by building our brand
and our reputation We want to be known for being a great
company to do bustness with for making a positive contribution
to UK and Insh society and for being a great place to work

Sky's Ways of Worlung

We never forget that people make a choice when they buy our
products or watch our programmes We pay as much attention

to the way we do business as we do to the quality of the services
we offer We make sure that everyone at Sky understands how we
do business by communicating our expectations of them through
our code of conduct called Sky's Ways of Working. This defines
our commitment to our customers colieagues, shareholders,
business partners and the broader community clearly setting out
ourvalues as a business

Qur role n society
As a broadcaster our primary rofe in society is to entertain
inform and inspire the millions of people that access our services

Commercial success comes from delivering what our customers
want

Sky plays a key role in making the telewiston sector more
competitive In the UK and Ireland, offenng quality choice and
maore great viewing expenences at affordable prices Cur award-
winning Sky News provides non-stop independent current
affairs coverage and world-class journalism The nature and
documentary channels we distribute give viewers a bigger
window on their world And through sports, movies arts and
onginal drama, we deliver content that gives people of all
interests and backgrounds the chance te indulge and share their
passions

This means that beyond providing simply entertainment, we are
changing the cultural landscape of the UK and Ireland, enabling
our viewers to access more diverse high quality informative and
Inspiring centent than ever before

The creative industnes are one of Britamns key economic
strengths Sky s a central part of this We make a huge
contribution to the growth and success of this sector in the
UK Sky I1s the UK's biggest commeraal invester in TV content,
spending over £2 billion a year two-thirds of whichis in the UK

Qur investment

Sky is amongst the most inncvative broadcasters in the world,
dnving the advance of media and communications technology
inthe UK and Ireland A pioneer of multi-channet television we
have also been at the forefront of the rollout of high-speed
broadband digital and HD television and now 3D TV

Since 2000 Sky has invested some £3 2 bilion in the media and

communications infrastructure n the UK and Ireland helping to

lay the foundations of a modern service economy This makes us
one of the largest technology Investors in these countries

In 2012, a study by Oxford Economics estimated Sky's success to
have resulted m a contnbution of £5 4 bithon to the UK economy
in 2011 This 1s equivalent to around 40% of the contnbution
made by the entire UK television and radio creative sector Qur
operations resulted in £941 million being paid in taxation in that
year to the UK government and we provided emplayment for

22 800 (direct and full-time contract) people with thousands
more suppliers and business partners Jobs depending on our
operations

A RESPCNSIBLE BUSINESS DAY TO DAY

At Sky we recognise that doing the right thing in our day-to-
day operations 1s vital This s how we build trust among our
customers, employees, suppliers and the wider community We
do this through our products senices and programming, our
posttive actions In the communities where we live and work,
our partnerships with our supplhers and the steps we take to
mnimise our environmental impact
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DIRECTORS REPORT - BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of our business

continued

Customers

We put our customers at the heart of everything we do We
a1m to continue to provide products that people want at an
affordable price and to back this up with excellent customer
service

Great service delivery

Delvering great service 1s critical to keeping our customers for
the long term We do this by making 1t easy for them to interact
with us onfine or on the phone We ensure our products are
reliable and we deliver high levels of service when our customers
contact us

We have focused on enabling our customers to get in touchwith
us 1n multiple ways Our Iive chat capability 1s now at scale and
our customer help forum attracts over 1 million thread views
each week Online s alsa now our leading channel for new sales
and product upgrades We have made it easy for customers to
self-serve for basic services such as resetting a PIN or changing
payment details and they can do this online, on mobile or through
automated voice services

We know that great service comes from having great products

By brninging the design and control of our set-top box in house,
we ve driven efficiencies in cost and improved rehability This

alsa ensured we were able to maintam supply following the Thar
floods 1n 201 which impacted global supply of hard disk drives
Our engineers are trained to provide a top quality end-to-end
service In the home and as a result we have seen a 30% reduction
N service visits, the lowast level for over eight years

Over the past year we have expanded our customer management
centres from Scotland, Stockport, London and Leeds, opening In
Sheffield and Newcastle and creating over 1200 new customer
service jobs We will open our Dubhn centre later this year to
locally serve customers in Ireland As well as employing local
people we have invested aver 700,000 hours in training all
customer-facing staff to deliver high quality service

Our commitment to getting it nght first tme has resulted ina
50% reduction in our call waiting times

We use a range of mechanisms to gather feedback from our
customers to help improve the services and products that we
offer them In November 2011 Ofcom rated Sky number1in the
UK for overall customer service for fixed broadband, pay TV and
landliine services

We want our customers to enjoy and value our products and
senvices We provide honest and accurate information and if a
customer 1s disappointed or unhappy, we listen and take their
concerns senously We know that sometimes things go wrong
and when this happens we work to get issues fixed as fast as
possible If a customer wants to complain about our services we
tell them how to do g0 and try to resolve theirr complamt quickly
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We moniter the effectiveness of our approach and inresults
published in June 2012 by Ofcom Sky was the best performing
of all pay TV companies with only 3 complaints to Ofcom per
100000 custemers

Data protection

Customers trust us with their personal details and we make
sure that this information is kept confidential and secure We
have clear data protection policies and comphance processes
Our Data Governance Committee, chaired by a member of our
Executive team, promotes best practice in the way we handle
personal data and helps to ensure complhiance with relevant
legislation We provide training for our people so that they
understand ther responsibilities in relation to the protection of
information and who to contact should they have any questions

Over the year Sky was not found in breach of any data protection
laws and was not subject to any enforcement notices or court
proceedings with regards to data protection A small number

of complaints regarding Sky were sent to the regulator over

the year and they were all resolved without the Information
Commussioner's Office taking formal action Further, we
successfully implemented the new requirements for monthly
logging and reporting of data breaches to the Information
Commussioner’s Office in July 20T

Access for all

It 1s iImportant to us that our products and services can be
enjoyed by everyone, including those with disabilities We have a
comprehensive approach to bullding accessibility into our core
products services and customer support channels because we
know the important role that telewsion and communications play
in connecting those with disabilities to each other and to the
wider world

For people with visual impairments we provide audio description
on 26% of our programming significantly exceeding the 10% now
required by Ofcom For deaf and hard-of-hearing customers,

we offer over 400000 hours of subtithng per year and we

invest in the development of quality sign-language-presented
programming through our support of the British Sign Language
Broadcasting Trust. The table below shows the total average
quotas and performance of Sky's access service provision on five
care channels
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Access service provision against Ofcom requirements®

2000m 2omn2
Kay performance Annual Annyal
indicator Quota Achieved Quota Achieved
Subtithng™ (%) 60 68 70 74
Audio
Description™ (%) 10 7 10 26
Nates

{1} 20112 data is mndependently essured by Delortte LLP and can be viewed online
at www sky com/thebiggerpicture

(1) average across Sky News Sky 1 Sky Sports 1 Sky Sports News and Sky Movies
Premrer

(1) average across Sky 1 Sky Sparts Tand Sky Movies Premuer Sky News and Sky
Sports News are exempt

Over the year, we continued to improve how we support

customers with disabilities through completing detalled user-

testingwith blind and partially-sighted customers on our EPG

and our Accessibility Website, as well as first of Its kind research

to understand how our customers with disabilities would like

to see us Improve our accessibility offenng in the future Our

engagement with disability stakeholders has also seen Sky sign

up tothe Employers Forum on Disability Accessibility Charter

Child safety

Keeping children safe 1s an important issue for our customers

We make sure parents and customers have the tools to protect
their children when watching Sky TV and using Sky Broadband

On our television platform we continue to provide market-leading
parental contre! technology which includes the ability to set

a bespoke watershed or restnct access to specific channels
altogether Likewise every broadband customer can take up
parental controls on their home computer free for as long as they
want them and we provide advice and support on how customers
can protect themselves and their families on www skycom

Over the last year, Sky has actively engaged with government and
interested parties around online safety issues We contributed
to the Balley Review on the Commerciahsation and Sexualisation
of Children and, along with relevant stakeholders, co-authored
the UK s first Code of Practice for child internet safety We are
contmuing to work collaboratvely to deliver against this Code
while also exploring other ways to help empower parents further
to keep therr children safe when using the internet.

Responsible betting and gaming

Al Sky we are all about entertainment. Many people enjoy

the excitement that comes with placing a bet on a sport they
love, And with online gaming people can connect with agreat
community of players wha share their passion for challenge and
fun We know we need to provide these services in away that
encourages responsible gambling so that we ensure that Sky
Betting & Gaming Is a successful business

Tools such as deposit limits on accounts help our customers
stay in control of their gambling. We make filtering software
available so that parents can prevent children accessing

gambling websites We are proud that all our senaces are
Gamare accredited, one of a number of independent chantable
organisations with whom we work closely, who offer confidential
help and support to our customers And in 20T Sky Betting &
Gaming was named Socially Responsible Operator of the Year

at the 5th International Gaming Awards in recognition of our
commitment to delivering the highest standards for customer
protection

Programmng

We're proud of our track-record as a responsible broadcaster For
over twenty years, we have brought choice and innovation to UK
audiences

Editonal practices

We are committed to mantaining the highest editonal standards
with our news channels governed by strong editorial controls
that ensure henest, Independent and accurate journalism Dunng
the year we concluded a review of editonal practices at Sky

News finding no evidence of iImpropriety Separately the Audit
Committee reviewed the Company’s approach to two separate
Investigations undertaken by Sky News in which a Sky News
Journalist accessed the email of indviduals suspected of criminal
activity Following a thorough review of each of those cases Sky
is satisfied that the action was justified n the public interest and
subject to proper editonal oversight,

Advertising and marketing

Qur Sales and Marketing Code of Practice outhnes specfic
required behaviours for all staff in their sales and marketing
dealings with customers Adherence to these important policies
1s overseen by senior managers and our internal compliance
team through mystery shopping, site visits, and penodical call
recordings In our sales operations alone more than 8,000
evaluations are completed by managers and the Sales Quality
Team each month

Copynght

We have invested billons of pounds in high-quality
entertainment for our customers because we know how much
our customers value It. It s therefore important that companies
like ours do what they can, alongstde the Government and the
rest of the media and technology industries, to help protect their
copynight. Such protection makes sure that consumers continue
to benefit from TV programmes mowvies and music both now and
in the future This means taking effective action against online
piracy and copynght infnngement.

Environmental impact

We constantly work to reduce the environmental impact of our
day-to-day operations We have been focusing on tackling chmate
change since 2005 and 1n 2009 we set ten challenging targets to
reduce our impact and inspire action through our programming
and our partnerships
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Review of our business

continued

Improving our efficiency

Our performance aganst two of our targets 15 reproduced
below and all ten targets and our performance against them
can be viewed at www sky com/environment Over the last year
our absolute gross emissions fell by 10% despite Sky continuing
to grow as a business This represents a 31% reduction in gross
CO,e emissions per £m revenue against our 2008/09 basetine,
set when we established our targets This exceeds our target of
a 25% reduction by 2020 We have cut total energy consumption
(TEC) by 29% 11 Sky*HD boxes, effectively achieving our target

Our performance against key environment targets

Key perfomance

indicator Target 2009M0%  2010/M® 20mn2%
Change in total gross

tonnes of COe

emissions per £m

revenue ($) -25 -B -21 -31
Change tn total

energy consumption

of newty installed

Sky'HD boxes (%)™ -30 -29 =29 -29

Notes

() 201112 data s ndependently assured by Deloitte LLP and can be viewed aniine
at www sky com/thebiggerpicture

(#) performance relative to base year 2008/09

(1) target s to reduce 25% of CO @ enussions (tonnes/Em revenue) by 2020

(v) histonc data is recalculated each year i line with the latest Guidehnes to Defra/
DECC s Greenhouse Gas Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and
re-stoted accordingly

(v) tamet was to reduce total energy consumption by 30% by 2012

(v) -29% was the maximum efficiency achievable for this model of the set top box
effectively meeting cur target

Our total gross COe emissions®

Key performance
indicator Baseline 200910 20100 20mn2

Total gross CO.¢
emissions (tC0 gy 107215 105N 109042 97904

Notes

(1} 20112 data s independently assured by Defoitte LLP and can be viewed onltne
at www sky com/thebiggerpicture

() tistonc data is recaicuiated each year in kne with the Jatest Guidelnes to Defra/
DECC 5 Greenhouse Gas Camversion Factors for Company Reporting and
re-stated accordingly

(1) 0O, ennssions including emissions from premises and company awned
vehicles (Scape 1 and 2}

Curimprovements in efficiency reflect the long-term nvestments

we have made in our buildings, fleet and travel, and s reflected

in Sky's retention of The Carbon Trust Standard and inclusion

in the Carbon Disclosure Project s Leadership Index Alongside

these, we continue to reduce our reliance on fossi fuels through

our installation of on-site renewable energy This year we

commissioned our Combined Cooling Heat and Power plant

and have completed construction of our wind turbine These

contnbute to heating cooling and powenng Sky Studics, our

broadcasting facility The remaning electricity 1s purchased from

renewable sources

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BRITISH S¥ Y BROADCASTING GROUP PLC
n

Our fleet 1s renewed regularly and as part of this we continually
purchase more efficent vans However, curreritly there 1s no wable
low emissions alternative avatlable and so our focus 1s on reducing
the emissions within our control To do this we have installed
telematics 1nto all our vehudes and incentmsed our engineers to
drive efficiently We will continue to actively encourage the industry
to develop low emission alternatives through collaboration with
other businesses through membership of the UK Corporate
Leaders Group on Cimate Change and the Aldersgate Group We
have improved customer satisfaction through better customer
service and more reliable products also reducing engineer visits
and our environmental impact.

Sky remains compliant with the environmental regulations that

apply to our business and shows best practice by going beyond \
the minimum requirements wherever possible We chair the EU ‘
Voluntary Agreement on energy efficiency of complex set-top

boxes and we maintain a fully managed service for the return,

repair and recychng of Sky's set-top boxes

We have now realised the majority of the opportunities to reduce
the absolute total emissions resulting from the day-to-day
operations and we of fset the remainder through the purchase of
hegh quality carbon offsets

As a result of meeting our targets we have reviewed our
environment strategy, setting ourselves further goals that will
result In even fewer impacts, better more sustainable products
and inspire our customers to take action on environment 1Issues
Our new targets can be found at www sky com/thetiggerpicture

Qur products and services

We are also increasing our focus onhelping our customers to
reduce therr Impacts on the environment. To extend the reach and
impact of auto standby on all set-top boxes, we have upgraded our
software so that all nactive boxes switch to standby durng the
day as well as overnight Our HD digibox further leads the way In
energy efficiency with a passive standby of V2 watt.

This year we carmed out an assessment of our latest set-top box to
understand its environmental impact from dessgn, build, use and
end of life This highlighted the important role we have in helping
our customers save energy so, along with improving the efficency
of our set-top box, we are designing energy efficiency into the
heart of all our products induding our energy smart Sky Wifi Hubs
which change to low power when they are not connected

We also recognise that the media industry faces specific
challenges in reduging its environmental footpring from creating
new programmes To address these, we have joined BAFTAS
Albert Sustainability Working Group, creating the Albert
Production Carbon Calculator alongside the BBC 1TV and a '
number of production companies We are leading the way across
our industry in promoting sustainable production integrating the
carbon calculator into the commissioning process of a number of
our new productions
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Suppliers

Our business relies on strong relatienships with a wide range of
suppliers and distributors We build preductive fair and etiucal
relationships with them, based on our shared dnive for continuous
improvement We expect our supphers to deliver a high-quality
sennce and provide good value for money, as well as maintain the
highest ethical standards and comply with all relevant laws and
regulations

We recognise that working with our suppliers helps us improve
our performance and also helps them to improve We continue
to embed our Responsible Sourcing Principles threughout our
supply chaim and in 201112 we incorporated our Responsible
Sourcing Questionnaire tnto our central procurement process
This helps to give us greater visibility of the social ethical and
environmental iImpacts of the production and supply of products
and services to Sky and enables us to support our suppliers to
reduce these

We have also been working with our top 50 suppliers to help
them measure and manage their carbon impact which also helps
us to reduce ours Through participating in the Carbon Disclosure
Project’s Supply Chain Programme 201, we know that alf our top
suppliers are taking action to reduce their emissions and we are
engaging with a number of them to help them with their carbon
reporting, We are also working with our suppliers to embed
features that save energy and use less resource Into the up-front
design of our core products

Commumty Action

Making a positive contribution in our local communities 1s
important to us and encouraging Sky people to get involved
makes us an employer of choice We support the growth of our
local communities by offering oppertunities for young people to
tearn about a range of careers at Sky improving young people’s
skills and aspirations Through our on the ground initiatives with
our chanty partners we bring our focus on environment, sport
and arts to life

Sky people are able to get involved through volunteenng and
malking donations, maximising the reach and impact that

we are able to make This year we have worked with our core
partners to actively expand our reach reflecting changes in the
regional structure of our business and ensuring we are offering
oppoertunities for all Sky people to get involved wherever they
are based across the UK and Ireland We have worked with new
partners such as Sport Inspired, a social enterprise that aims

to bring communities and in particular young people together
through taking part in large scale community based sporting
events Since October 201, over 400 Sky volunteers have
supported 2,000 school students at these events And over the
past year a total of 1,630 Sky people have volunteered ther ume
to hetp make a difference

Our employees can make tax-free donations to any UK registered
charity of their choice directly from their salary and we give

an extra S0p for every £1donated We also support employee
fundraising with pound-for-pound matching up to £300f
fundraising as an indmdual, or £1,000 if fundraising as part of a
team of two or more Sky people This year an average of 797 Sky
people per month gave to charities of thew choice through the
payroll

INSPIRING ACTION

As a Company we Believe in Better Using innovative technology
and great content we connect, entertain, nform and inspire

our customers our people and wider stakeholders Through our
presence In the everyday lives of millions of peopte in the UK and
Ireland we extend our reach beyond the screen to make a positive
Impact on seciety

We focus our waork in four of the areas that we re passionate
about - inspiring our pecple and customers to protect the
environment Inspinng and improving lives through sport, inspinng
and enabling creativity through the arts, and inspiring and raising
the aspirations of young people in schools

Environment

At Sky we believe that the effect of a changing cimate 1s one of
the most important issues facing our society We want to inspire
our customers and our people to reduce their impact on the
planet. We do this through Sky Rainforest Rescue our partnership
with WWE to help save a bilion trees in the Amazon rainforest By
partnering with WWF we are helping customers to dotherrbit to
tackle tropical deforestation the biggest contributor to global
warming

We reached our fundraising target of £2 millien by June 2012
which Sky has matched pound-for-pound to a total of £4 million
well ahead of our three year target. We now have over 34,000
supporters We are reducing current levels of deforestation in
Acre, a state in Brazil by making the forest worth more alive than
dead to local communities We have recruited over 1000 families
into the government s land voluntary certification scheme and
are helping to identify new market opportunities for sustainable
forest products hike rubber

Funds raised for Sky Rainforest Rescue®

Key performance

indicator Target 200810 2010Mm 20mn2
Total donations since

the launch of Sky

Ranforest Rescue in

2009 (£)« 2million 335000 790000 2000000
Notes
(1) 201112 data i independently assured by Deloitte LLP and ¢an be viewed eniine

at www sky com/thebiggerpictisre

(u} cumulatieyear onyeor
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Review of our business

continued

Qver the year we have focused on reaching new audiences to
raise the issue of deforestation We supported WWF's global
initiative Earth Hour broadcasting a weekend of dedicated
environmentally-focused programming, premiening the stunning
new documentary Secret Life of the Rainforest on Sky 3D, which
takes viewers up close tolife in the rainforest

In November 201, London s Somerset House launched a

brand new exhibrtiocn AMAZON n aid of Sky Rainforest Rescue,
displaying images by top photographers Sebastido Salgado and
Per-Anders Pettersson, which emphasised the urgent need to
tackle deforestation The exhibition also travelled to Oublin and
receved over 20,000 wisitors

We are also helping people to learn about environmental issues
i interactive ways Our Sky Rainforest Rescue Pod an interactive
virtual rainforest, travelled to Sky-supported UK events such

as the Hay Festival and has been installed at four Forestry
Commisston sites [t allows wisitors to learn about the people of
the Amazon, their culture and ivehhoods, and the threat that
deforestation poses for current and future generations We also
work to guide, educate and empower 8 - 14 year old students and
staff to take action to help protect precious rainforests through
Sky Rainforest Rescue Schools Challenge This interactve online
programme Is now In its second year with 287 schodds actively
participating mn the challenge since 1t started

In July 201 Sky’s professional cycling team Team Sky raised
awareness of the campaign through changing their blue cycling
kit to green for the 2011 Tour de France and we broadcast pro-
riders talking about Sky Rainforest Rescue

As a result of the fundraising efforts of all of our supporters, we
are extending the campaign for another three years to focus on
promoting sustainable alternatives to deforestation and using
our position as a broadcaster and media company to drive even
greater awareness in the UK and Ireland

Sport

Sport 15 at the heart of what we do at Sky and we believe in its
power to improve Ives We give our customers a wealth of sport
on TV online and on-the-go and the breadth of coverage goes
well beyond the nation’s biggest sports That programming

and investment helps to fund and promote these sports and

get more people watching and playing We also work with the
governing bodies, our long-term partners, using our reach and the
power of the Sky Sports brand to encourage more people to get
involved

We believe that sport has a critical role In iInspinng people to
make a positive change in therr Ives This year we reviewed and
improved Sky Sports Living for Sports, our partnership with the
Youth Sports Trust to help 11 to 16 year olds buikd hfe skills and
confidence We responded to feedback from our stakeholders,
introducing more athlete mentor visits and encouraging mere
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schools to sign up through promotion on Sky Sports As a result, ‘
there was Increased demand from schools and in 201112, 868 ‘
schools participated 16% above our target of 750 schoels and \
mere than twice the number for the previous year Since 2003,
we have worked with over 2 650 secondary schools and helped
around 50 000 young people

In partnership with Bnitish Cycling, we have continued to make
excellent, progress towards our goal of getting one million more
people cychng regularly by 2013 with 688,000 new people
becoming regular cyclists since the launch of our partnershipin
2009

Improving lives through cycling®

Key performance
Indicator

Number of new
people cyeling
_regularly by 2013%

Notes

(1) 20112 data is independently assured by Defartte LLP and can be wiewed online
at www sky com/thebiggerpicture

()} number of new people cychng on average once a month or 12 timesayearasa
result of Sky s imtigtives

(i) cumuiative year on year

Target 200910™  2010/11%) 201112

1 mill:on 92000 376000 688000

Now in its fourth year our partnership offers a number of ways for
people of all ages and abilities to get on ther bikes and have fun In
20M, we expanded our Sky Ride programme to 17 events in14 cities,
providing traffic free streets for cyclists to enjoy and attracting
over 200000 participants We have been developing our strategy
to increase the opportunities for people to get on their bikes
across the UK, running 17 events in 17 aties in 2012 and connecting
people with their local communities through Sky Ride Local, Breeze
Bike Rides for women and through faunching social cyding groups
We also saw even more Sky people get involved through our Sky
staff events, nde to work schemes and on-site facilities

The success of elite nders helps to inspire people to get involved
Since Team Sky hit the road in 2010, our professional road cycing
team has gone from strength and strength as it has pursued

its bold ambition to wan the Tour de France and make more

fans of cycling The teams success, positive profile and attitude
have been a catalyst for people of all ages to get involved We
continue to support the elite GB team - induding men and
women Olympians and Paralymptans - so that we contribute to
maintaining Bntam's outstanding record of success

in 2011, Sky and Brniush Cycling commissiened a report from the
London Schoal of Economics charting, for the first time the
extent of cycling s contrnibution to the British economy The
report shows considerable evidence of increasing participation
1n cychng, with events such as Sky Ride contributing This
participation also brings broad soco-economic benefits such
as a £2 9 bilhon total contrnibution to the UK economy a28%
increase i volume of cyde sales in 2010, over £500m generated
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inwages and £100m in taxes from 23,000 empioyed directly

in bicycle sales distnbution and the maintenance of cycling
infrastructure and health benefits saving the economy £128m per
year in reducing absenteeism The report demonstrates where
cyding 15 now and where it has the potential to go with the right
support delivening benefits that everyone can enjoy

In 20M, we added to ourinvestment in sporting talent, with the
announcement m November of our new Sky Sports Scholarships
scheme, which supports 11 of the UK and treland’s most exating
athletes to help them fulfil thewr potential on the mternational
stage and prepare them for Iife in the spothght.

We also know that the future of sport is dependent on the many
people that give their time and expertise at grassroets level We
continue to support the Engtand and Wales Cricket Board (ECB)
to develop the long-term heatth of the game through training
more coaches at all levels of the sport. Since its faunch in 2006,
the Sky Sports ECB Coach Education Programme has awarded
over 45,000 new coaching qualifications to people who are now
working across the country to develop the next generation of
players

Arts

At Sky, we believe that the arts play an essential role sn the cultural
Iife of a nation which 15 why Sky Arts 1s a leading supporter of

the arts in the UK and Ireland To do this, we make a multi-rmllion
pound mvestment each year to showcase the best of the arts from
the UK and Ireland and across the world both on-screen for our
customers and on the ground for everyone to enjoy

Innovative arts partnerships are crucial to the vitality of the arts
scene across the UK and Ireland in 2011 we launched the Sky
Arts Igrition Senies which will see us collaborate with six arts
organisations in the creation of new ground-breaking art works,
projects, events and performances For each of these chosen
projects Sky Arts provides direct investment of up to £200 000
as well as working with the arts partners to bning their projects
to life through Sky’s innovative technology including broadcast
and online oppertunities From our first application round in 201
we are partnering with Tate Liverpool on an exciting new public
art commission by renowned contemporary artist Doug Aitken
opening in September 2012, as part of the Liverpool Biennial

The Sky Arts Igntion Futures Fund 1s designed to help emerging
talent working Invisual art, theatre performance art music,
dance or iterature to boost their careers as working artists

Each year Sky Arts provides five promising young people with
bursaries of £30 000 altowing them time to focus on creating a
new work while also receving mentoring from Sky to help develop
ther commercial skills and knowledge Sky Arts had over1500
applications in the first year alone

To help support the arts we toured the UK and Ireland to
raise awareness of our Sky Arts Ignition Senes and were

very encouraged by the feedback with over 65% of the arts
organisations who attended agreeing that the Sky Arts Ignition
Series was very beneficial for the arts industry

We have continued our investment in books through our
partnerships with four leading Iiterary festivals contributing

to their growth and sustainability and bringing the festival
expenence to those unable to attend through our broadcast
coverage As well as taking the Book Show on the road, filming
exclusive episodes in front of live festival audiences we continued
to offer festwval goers free creative classes and inspiring
performances in the Sky Arts Den Over the year there were
77624 wisits by people at our on-the-ground actvities in the Den

Engagement with Sky Arts activiies on the ground®

Key performance indicator 200910 20106 201nn2
Number of visits to Sky Arts

actmties on the ground at UK

book festivals 28348 63142 77624

Notes
(1) 20112 data 1s independently assured by Deloitte LLP and can beviewed onhne
at www sky com/thebrggerpicture

We also want to ensure that we support and develop regional
arts organisations Since 2004 we have partnered with over 60
organisations to help promote their work to our customers and
make them more accessible offering over 1,200 low cost tickets
to the public over the last two years

Schools

This year we have had an even bigger focus on the work we do
in schools to build life skills and raise aspirations over the next
three years

We are building on the work that we already do with our

local primary and secondary schools in West London, Leeds

and Scotland through volunteenng, mentoring and offering
opportunities to learn about the media through work
placements We are also using our experience in developing
initiatives that we know make a difference for young people such
as Sky Sports Living for Sport and Sky Ramnforest Rescue Schools
Challenge to create even greater opportunities

One of the ways we will do this 1s through our newly constructed
Sky Skills Studios which we have been working on over the past
year Opening its doors in 2012, Sky Skills Studios 1s a unique
{earning experience that helps to build life skills and raise
aspirations of young people across the UK Students age 8to18
will have the chance to tour our studios and then work with our
state of the art technology mcluding broadcast quality cameras
green screens and touch screen edit tables, to make thesrvery
own television report on subjects they are studying at school

PEOPLE

We aim to attract and select the best people and provide
opportunities so that everyone can fulfill their potential We work
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Review of our business

continued

hard to create a great place to work and bulld an open culture
that rewards and recognises good performance

Developing our People

Our people s performance 15 the key driver of our growth and
success We pravide many opportunities for employees to build
their careers and offer a wade range of development and skills
training through face to face training or through our online
facility the Sky Development Studio

Throughout last year we carned out comprehensive traiming

for our contact centre staff Over 10000 employees have been
trained in awide range of skills and over 800 managers have
been through a series of management traiming sessions and
events We have also invested in providing an accredited training
programme for our sales advisors in association with the Institute
of Customer Service On completion our employees receive a
certificate in selling, comphance and customer service The first
graduation of employees was held in March

Providing easy access and flexible development options I1s an
engoing priority and this year we opened our online Development
Studio to our outsource contact centre partners enablhing their
9000 advisors to gain access to our e-learning suite

The Development Studio has had 363 000 visits this year More
than 240000 e4earning courses have been accessed viathe
Development Studio up 50,000 on the last full financial year
118 000 development days have been undertaken this year We
were pleased to win the UK E-learning award for outstanding
achievement

We have continued to build strong leadership capability of our
senior team through traiming and the introduction of leadership
surveys which provide direct feedback to managers from their
teams This year, we apportioned an element of the senior
managers’ annual bonus to their performance in this area

We introduced a senies of "master classes” which focused on
delivering Sky s Leadership behaviours and values and introduced
a new programme for the most senior managers and directors
in comunction with Henley Business School This1s aimed at
broadening thinking and strengthening collaboration across the
Group

Providing job opportunities for new entrants and career moves
for our employees i1s important to us and this year we were able
to provide over 2 000 completely new job opportunities over a
wide range of functions but specafically in our service areas and
our technology function We have instigated more internal moves
and job rotations for our existing employees to encourage the
development of a broader skills base Our regular succession
planning process now focuses on increasing internal job mobility
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Investing in Future Talent and Youth

This year we increased our graduate intake by 40% with graduate
placements across a range of job disciplines In addition this

year we created a *Software Academy” to bulld our internal pool
of future talent in technology So far we have employed over

50 technology graduates who are now making an immediate
contribution to our strategic software development programmes
This year our Skygraduates com website was recognised as the
Best Employer website at the Recruitment Advertising Design
awards

Work placements offer an opportunity for Sky to contnbute to
the development and experience of young people, particularty
those who may struggle to get into the industry The placement
programme offers a taste of what working at Sky 1s like This

year we increased the number of opportunities to over 500
placements These incude placements that last from 1week to
10 months We work in conjunction with focal schools and groups
that are focused on prowniding opportunities to those from ethnic
minorities

We have ambitious plans to improve and expand our proposition
for youth employment this year to build on our success in this
area and become the employer of cheice for young people

.

Making Sky a great place to work

Because our aim Is to make Sky a great place to work, 1t s vital
that we are in touch with what our employees think about our
Company Employee engagement 1s a good indicator of how our
employees feel about Sky so to measure this we run a "People
Survey” every year Last year we did this through an external
provider, Towers Watson thereby allowing us to benchmark
ourselves against other UK companies

The proportion of our people participating in the survey was high
(83%) compared with external benchmarks and showed a high
level of employee engagement

As well as reaching a high performance indicator for employee
engagement (87%, up one point from last year on a like for ike
basis) compared with other blue-chip compantes we performed
above the benchmark in 9 of the 13 categories we measured We
did particularly well in the categories of reward and recognition
brand and customer focus, performance and development and
corporate social responstbility

Benchmarking has also helped us prioritise activity In support
of our overall employment proposition We have also introduced
“pulse” surveys every four months to allow us to monitor

the orgarusation continuously so we can keep in touch with
employees views all year round
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The following are key performance indicators that we derve from
the results of ocur surveys

% of employees who
Statement agree with the statement,
“I fully support Sky's strategy and goals” 88%
*lunderstand how my work contnbutes to
Sky's business objectives” 88%
“lam willing to go the extra mile to help
Sky succeed” 94%

Having open and transparent communications throughout the
busmess 1s important to us Our Sky Forum plays a significant
role in this The Sky Forum 1s ateam of 80 elected employee
representatives from across the business They meet several
times a year to discuss awide range of business 1ssues and

to provide Input that helps Sky to continuously iInnovate and
improve the way that we do things The national meetings are
attended by the most senior executives of the Company

We are always conscious that we need to give our people the
fight tools they need for the Jjob This year we've continued to
west In workplace technology to help people work more flexibly
and collaborate easily with colleagues across the business We
have gven people new lap-tops with software that enables wideo
conferencing direct from the PC and have installed WIF) networks
across our bulldings We continue to invest in new technology
which helps everyone be more efficient in their jobs For instance
secure access to our corporate network 1s now significantty easter
when our people are out and about

Dwversity

We recognise the importance of representing the communities
around us on and off screen Diversity and inclusion forms one
of the key p:'llars of our People plan As part of the plan we have
estabhshed

«  ADwersity Communications Board which is responsible for
overseeing delvery against the diversity and inclusion ptan

» A Company wide diversity and inclusion training and
education programme .

+ A comprehensive review and update of our recrutment
channels and processes

This year we won the Women of the Future Corporate Award 201
and we are active 1n our work with a number of organisations
such as Stonewall and the Creative Diversity Network We have
also developed and funded a number of programmes that

aim to encourage diversity such as our work with the Mama
Youth Project through which we provide paid placements

with production companies to youth from underprivileged
backgrounds

Through the Diversity Commurications Board we are able to
unite our efforts on and off screen This was demonstrated inthe
work that we did for International Women's Day 2012 where we
showcased female talent on air throughout the week and hosted
an internal event featunng semor female talent at Sky The focus
on diversity 1s beginning to have a real impact on life at Sky and
we are continuing to build momentum particularly in our focus
areas of female representation in senior positions and Black
Asian and Minority Ethnic representation more generally

Sky 1s an equal opportunities employer and we believe that everyone
should have full and farr consideration for all vacancies prometions,
training and development. Should an employee become disabled
during their emplayment with the Company where possible, we

will actively re-train and adjust therr ervironment to allow them

to maximise their potential Over the course of the year, we have
partnered with various not-for-profit organisations with the aim of
prawding more opportunities for people with disabilities.

Health, Safety & Wellbeing

The health safety and wellbeing of all our people 1s of paramount
importance to us wherever and whenever they work for us and
whatever they are doing

We take a holistic approach to keeping Sky a safe place to work
so whilst acadent prevention and safety training is a pnionty the
long-term wellbeing of our people 1s equally mportant.

Our Occupational Health service supports our people to stay
productive and healthier with a range of support and facilities
to help keep people healthy Enhancements this year include
the launch of “Shift Into Sports” (in conjunction with the Fitness
Industry Association) which brings together awide range of
discounts and offers on gym membership and other fitness
initiatives for shift-workers who may find it more difficult to
access faciities due towork rotas Sky, as the first company to
participate with the FIA on a UK wide basis, played an important
role 1n the launch of this intuative nationally

Recognition and reward

There are a number of recognition schemes across the Company
that provide us with the opportunity te reward and recognise
employees who have provided exceptional customer senace or
have gone the extra mite in delivening their normal day to day
duties Inaddition we continue to run an annual Corporate Scheme
called “Believe in Better” that rewards outstanding achievernent.
This year the awards had a record numbser of nominations wath over
3,000 people and around 700 teams being nonunated

This year the Free Share award that we gave staff in 2009 to
celebrate Sky's 20th anniversary vested with more than10 500
staff receving a share bonus worth around £700 each

This year and last, we held “Sky Fest”, a 2 day music and
entertainment event for all cur employees and their families
Events took place in both Osterley and Edinburgh. All the events
were highly successful and approximatety 20 000 pecple attended
This 15 a huge event and 1s a highlight of the Sky calendar
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group risk register is reported formally to the Audit
Committee twice a year and focused nsk reporting on selected
themes occurs on a quarterly basis Additional information on the
Group's internal control and nsk management processes 1s set
out in the Corporate Governance Report (see page 52).

This section describes the current principal risks and
uncertamnties facng the Group In addition to summartsing the
matenal nsks and uncertainties, the table below gives examples
of how we mitigate those risks

The Group has a formal nsk management framework embedded
within the business to support the identification and effective
management of risk across the Group

The divisions within the Group are each responsible for
managing and reporting n1sk in accordance with the Group's risk
management policy and standards that have been approved

by the Audit Committee The risks are then consolidated into a
Group nisk register which provides an overview of the Group nisk
profile

Description of nisk

Mitigation

1 Market and competition

The Group operates in a highly competitive environment and faces
competition from a broad range of organisations Technological
developments also have the ability to create new forms of quickly
evohing competition

A failure to develop the Group's product proposition inkne with
changing market dynamcs and expectations could erode the Group s
competitive position

Great content i1s central to Sky s product proposition and increased
competition could impact the Group's ability to acquire content thatits
customers want on cormnmerciatly attractive terms

Economitc conditions have been cha¥enging in recent years and the
future remains uncertain A significant economic dechine could impact
on the Group s ability 1o continue to attract and retaim customers

The Group continues to make significant investments ininnovation to
maintan its market position

The Group's product development strategic aim Is to be at the forefront
of progressive technology The current year has seen the launch of

Sky Go a significant expanston of the Groups Wik footpnnt and most
recently the announcement of the launch of NOW TV

Please see the "Review of our Business” section for further details of
these products

The Group regularly reviews its pricing and packaging structures to
ensure that its product proposition 1s appropnately placed within the
market

The Group works closely with its marketing partners to ensure that the
value of its offering is understood and communicated effectively to its
customers

The Group makes significant investrnent in the ongination of UK content
as well as acquisitton from across the world

The Group also works to develop and maintain the brand value
associated withits individual channels

2 Regulatory breach and change

The Group 15 subject to regulation pnmanly under UK insh and
European Union legislation

The regimes which apply to the Group s business Include but are not
limited to

+  Gambling ~ Alderney Gambling Commission regulation,

+ Broadcasting - the Group Is subject to Ofcom s keensing
regime under the Broadcasting Act$ 1990 and 1996 and the
Communications Act 2003

These obligations include the requirement to comply with the
relevant codes and directions 1ssued by Ofcom including for
example, the Broadcasting Code the Code on the Scheduling of
Television Advertising and the Cross Promotions Code

Please see page 19 of the Business Review for further details of our
UK broadcasting licences

= Platform services - as an EPG provider the Group is subject toa
Continuation Notice under the Communications Act 2003 which
reguires the prowvision of EPG services to other broadcasters on faw,
reasonable and non-discnminatory terms and

+  Telecommunications - the Group is subject to the General
Conditions of Entitlement adopted under the Commurications
Act 2003 which mpose detailed requirements on providers of
communications networks and services

The Group manages these risks through active engagernent In the
regulatory processes that affect the Group s business

The Group actively seeks to identify and meet our regulatory
obligatians and to respond to emerging requirements This includes, for
example

« Broadcasting - compliance controls processes and contacts
are In place in Entertainment Movies, Sports and News services
Interaction with Ofcom is co-ordinated between Compliance
Regulatory and Legal

«  Platform services - processes are In place to monitor third party
broadcaster access to the digital satellite platform and

+  Telecommunications - compliance controls processes and contacts
are in place overseen by the Customer Comphance Committee
to monitor compliance and performance agamnst the General
Conditions of Entitlement

The Group has also more generally appropnate oversight and reporting
supported by tramning to provide assurance that it 1s compliant with
regulatory requirements
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Description of nsk

Mitigation

2. Regudatory breach and change continued

The Group ts also subtect to generally applicable legislation incfuding,
but not imited to, competition (@ntitrust) consumer protection data
protection and taxation

The Group s currently, and may be in the future, subject to proceedings
and/or investigation and enquiries from regulatory authonities

The Group s ability to operate or compete effectively could be adversely
affected by the outcome of Investigations or by the introduction of new
laws policies or regulations changes in the interpretation or application
of existing laws, policies and regulations, or failure to obtain required
regulatory approvals or icences

3 Customer service

The Group's business is based on a subscription model and its future
success relies on bullding long-term relationships with its customers
A falure to meet its customers expectations with regards to serace
could negatively impact the Group s brand and competitive position

The Group strives consistently to exceed its customer expectations to
put its customers first, to understand what they want and to be
respansive to what they say

The Group makes significant investments in order to deliver continuous
development and improvement to Its customer service capabilities
The Group has increased and s continuing to Increase the number of
contact centres located across the United Kingdom and has
implemented ongeing training and development plans

The Group benchmarks its customer senice experience and stnves to
be the bestin class

Refer to page 20 for detaills of our customer service

4 Technology and business interruption

The products and services that the Group provides to Its customers are
reliant on complex technical infrastructure

Afailure in the operation of the Group s key systems or infrastructure,
such as the breadcast platform customer management systems or the
telecommunications networks on which the Group relies could cause a
fallure of sarvice to our customers and negatively impact our brand

Detalls of our infrastructure and technology are set out on pages 16-18
of the Business Review

The Group makes significant investment in technology infrastructure to
ensure that 1t continues to support the growth of the business

The Group I1s committed to achieve best in class business continuity
standards and makes significant investments in the resilience and
robustness of its bustness infrastructure

The Group also organises regular scenano based group-wide business

continuity exercises to ensure ongoing readiness of key staff, systems
and sites

5 Supply chain

The Group reles on a number of third parties and outsourced suppliers
operating across the globe to support its supply chain

A significant failure within the supply chatn could adversely affect the
Group s abiity to deliver products and service Lo its customers

The Group continues to invest in 155 supply chain infrastructure to
support its business plan commitments

A robust supplier selection process 1s In place with appropnate ongoing
management and monitoring of key partners and suppliers

The Group performs regular audits of key suppliers and of their
installations and wherever possible has dual suppty capability
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Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

DPescnption of nisk

Miugation

6 Financial

The effective management of its finanaal exposures 1s central to
preserving the Group's profitability

The Group has some expostre to the European finanaal cnsis although
the Groups net euro cash flows are approximatefy 3% of total group
revenues and the Group s practice Is to hold fess than E1Q million on
depositin euros

A number of the Group’s syndicate banks are headquartered in Europe
but the Group does not currently anticipate drawing the RCF

The Groups finance teams are embedded within the business to
provide support to management and to ensure accurate financial
reporting and tracking of our business performance Reporting on
financial performance 1s provided on a monthly basis to the Executive
and the Beard

The Group continually invests in the improvement of its systems and
processes in order to ensure sound financial management and
reporting.

The Group manages treasury fisk by mirumising nsk to capital and
providing appropriate protection aganst foreign exchange and interest
rate movements

Cash investment 1s made in line with the Group s stnct treasury policy
which 1s approved by the Audit Comaittee and sets imits on deposits
based on counterparty credit ratings No more than 10% of cash
deposits are held with a single bank counterparty with the exception of
overnight deposits which are invested in a spread of AAA-rated hquidity
funds

All debt 1s swapped at Inception to ensure appropriate currency and
interest rate protection 15 tn plage, and trading currency nisk 1s hedged
up to 5 years In advarce

The Group manages its tax risk by ensuring that all the nsks are
identified and understood at an early stage and that effective
complance and reporting processes are in place

The Group continues to maintain an open and proactive relationship
with the regulating tax authonties which are pnmarily HM Revenue &
Customs The Group aims to deal with any taxation issues, wherever
possible as they arse in order to avoid unnecessary disputes

7 Secunty

The Group must protect its customer and corporate data and the
safety of Its people and infrastructure as well as needing to have in
place fraud prevention and detection measures

The Group 15 responsible to third party intellectual property owners for
the secunty of the content that it distnbutes on vanous platforms
{Sky s own and third party platforms)

Asignificant breach of security could impact the Group s ablity to
operate and deliver against its business objectives

The Group takes measures ranging from physical and logical access
controls to encryption or eguivalent technologies to manage its
security risks

The Group continues to invest 1n new technological controls and in
improving broader business process and works closely with law
enforcement agencies and policy makers in order to protect Its assets
and to comply with its contractual obligations to third parties

8 Projects

The Group Invests in and delivers, significant capital expenditure
projects in order continuatly to drive the business forward
The fature to deliver key projects effectively and efficiently could result

in significantly Increased project costs and impede our ability to
execute our strategic plans

A common project management methodology is used to enable the
Group to manage monitor and control its major capital expenditure
projects and strategic programmes This includes standardised
reporting and monthly reviews by Executive members

Third party partners wili where appropriate be engaged to provide
support and expertise In our large strategic programmes complex
Initsatives and for emerging technologies

9 Intellectual property protection

The Group in commaon with other service providers relies on intellectual
property and other propnetary nghts, including in respect of
programimung content which may not be adequately protected under
current laws or which may be subject to unauthonsed use

Please see page 14 of the Business Review

We implement an ongoing programme to support appropriate
protections of our intellectual property and other nghts
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Description of risk

Mitigation

10 People
People at Sky are cntical to the Group s ability to meet the needs of s
customers and achieve 1ts goals as abusiness

The fallure to attract or ratain suitable employees across the business
could hrmit the Group's abihty to deliver its business plan commitments

Making Sky a great place to work 1s central to the Group s strategy

The Group champions diversity and develops talent through a number
of actvities including the Graduate program Development Studic, an
apprenticeship scheme and a leadership programme

The Group has well established channels and procedures to recruit and
retain its employees and to ensure that an adeguate number of
suitable employees work within its custamer service teams and across
all its operations

Further detad on our people s set out on pages 25-27 of the Business
Review
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Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

Introduction

The followang discussion and analysis 1s based on and should be
read in conjunction with, the consolidated financial statements
including the related notes, induded within this Annual Report.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with IFRS as 1ssued by the JASB and as adopted by
the EU

The Group maintains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on

the Sunday nearest to 30 June i each year In fiscal 2012 this
datewas 1 July 2012 this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 201
3 July 201, 53 week year) For convenience purpeses, the Group
continues to date its consolidated financial statements as at
30 June

A reconciliation of non-GAAP measures Is set out on page 128 and
a detailed reconciiation of profit from continuing operations to
adjusted profit from continuing operations 1s Included in hote 10
to the consolidated financial statements

Overview and recent devetopments

During the current year, total revenue from continuing operations
increased by 3% to £6,791 million, compared to the year ended

30 June 201 ("the pnor year”) Adjusted operating profit from
continuing operations for the current year increased by 14% to
£1,223 mulion, resulting 1n an adjusted operating profit margin

of 18% compared to16% in the prior year Reported operating
profit from continuing operations was £1,243 milhon, compared to
£1,073 milton in the prior year

Adjusted profit for the year from continuing operations was

£875 million generating adjusted basic earmings per share from
continuing operations of 50 8 pence, compared to an adjusted
profit from continuing operations of £725 milion and adjusted
basic earnings per share from continuing operations of 416 pence
in the prior year Reported profit. for the year was £906 milhion,
generating basic earnings per share of 52 6 pence compared toa
profit of 810 miilion and basic earnings per share of 46 5 pence
inthe prior year

At 30 June 2012 the total number of TV Customers inthe UK and
Ireland was 10,288,000 representing a net increase of 101,000
TV Customers in the current year Induding our standalone home
communications services, the total number of customers was
10,606,000 representing a net increase of 312 000 customers n
the current year

At 30 June 2012 the total number of HD customers was
4,343,000, representing 42% of total TV Customers This
represents growth in HD customers of 14% in the current year
The number of Muttiroom customers also continued to grow,
increasing by 152,000 10 the current year to 2,402 000 23%
penetration of total TV Customers Wholesale subscnbers to the
Group's channels were 4 340,000 compared to 4,382,000 inthe
pnor year
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Churn for the current year was 10 2% which1s broadly in line with
the prior year (201 10 4%)

Sky Broadband continues to grow strongly, increasing by 666,000
custormers in the current year to 4 001 000 Dunng the year we
unbundted 388 additional exchanges increasing our footprnt

to approximately 83% network coverage The number of Sky

Talk customers reached 3,768,000, representing an increase of
667000 in the current year The number of Line Rental customers
mcreased by 883,000 n the current year to 3,563 000

Corporate

The Board of Directors Is proposing a final dvidend of 16 2 pence
per ordinary share resutting in a total dividend for the year of

25 4 pence, representing growth of 9% over the prior year full

year dmvidend The ex-dwvidend date will be 24 October 2012 and,
subject to shareholder approval at the Company’s Annual General
Meeting ("AGM™) the dvidend will be paid on 16 November 2012 to
shareholders of record on 26 October 2012

On13 July 2011 News Corporation announced that it no longer
intended to make an offer for the entire 1ssued and to be issued
share capital of the Company not already owned by News
Corporation A break fee of £33 milion was recewed dunng the
year which exceeded all of the Group's direct costs associated
with the proposal

On 3 November 207 the Group re-financed the existing

£750 million Revoiving Credit Faaility ("RCF”) with a £743 mullion
facility due to mature on 31 October 2015, syndicated across
10 counterparty banks

On 29 November 2011 the Company s shareholders approved a
resolution at the AGM for the Company to return £750 mithon of
capital to shareholders wia a share buy-back programme

The Company has entered into an agreement with News
Corporation under which following any market purchases

of shares by the Company News Corporation will sell to

the Company sufficient shares to mantain its percentage
shareholding at the same level as applied prior to those market
purchases The price payable to News Corporation ts the pnce
payable by the Company in respect of the relevant market
purchases The effect of the agreement 1s to provide that there
will be no change in News Corporation s economic or voting
interests in the Company as a result of the share buy-back
programme

Following approval and up to 30 June 2012 the Company
repurchased for cancellation 78 387718 ordinary shares for a
total consideration of £546 million which included stamp duty
and commission of £3 million The dosing share count at the end
of the financial year was 1674,454 881
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On 25 July 2012 the Board agreed to seek the necessary
approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to
shareholders via a share buy-back programme Shareholder
approvals will be sought at the Company s AGM on 1 November
2012 The Company has entered into an agreement with News
Corporation under substantally the same terms as those agreed
for the share buy-back programme approved at the Company’s
AGM on 29 November 2011 The agreement s condrtional onthe
appropnate shareholder approvals being granted The effect of
the agreement Is to provide that there will be no change in News
Corporation’s economic or voting interests inthe Company as a
result of the share buy-back programme

Operating results

Revenue

Qur revenue 1s principally derived from retail subscription
wholesale fees, advertising and installation, hardware and
servicing

Cur retail subscription revenue 1s a function of the number

of customers (residential and commeraial) including

those subscnbing to a TV product or a standalone home
communications customer, the mix of senaces subscnbed to and
the rates charged Revenue from the provision of pay-per-view
services, which include Sky Box Office and Sky Store 15 induded
within retall subscrniption revenue

Our wholesale subscription revenue, which is revenue derved
from the supply of Sky Channels to cable, OTT and Internet
Protocol Television (“IPTV™) platforms 1s a function of the number
of subscnbers on the relevant operators platforms the mx of
services subscnbed to and the rates charged to those wholesate
operators

Our advertising revenue 1s masnly a function of the number of
commercial impacts, defined as ndviduals watching one thirty
second commercial on our wholly owned channels, together with
the quality of impacts delivered and overall advertising market
condiions Advertising revenue also includes net commissions
earned by us from the sale of advertising on those third party
channels for which we act as sales representative

Installation hardware and service revenue includes income from
set-top box sales and installation service calls and warranties

Other revenue principally includes income from technical
platform services, Sky Bet, third party set-top box sales and
public access Wi services

Operating expense

Cur operating expense anses from programming direct
networks, marketing, subscrniber management and supply chain
transmission technology and fixed networks and administration
costs

.

Programming costs include payment for (f) icences of television
nights from certain US and European film licensors including the
results of foreign exchange programme hedges (1) the nghtsto
televise certain sporting events and sports production costs,
() other programming acquired from third party icensors,

(v) the production and commissioning of onginal programming,
and (v) the nghts to retall the Sky Distnbuted Channels to

TV Customers The methods used to amortise programming
inventones are described in section (V) of note 1to the
consolidated financial statements “Critical accounting policies
and the use of judgment”

Under our current pay telewision agreements with the US major
movie studios, we generally pay a US dollar-denominated licence
fee per current movie, calculated on a per mowie subscnber basts
During the year we managed our US dollar/pound sterling exchange
nsk pnmanly by the purchase of forward foreign exchange
contracts and currency eptions (collars) for up to five years ahead
(see note 24 to the consolidated financial statements)

Under the DTH distribution agreements for the Sky Distnibuted
Channels we generally pay a monthly fee per subscnber for

each channel the fee in some cases being subject to penodic
ncreases, or we pay a fixed fee or no such fee at all A number of
our distnbution agreements are subject to mmimum guarantees,
which are linked to the proportion of the total number of TV
Customers receving specific packages Our costs for carnage of
the Sky Distnibuted Channels will (where a monthly per subscriber
fee 1s payable) continue to be dependent on changes in the
subscriber base, contractual rates, viewing performance and/or
the number of channels distributed

Direct network costs include costs directly related to the supply
of broadband and telephony services to our customers This
includes call costs, monthly wholesale access fees and other
Vanable costs associated with our network

Marketing costs include (1) above-the-line spend (which
promotes our brand and range of products and services
generally) (1) below-the-ine spend (which relates to the growth,
retention and mamtenance of the customer base including
commissions payable to retallers and other agents for the sale
of subscriptions and the costs of our own direct marketing

to our existing and potential customers) and (i) the cost of
providing and installing digital satelhite reception and home
communications equipment for new and existing customers in
excess of the relevant amount actually received from customers
for such equipment and installation

Subscriber management and supply chain costs include
customer management costs, supply chain costs and associated
depreciation Customer management costs are those associated
with managing new and existing customers, including customer
handhiing and customer bad debt costs Supply chain costs

relate to systems and infrastructure and the installation costs
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Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

continued

of satelite reception equipment and home commurications
equipment and installation costs of new products purchased by
customers such as HD and Multiroom set-top boxes, including
smartcard costs Customer management costs and supply
chain costs are largely dependent on customer levels and new
customer additions in the year

Transmission, technology and fixed network costs include

costs that are dependent upon the number and annual cost

of the satellite transponders that we use Qurtransponder
capacity I1s primarily supplied by the SES Astra and Eutelsat
satellites Transmission, technology and fixed network costs also
include the costs associated with transmisston, uplink, home
communications connectmty costs and the costs of our new
broadcasting facility Sky Studios

Administration costs include depreciation, channel management,
facilities, other central operational overheads and the expense
recognised for awards granted under our employee share option
schemes

For certain trend information related to our revenue and
operating expense, see the “Trends and other information”
section below

2012 fiscal year compared to 2011 fiscal year

Revenue

The Group s revenue from continung operations can be analysed
as follows

2012 200

For the year to 30 June £m % Em %
Retall subscnption 5593 B2 547 83
Wholesale subscrption 351 5 323 5
Advertising 440 7 458 7
Installation hardware
and service a8 1 12 1
Other 309 5 233 4

6,791 100 6,597 100

To provide a more relevant presentation, management has
reclassified Sky Player and Sky Mobile revenue from other
revenue to retatl subscription revenue of £11 million in the current
penod and £16 million 1n the comparative perrod

Group revenue increased to £6,791 million 2011 £6 597 milior),
up 3% year on year as the growth in customers and products
more than offset headwinds in advertising and Sky Business

Retail subscription revenue increased to £5,593 milhon (2011

£5 471 million) as a result of strong product growth over the year
and alarger customer base more than offsetting our decision to
freeze subscrniption prices

Wholesale subscrniption revenue increased by 9% to £351 milhon
(201 £323 million) due to increased take up of the Group's
channels and their HD versions across other platforms, the
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launch and success of the new Formula 1 channel and new
carnage deals from the first quarter of the fiscal year

Advertising revenue was 4% lower year onyear at £440 mullion
(201 £458 millron) as a result of headwinds impacting the sector
and higher payments to our partner channels for their strong
performance

Installaton, hardware and service revenue of £98 millior was
lower year on year (2011 £112 million), the decrease reflecting
improved product reliability and night-first-time installation rates,
in the context of continued growth in customers and product
penetraticn

Other revenue increased by 33% to £309 million (20M £233
million) inciuding £52 mithon from the sale of set-top boxes to Sky
Itaha, for which the corresponding cost 1s recognised in subscriber
management and supply chan costs Excluding these sales

other revenue was up by 22% benefiting from continued strong
performance in Sky Bet and the consolidation of “The Cloud”
(acquired on 23 February 2011)

Operating expense

The Group s operating expense from continuing operations
and excluding adjusting items (as detailed on page 36) can be
analysed as follows

2012 200

For the year to 30 June Em % Em %
Programming 2298 42 2188 39
Direct networks 676 12 584 n
Marketing 1064 19 1,220 22
Subscnber management

and supply chain 621 n 596 n
Transmission

technology and fixed

networks 395 7 395 7
Administration 514 ] 541 10

5 568 100 5524 100

Direct Costs

Programming costs increased by 5% to £2,298 million (20M

£288 millior) reflecting our continued investment in high quality
content. Entertanment costs tncreased by £70 million as a result
of a full twelve months of Sky Atlantic programming, alongside
increased mvestment 1n onginal UK content Partner channel
costs were £30 million higher as a result of adding seven HD
channels in the year and 14% growth in HD customers year on
year Sports costs were £12 million higher year on year with the
first time inclusion of the Formula 1 channel being partly offset
by lower costs for cricket, go!f and boxing due to the absence of
tennial and other events such as the Ryder Cup and the Haye
Kiitschko fight that were included in the comparative year Movies
costs were flat year onyear
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Direct network costs increased by 16% to £676 million 20N

£584 miliron), with 24% growth in home communications products
partiatly offset by our continued progress in migrating customers
to our fully unbundled network, thereby reducing the per ’
customer cost

Other Operating Costs

Marketing costs (excluding adjusting items) were 13% lower year
on year at £1 064 million (201 £1,220 million) with lower cost
route-to-market sales less above-the-line spend and fewer
gross additions in addition to savings from the closure of the Sky
customer magazine above-the-line costs were £25 million lower
year on year

Subscriber management and supply chain costs increased by
£25 milhon year on year to £621 million (2011 £596 million). The
largest contributor to the increase was the cost of sales of set-
top boxes to Sky Itaha (with correspohding revenue recorded
within other revenue). Excluding the impact from these box
sales In both the current and comparative year subscriber
management and supply chan costs were down in absolute
terms year on year, a good result in the context of a growing
customer base and a12% increase In the sale of total products
year onyear

Transmission, technology and fixed network costs were flat
at £395 million (201 £395 mithon) as a result of favourable
negetiations with suppliers and improved broadcasting efficiency
due to the move to tapeless production within Sky Studios

Administration costs (excluding adjusting items) fell by £27 milhon
to £514 million (2011 £541 milhen) helped by a lower non-cash
IFRS 2 *Share-based payment’ charge and associated National
Insurance costs than in the prior year

Operating profit and operating margin

Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations increased
by 14% to £1223 mullion In the current year, as a result of

strong growth in subscrnption revenue and cost efficiencies in
our operating expenditure Adjusted operating margin from
continuing operations (calculated as total revenue less all
cperating expense as a percentage of total revenue) for the
current year was 18%, compared to 16% in the pnor year

Reported operating profit from continuing operations increased
by 16% to £1,243 million in the current year

Joint ventures and associates

Joint ventures are entities In which we hold a long-term interest and
share control under a contractuat arrangement with other parties.
Cur equity share of the net operating results from joint ventures
and associates increased by £5 million to £39 million in the current
year tnduded i this amount 1s a profit on disposal of a joint venture
of £7 millon ansing from the sale of our investment in Chelsea
Digital Media Limited

Investment income and finance costs

Investment income from continuing operations increased by

£9 million to £18 million in the current year This was prnmanly due
to higher cash balances dunng the year higher rates of return and
the receipt of dmidend income from ITV

Finance costs from continuing operations were flat at £11 milion
(2011 £1 mihor), after the inclusion of a faciity fee write-of f

of £5 milhon relating to the previous RCF Finance costs have
decreased by £5 million on an underlying basis predominantly
due to reduced costs associated with the new RCF

Finance costs from continuing operations mcluded £19 million of
non-cash farr value gains on denvative financial Instruments not
qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge ineffectiveness, an
increase of £1 million on the prior year 0T gain of £18 million)

Profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale investment

In the prior year on 5 April 2011, the Group sold its availlable-
for-sale investment in Shine for a maximum consideration of
£36 million, of which £31 milion has been receved to date

The remaining consideration is contingent on certain post
transaction criteria and 15 currently held in escrow At the date
of disposal, the Group estimated the fair value of the contingent
consideration to be £4 million and recorded a profit on disposal
of £9 million being the excess of the recogmsed consideration
above the carrying value of the shares

Taxation

The total tax charge for continuing operations for the current
year of £283 milion (201 £256 million) comprises a current tax
charge of £270 million (2011 £263 million) and a deferred tax
charge of £13 mullion (2011 credit of £7 milllon) The higher tax
charge in the current year 1s primarily due to increased profit

Discontinued operations

In the prior year, on1 September 2010 the Group completed the
sale of its business-to-business telecommunications operation,
Easynet Global Services ("Easynet™) to Lloyds Development
Capital (“tDC) for £100 million Subsequent to this an agreed
working capital adjustment reduced total net consideratien to
£94 million

Easynet represented a separate major line of business for the
Group As a result its operations were treated as discontinued
for the year ended 30 June 2011 A single amount Is shown on the
face of the consolidated income statement comprising the post-
tax result of discontinued operations and the post-tax profit
recognised on the disposal of the discontinued operation

A pre-tax profit of £62 million arose on the disposal of Easynet In
the prior year being the net proceeds of disposal less the carrying
amount of Easynet s net iabiliies and attributable goodwill
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continued

Profit for the year and earmnings per share

Profit for the year from continuing operations was £906 million
compared to £758 million in the prior year Theincrease in profit
was primanty due to growth in subscription revenue and cost
efficiencies in our operating expenditure Profit for the year
including discontinued operations was £9506 million, compared to
£810 midlion in the prior year

The Groups earnings per share are as follows

202 2om

perge pence
Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic
Continuing operations 526 435
Dhscontinued operations - EYs)
Total 526 465
Diluted
Continuing operations 522 430
Discontinued operations - 29
Total 52.2 459

in order to provide a measure of undertying performance
management has chosen to present an adjusted profit from
continuing operations for the year which excludes items that
may distort comparability See note 10 to the consolidated
financia! statements for a detailed reconcihation between profit
from continuing operations and adjusted profit from continuing
operations for the year

The Group s adjusted earnings per share from adjusted profit for
the year from continuing operations are as follows

2012 2om

pence pence

Basic s08 46
Diluted 504 411

Adsting tems

In the current year, reported operating profit from continumg
operations of £1243 milion included a net benefit of £20 rmilion
This consisted of a £31 milhon gain relating to the break fee

from News Corporation, net of related costs, and £11 million

of restructuring costs which comprnise severance payments

In relation to approximately 35 senior roles as part of a
restructuning initiative to improve operational efficiency both of
these amounits were classified as administration costs

In the pnior year reported operating profit from continuing
operations of £1,073 million mcluded £26 milhon of restructuring
costs ansing on the acquisition of Living TV and costs of

£15 millwon relating to the News Corporation proposal, both

of these amounts were classified as adminsstration costs
Included within marketing costs for the prior year was a credit of
£41 million 1 relation to import duty on set-top boxes paid out in
pnor years
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Reported profit for the year from continuing operations also
included a cost of £5 milion due to writing off fees retating

to the previous RCF, a gain of £7 mullion on the disposal of

our investment in Chelsea Digital Media Limited and a gain

of £19 million for mark-to-market gains relating to derivative *
financial instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting
and gains and losses ansing from designated far value hedge
accounting relationships.

In the prior year, reported profit for the year from continuing
operations also Included a £42 million exceptional gawn, of which
£18 million were mark-to-market gans relating to dervative
financial instruments not quahfying for hedge accountmng

and gamns and losses ansing from designated far value hedge
accounting relationships £9 milion related to a profit ondisposal
of an available-for-sale investment and £15 million related to a
non-cash tax credit for a tax settlement relating to the network
operations retained from the Easynet business

The related tax effects on the above items resulted ina
£10 mithon charge (2011 £S mulion charge)

Balance sheet

During the year, total assets increased by £155 milllon to

£5,509 milion at 30 June 2012 Non-current assets increased

by £209 million to £3 234 million, primarily due to an increase

of £113 milfion in Intangible assets and property plant and
equipment and an increase of £115 milion in non-current
dervative financial assets resulting from mark-to-market
maovements on dervative instruments This increase was partially
offset by a decrease in deferred tax assets of £53 mithon

Current assets decreased by £54 million to £2 275 milion at

30 June 2012 This decrease was pnmanly due to a E177 million net
decrease in cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits
as a result of the share buy-back pregramme and dividend
payments This decrease was partially offset by an increase in
inventories and trade and other receivables in the year

Total habilities increased by £246 million to £4,565 milhion at

30 June 2012. Current habilities increased by £186 million to
£2,098 million primarily due to an increase in trade and other
pavables Non-current habilities increased by £60 million to
£2.467 milion pnncipally due to a £73 million increase in the far
value of the Group's non-current borrowings This increase was
partially offset by a £18 million decrease in non-current dervative
financial iabiities

Foreign exchange

For detalls of the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on
our finanaial position and performance see note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements
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Liquidity and caprtal resources
An analysis of the movement In our net debt (Including refated
fees) s as follows

Non-
Asat Cash cash Asat
1July move- move- 30 June

201 ments ments 2012
Em Em £m Em
Current berrowings 8 1 1 8
Non-current borrowings 2325 - 73 2398
Debt 2,333 (U] 74 2406
Borrowings-related denvative
finanoal Instruments (232) - (124) (356)
Cash and cash equivalents {921y 457 - (464)
Short-term deposits 43 (280) - {710}
Net debt 750 176 [le)] 876

The Group refers to net debt In discussing its indebtedness

and hquidity position Net debt s a non-GAAP measure that
management uses to provide an assessment of the overall
indebtedness of the Group The most similar IFRS GAAP measures
are current and non-current borrowings

Management uses net debt to calculate and track adherence to
the Group's borrowing covenants, as disclosed in note 22 to the
consclidated financial statements Management monitors the
Groups net debt position because net debt 1s a commonly used
measure In the iInvestment analyst community and net debt

1s a key metric used by Moody's and Standard & Poor’s in their
assessment of the Group’s credit rating As such, management
makes decisions about the approprate investing and borrowing
activities of the Group by reference to, amongst other things net
debt

Qur long-term funding comes primarily from our issued equity
and US dollar and sterling-denominated debt For details of the
Groups faciities, long-term funding, indebtedness position and
the terms of matenal debt arrangements including compliance
with borrowing covenants, see note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements For details of the Groups treasury
activities, see note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

Our principal source of iquidity 1s cash generated from
operations, combined with access to a £743 mullion committed
RCF which expires on 31 Gctober 2016 At 30 June 2012, this
faciity was undrawn (30 June 2011 undrawn).

Cash flow

Adjusted free cash flow increased by 5% to £910 million

(201 £869 millon) reflecting an INcrease N cash generated from
continuing operations, offset by increased capital expenditure

Capital expenditure increased by £34 million to £457 mullion (20N
£423 milior) 67% of sales The largest contnbutor to growth was
the growing scate of our broadband network as we unbundled

a further 388 exchanges to reach 83% coverage of the UK,
expanded The Cloud WiFI network and launched a fibre product.

Net debt as at 30 June 2012 was £876 miflion (201 £750 million),
with strong cash generation offset by amounts returned to
shareholders via the share buy-back programme of £543 million

The Group's hquidity and headroom are comfortable with no
bond redemptions until Qctober 2015 when E428 million falls due
As at the end of the year cash and cash equivalents and short-
term deposits were £1174 million and the Group s £743 million RCF
remamned wholly undrawn

Trends and other iInformation
The significant trends and factors which have a matenal effect on
our financial performance are outlined below

The total number of customers including standalone home
communications customers was 10,606 000, an increase

of 312000 customers during the year We expect growth in
customer numbers to continue as a result of the quality, choce
reliability and value of the services that we provide

HD customers mcreased by 14% i the current year, representing
a penetration of total TV Customers of 42% and we expect
penetration to continue to Increase

Churn for the current year was 10 2%, compared to 10 4% inthe
prior year Over the medium term we expect our churn to remain
broadly around this level

The increased number of customers to our HD Sky Broadband
and Sky Talk products is expected to generate ncreased retail
revenue on a per customer basis

During the ¢current year, the number of wholesale subscrbers
recerving Sky Channels in the UK and Ireland was 4 340000
compared to 4 382,000 in the prior year Qur wholesale
subscnibers are wholly dependent on the strategies of the
relevant wholesale operators generally and as they relate to the
distribution of our Channels (for further detalls see "Directors
Report - Business review - Review of our business” on page 16)

Advertising revenue decreased in the current year due to
headwnds impacting the sector and higher payments to our
partner channels Inthe short term the UK television advertising
sector 1s expacted to remain volatile and challenging reflecting
the continued wider economic uncertainty

The Group s programming costs have increased in the current
year reflecting our continued commitment to snvesting in high
quality content We expect programming costs will continue to
Increase and note our commitment to Increase our investment in
UK originated content and production

Direct network costs increased during the current yvear and are
expected to increase in future years The expected increase
reftects higher Sky Broadband customer numbers, the cost of
operating our Sky Talk service and the growth of broadband
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DIRECTORS REPORT ~ INRANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW

Directors’ report - Financial and operating review

continued

services as we continue to invest in further LLU unbundling and
mass migrations onto our NVN network

Marketing costs decreased in the year as a result of fewer gross
additions and lower cost route-to-market sales as a result of
driving more acquisitions through online channels We expect
marketing costs to decrease as a percentage of revenue as a
result of our focus on operational efficiency

Subscriber management and supply chain costs increased
largely due to the sale of set-top boxes to Sky Itala The level of
growth in both the total number of customers and the number
of additional services taken by our customers (for example HD)
will remain key drivers of these costs in future as will our ability to
deliver rate efficiency improvements across our contact centre
and supply chain operations

Administration costs decreased in the year due to alower
non-cash IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” charge and associated
National Insurance costs than the prior year, as a result of the
phasing or our share-incentive plans Going forward, our am s
to hold the rate of growth in administration costs below that of
revenue growth

Off-balance sheet arrangements

At 30 June 2012, the Group did not have any undisclosed
off-balance sheet arrangements that require disclosure as
defined under the applicable rules of IFRS

Related party transactions

The Group conducts all business transactions with companies
which are part of the News Corporation group ("News
Corperation”) a major shareholder, on an arm’s length basis
During the current year, the Group made purchases of goods
and services from News Corporation totalling £199 millon
(201 £216 million) and supplied goods and services to News
Corporation totalling £79 million (2011 £45 million)

©On13 July 20M, News Corporation announced that it no longer
intended to make an offer for the entire 1ssued and to be 1ssued
share capital of the Company not already owned by News
Corporation A break fee of £39 million was recenved during the
year which exceeded all of the Group’s direct costs assctiated
with the proposal

Duning the year, the Company purchased, and subsequently
cancelled 3067957 ordinary shares held by News Corporation
as part of its share buy-back programme For further details, see
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

Dunng the current year, the Group made purchases of goods and
services from joint ventures and associates totalling £67 million
(2011 £57 millton) and supplied serwnices to joint ventures and
associates totalling £24 million (201 £23 milhon)
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For further detalls of transactions with related parties, see
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements

Events after the reporting penod

0On 25 July 2012, the Board agreed to seek the necessary
approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to
shareholders via a share buy-back programme For further
details see note 31 to the consohdated financial statements
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Board of Directors

Nicholas Ferguson & @
Chaiman

Appointed to the Board 1506/2004
Mationality British

Skills and experience

Extansive exparience in leadership rokes

n the finance sector Co-founderand
nstrumental in the development of
Schroder Ventures {the privata aquity
group which later became Permiza) of which
tva served as Chairman from 1984 to 2001
Prior £o his appointment as Chaiman of
the Company on 3 Apnl 2012, Mr Ferguson
served as Deputy Chairman and 5emior
Independent Non-Executive Director

Other appointments

Mr Ferguson has been Chaiman of SVG
Capital plc, a publically quated private
equity group since Apnl 2005 and has
served as a Director of the comparty since
1996 His chairmarships in the not-
for-profit sector nclude the Courtautd
Institute of Art.

Tracy Clarke @ @&
Independant Non-Executrve Director
Apponted to the Board 1062012
Navonality British

Skills and experience

Ms Clarke 15 an expenanced banking

and human resources professional. She

15 Group Head of Human Resources &
Communications of Standard Chartered
Bank and has spent most of her career in
banking roles both in the U and in Hong
Kong. She 1s a rmember of the Instituta of
Financial Services.

Other appointments

Ms Clarke was a Noa-Executive Director
of SC First Bank in Korea from 2005-2007
and also a Nor-Executve Director of eaga
pk from 2007-2011 where she chared the
Remuneration Committee
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Thomas Mockridge
Deputy Chairman
Appanted to the Board 10/022009
Nationalty New Zealander

Skills and experience

An expenenced executive In both pnnt

pournalism and pay television. Mr Mockndge

was appanted Chief Executive Officer
(CEC) of News Intemational in Jufy 2011
Previously he was CEO of Sky Italka and
Chief Executive, Eurcpean Telewision of
News Carporation where he oversaw
News Corporation's television operations
n Eurppe Prior Lo joming Sky Italia, Mr
Mockndge held various roles at Star Group
Limted and was previgusly CEQ of Foxtel
News Corporation’s PayTV jont venture
withTelstra

Mr Mockndge was appainted as Deputy
Chavmnan of the Company on 3 Apni 2012,

-
Dawid F DeVoe
Non-Executve Director
Appomted to the Board 151211994
Nationality American

Skills and expenence

A finance professional with extensne
experience In the media sector Adirector
of News Corporation and its CFO since
October 1990 He has served as Senior
Executive Vice Presidert of News
Corporation since Janwary 1996

Other appointments

Mr DeVoe has been a Drector of NDS
Greup Limited since Octeber 1996 and was
appointed a3 & Drector of Shine Limited
on 15 Apnf 201+ He served as a Director
of GemnstarTV Guide from 2001 to 2008
and as a Dwector of DIRECTY from 2003
te 2008

Senicr Independent Non-Executive
Director

Charman of the Corporate Govemnance
& Nominations Commuttee and the Audit
Committae

Appointed to the Board 01/0972004
Nationality Bntish

Skills and experience

Mr Higginsen has been a Director of Tesco
ple for the last 14 years, first as Finance
and Strategy Drecter and latterly as
Chief Executive of therr Retailing Services
business Me Higginson s early career was
with Unilever Guinness Laura Ashley and
the Burton Group Mermber of the 100
Group of Finance Directors

Mr Higginson was appointed Senior
Independent Non-Executve Director of the
Compary on 3 Apnl 2012

Other appointments

Mr Higginson 1s Chairman of Poundland
Lrmited and a Nor-Executive Director of
Woolworths SA, the Rugby Football Uruon
and Chairman designate of N Brown plc

" .

Martin Gibert © ®
Independent Non-Executnse Director
Apparited to the Board 29137201
Nationalty Brtish

Skills and experience

Expenenced finance professionat and
entrepreneur MrGilbert s CEQ of
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, the
fund management group that he co-
founded In 1983 Named CEQ of the Year
at the Business Inswder/PWC Scotland

PLC Awards n 2011 he s a member of the
Scottish Government § Financal Services
Ardwisory Board and the EFAMA President’s
Advisory Councit

Other appointments

MrGdbert 15 a director of a number of
ivestment trusts and is Chairman of
Firstgroup ple, Chawrnan of the Investment
Committee of Chaucer Holdings PLC

and Nor-Executive Dinector of Dynmark
International Limkted

Jeremy Darroch
Chief Executive Officer

Appanted to the Board 16/082004
Natienality British

Skills and experience

MrDarroch joned the Company as Chief
Financal Gfficer (CFO) 1N 2004 and was
appounted CEQ in December 2007 Mr
Darroch has extensive expenerce in the
ratading and fast-moving consurner goods
sectors. Prior £o joirung the Company Mr
Daroch was Group Finance Director of DSG
Intermnational pic (DSG) formerly Dixons
Group plc Prier to DSG Mr Darroch spent
12 years at Procter & Gambila in a vanety of
roles in the UK and Europe

Other appointments

Mr Darroch 1s a Nor-Executive Director and
the Charrman of the Audit Committee of
Marks and Spencer Group plc. He 15 a Board
Member of the chanty Youth Sport Trust
and a Council Memier of the Counal for
Industry and Higher Education

Andrew Gnffith

Chief Finandial Officer

Appointed to the Board 0710412008
Matwonality Britsh

Skills and experience

An expenenced finance professional Mr
Gniffith joined the Company N 1999 and
hetd a rumber of seruor finance roles pror
to his appontiment as CFO 1 Apnl 2008
Mr Gnffith joined the Compary from
Rothschuld the rwestrnent banking
organisation, whera he provided financial
and strategic advice to corporate

chents in the technology media and
telecommurications sector Hehasa
degree in law from Nottingham Unwversity
and 15 a mermber of the 100 Group of
Finarce Directors




DIRECTORS REPORT - GOVERNANCE

Y =

James Murdoch @

Non-Executrve Director

Chairman of the Bigger Picture Committee
Appointed tothe Boand 13/02/2003
Nationality Amencan

Skills and experience

Mr Murdoch s an experienced media
executive and has held a number of semior
leadership roles within News Corporation,
He has been a Director of the Company
since 2003 and served as Chief Executive
frarn Novernber 2003 untl December 2007
and Charrman from December 2007 unstil
Aprl 2012

Other appointments

Mr Murdoch 13 Deputy Chief Operating
Officer and Chairman and CEQ International
at News Corporation and 1s & mermber of
News Corporation’s Board of Directors and
Executive Committee Batween 2000 and
2003 he was Chaiman and CEO of Star
Group Umited Mr Murdoch was a Nor-
Exacutive Director of GlaxoSruth¥ ine pke
from May 2009 to May 2012 and Sotheby's
from May 2010 te May 2012

Arthur Siskind @
Non-Executive Director
Appoimted to the Board 191171991
Natisnakty Amencan

Skills and experience

Highly expenenced legal practtioner and
member of the Bar of the State of New
York since 1962, He has been Sen:or Advisor
ta the Chairman of News Corporation
since January 2005 Mr Siskurd has been
an Exacutive Director of News Corporation
since 1991 and was Group General Counse!
of News Corporanon from March 1991

until December 2004 He was an Adjunct
Professor of Law at the Comell Law School
fram 2007 to 2009 and was an Adjunct
Professor of Law at Georgetown University
Law Center from 2005 to 2007

Jacques Nasser @
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board DB8/1/2002
Nationality Australian

Skills and experience

Extensve experence as a leading global
business executive He has served as
Chairman of the Board of BHP Billiton since
2010 and was Presxdent and CEQ of Ford
Moter Company from 1998 to 2001 Mr
Nasser graduated from RMIT Univarsity of
Melboune Australia and has ako recerved
an hanorary Doctorate of Technology
Other appointments

Non-Executve advisary partner of One
Equity Partners, the private equity amm

of IPMorgan Chase and a mernber of the
international Advisory Counail of Alhanz AG

Lord Wilson of Dinten @ @
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board 13/02/2003
Natienality Briush

Skills and expenence

An experienced ot servant who served in
& numbser of UK Government Departments
over a penod of 36 years He became
Permanent Under Secretary of the Homa
Office 1n 1994 and Secretary of the Cabnet
and Head of the Home Cral Senice tn 1998
Singe his retirement i 2002 he has been
Master of Emmarwel Coliege Cambnidge
Lord Wilson was made a peer in 2002
Other appointments

Non-Executive Chairman of C. Hoare and
Co Bankers

Matthieu Pigasse ©Q
Independent Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board 2911201
Natienality French

Skills and expenence

Leading investment banking professional
and former civilan admirustrater of

the French Mirustry of Economy and
Finance. in 2002 he joined investment
banking firm Lazard In 2009 he became
Deputy CEQ of Lazard in France and Vice
President of Lazard i Europe Hes also
the owner of thve French publishing group
Les Inrockuptibles and a co-controlling
sharehclder of the leading newspaper
publisher Le Monde and the French edition
of the Huffington Post.

Other appointments.

He ts a board member of Groupe Lucien
Bamére, Denchebourg and Relax News

Commuttee Memberstup

© Audit Committea

® Remuneration Committee

® Corporate Gavermance and
Nominations Cormmutiee

@ The Bigger Picture Committee

Daniel Rimer @ ®

Independent Non-Exacutive Director
Chauman of the Remuneration Committee
Appointed to the Board 07/04/2008
Naticnality Swiss

Skills and experignce

Irvestment finance professional and
entrepraneur with extensive expenance
of bullding investment businesses.
ntemnationally Specific sector knowledge
and skills focus inglude Internet.
nfrastructure software and services
technology communicabions. ecomrmence
and media business. General Partner of
the venture capital firm Index Ventures
Management LLP {Index Ventures) and
estabhshed tha firm s Londen office Prior
to joning Index Ventures he was a General
Partner of The Barksdale Group

Other appointments

Mr Rimer curently serves on a numper of
boards including Etsy Inc, Flipboard Inc.
RightScale Inc, Ganda Corporation, FON
wireless Limited, and Stardolt Inc.
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DIRECTORS REPORT - GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance report

CHAIRMAN'S OVERVIEW

It gives me great pleasure to

introduce this year's Corporate

Governance Report | would ke to

take this opportunity to provide you

with some direct insight into the

§ Board's views on Corporate

i Governance, the changes to our
Board composition through the year

and our focus for the coming months

As a Board we are the stewards of the Company It1s our
responsibility to ensure that the Company’s strategy 1s ahgned

to the interests of our investors and takes account of the
interests of all the Company’s stakeholders As individuals, we
believe that effective Corporate Governance 1s based on honesty,
Integrity and transparency, and can only be fully realised within
an environment of open, robust and effective debate Thisis the
Board culture we foster at Sky and 1t 1s my persanal responsibility
as Charrman to ensure that we continue to live this culture and
promote it within our business

Firstly | would like to address our Board composition Following
the withdrawal of the News Corporation proposal in July 2011 the
Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee has reviewed
the composition of the Board and has started an orderly
programme of replacing independent non-executive directors

as they retire As aresult a number of changes in Board and
Committee membership have been recommended to the Board
dunng the year | am pleased to welcome Tracy Clarke, Martin
Gilbert and Matthieu Pigasse to the Board who have replaced
Allan Leighton and David Evans who retired after the Company’s
2011 AGM and Dame Gail Rebuck who retired 1n June 2012 In
order to clarify the roles of Board members within our Corporate
Governance Report on page 44 we have included a detailed
description of the Directors’ roles and responstbilities

| took over the role of Chairman in Apnil 2072 replacing James
Murdoch who has assumed the role of Non-Executive Director
James made a major contnbution to the success of the Company
dunng his tenure as CEQ then more recently as Chawrman

and going forward the Board will continue to benefit from his
business msight and expenience Thomas Mocknidge has assumed
the role of Deputy Chairman and Andrew Higginson has taken
over as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

it has been the Board's strategy to attract directors who
complement and expand upon the skill set of the Board We
seek to appoint directors who provide diversity in background,
experience and views We recognise that gender diversity can
bnng a greater range of viewpoints to boardroom debate and
improve board dynamics ’
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Our internal evaluations over the [ast several years, have

all indicated that the Board 1s operating effectively Inline

with Corporate Governance best practice an external board
evaluation will be undertaken duning the 2012413 financial year
In the interests of ensuring the transparency of our Board
operations we will discuss the resulting developmental themes
from the evaluation processes within future reports

During the year we have continuied our work In promoting greater
and more effective engagement with our shareholders Andrew
Higginson, our Executive Directors, and | have met regularly with
institutional investors and analysts Along with Dansel Rimer
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, we will continue

to engage with shareholders over the course of the coming
financial year

Nicholas Ferguson
Charrman

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) provides the
standard of good corporate governance inthe UK The Financial
Senices Authority requires listed companies to disclose whether
they have comphied with the provisions of the Code throughout
the financial year

The Board considers that the Company complied with the mamn
principles of the Code for the whole of the year ended 30 June
2012 with the followsng exception. Provision C 31 of the Code
states that the Audit Committee must be comprised of at
teast three Independent Non-Executive Directors There was

a period dunng the year between Allan Leighton s retirement
from the Board and the Audit Committee on 29 November

201 and Matthieu Pigasse s appointment as a member of the
Audit Committee on 1 May 2012 that the Audit Committee’s
membership fell to two Independent Non-Executive Directors
The meeting of the Audit Committee held on 30 January 2012
was held prior to Mr Pigasse’s appointment to the Committee
There were no other meetings held without three Independent
Non-Executive Directers being present from 29 November 2011 to
1 May 2012

This section of the Annual Report along with the Remuneration
Committee’'s report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 54 to
63 and other governance and statutory disclosures on pages 64
to 66 provide details of how the Company has applied the main
principles Further information on the Code 15 publicly available on
the Financial Reporting Counail's website wwwirc orguk.

We believe that at the close of the financial period the Company
1s wholly compliant with the provisions of the Code having
addressed the unintentional departure from the Code as
documented above
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LEADERSHIP

Role of the Board and 1ts Members

The Board has collective responsibility for the management
direction and performance of the Group and provides leadership
within a framework of prudent and effective controls which
enables nsk to be appropriately assessed and managed The
Board sets the Company’s strategic direction, ensuring that the
necessary resources are In place for the Company to meet its
objectives and deliver sustainable performance

The Board values an effective long term outlook and sees itself
as responsible to awide range of stakeholders whilst pursuing
its obyectives 1n a manner consistent with its statutory duttes, for
the benefit of the Company’s members as a whole

The Directors of the Board are selected on the critena of proven
skill and ability in their particular field of endeavour, and a
diversity of outiook and experience which directly benefits the
operation of the Board as the custodian of the bustness A full
biography of each Board member I1s provided on pages 40 to 41

The Board agenda

The roles of the Chairman and CEQ are separate and have been
so since the Company’s shares were admitted to bsting in 1994
The roles and expectations of each Director are clearly defined
and recorded within their letters of appomntment or service
contracts The roles and responsibilities of the Board members
are explained below

To maintawn an appropriate level of control over the day to day
affarrs of the Company, the following matters are subject tothe
determination andfor approval of the Board and are contained
wathin the Company’s ‘Schedule of Matters Reserved to the
Board

« approval of the annual budget and any changes toit,

« amajor change in the nature scope or scale of the business of
the Group,

« approval of the interim and final results
+ approval of any dividend policy

» changes relating to the Group's capital structure, including
reductions of capital and share buy-backs,

+ theentenng nto by the Group of a commitment or
arrangement {or any series of related commitments or
arrangements) which, whether budgeted or unbudgeted
involves or cauld reasonably involve, the payment or receipt by
the Group of amounts equal to orin excess of £200 million in
aggregate value

» the entenng into by the Group of a commitment or
arrangement (or any series of related commitments or
arrangements) with News Corporation, any of its subsicliaries
or a related party which involves or could reasonably invotve
the payment or receipt by the Group of amounts equal to or
m excess of £25 millon in aggregate value,

+ approval of resolutions to be put forward to shareholders at a
general meeting,

+ changes to the structure size and composition of the Board
following if applicable recommendations from any committee
to which the Board delegates consideration of such issues,

+ appomtment and removal of the Chairman of the Board and
the CEQ, and

+ determining the independence of Non-Executive Directors

The full schedule of matters reserved for decision making by

the Board, can be found on the Company s corporate website at
www sky com/corporate. In the event that a matter s required to
be rescived by a vote of the Board the matter shall be decided by
a majority of votes in accordance with the Companys articles of
association The Chairman does not have a casting vote

Board delegation

The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to Board
committees, notably the Audit, Remuneration, Corporate
Governance & Nominations and The Bigger Picture committees
Each committee s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s corporate website The Corporate Governance & -
Nominatrons Committee reviewed the terms of reference of each
committee dunng the year and recommended changes to the
Board The Board I1s satisfied that the tefms of reference of each
of the committees satisfy the requirements of the Code

The minutes of committee meetings are made available to all
Board Directors on a timely basis At each Board meeting the
charrman of each committee provides the Board with a brief
update of the work currently being carned out by the committee
they chair

The Board has delegated authonty for the day-to-day running

of the organisation to the Executive Directors A committee of
senior management generally meets on a weekly basis to allow
prompt discussion of relevant business issues It 1s chaired by
the CEQ and compnses the CFO and other senior executives from
within the Group

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC
43

22UDUIBADD)

SIUALW2IDIS [DDLIDUIA

o)
o)
0
rk
<
<
o
Q
£
3
wv




DIRECTORS REPORT - GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance report

continued

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chatrman

The Chairman 15 responsible for leadership of the Board ensuring
its effectiveness on all aspects of its role and setting its agenda
This includes ensuning, via the Company Secretary, that the
Directors recewve accurate timely and dear information The
duties of the Chairman include the foltowing

« o encourage and ensure effective communication
with shareholders and ensure shareholder views are
communicated to the Board as a whole

« tofacilitate a structure to allow the effective contribution of
all Directors, and of Non-Executrve Directors in particular,

+ tocreate an environment which engenders constructive
relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors,

+ toorganise the business of the Board so that it can be carned
out effectively and efficiently

+ tolead the Board in discussions regarding the Company s
strategy and in the achievement of its objectives,

« toensure Board committees are properly established,
composed and operated and

+ to enhance the Company's public standing and image overall

The Chief Executive Officer

The CEQ 1s responsible for the dally operation of the Company,
advancing long-term shareholder value supported by the
management team He s accountable and responsible to the
Board for the management and operation of the Company He 1s
also involved 1n the management of the scoal and environmental
responsibilities of the Company The duties of the CEO include the
following

» tobe responsible and accountable to the Board for the
management and operation of the Group

«  to prepare and implement plans and programmes for the
attainment of approved objectives and to recommend such
plans and programmes to the Board as appropriate,

= toprovide leadership in the Group's commitment to attaining
high business standards generally

+  to create the conditions within the Group for the efficient
operation of all business units,

« toestabhsh and maintain relationships with shareholders and
potential shareholders and major external boches

+  to keep the Board informed on all matters of matenal
importance and
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« tochair meetings of the Executive Committee

Deputy Chairman
The role of the Company’s Deputy Chairman is

+ to deputise for the Chatrman as appropriate in s absence,
and

+  toprovide a sounding board to Non-Executrve Directors as
appropnate

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director (SID)

The role of the SID is to provide both support and a
counterbalance to the position of Charman and encompasses
the following

+ to provide a sounding board to the Charman,

+  toserve as an alternative source of advice to the Chairman for
the other Non-Executive Directors,

* together with the other Independent Non-Executive
Directors, to evaluate the performance of the Chairman and
agree development points required,

» along with the Charrman to liaise with institutional
shareholders and representative bodies during the year, and

» to assist shareholders in resolving concerns should
alternatrve channels be inappropriate

Non-Executive Directors

Collectively and specifically within the remit of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors the Non-Executive Directors are
responsible for the following aspects of governance of the Board

= toscrutinise the performance of management in reaching
agreed objectives and moritor reporting,

+ tosatisfy themselves on the integnity of financial information,

« toensure finanaal controls and systems of risk management
are robust and defensible,

+ todetermine appropriate levels of remuneration of Board
members and

» todetermine the composition of the Board in respect of
succession planning

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary 1s responsible for the following in respect
of effective Board operation

= toensure good information flows within the Board and its
committees, between sentor management and Non-Executive
Cirectors
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+ tofacilitate Director nduction and assisting with professional
development, and

« to advise the Board through the Chairman of all corporate
governance obligations and developments in best practice

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who advises on corporate governance
matters, Board procedures and other relevant rules and
regulations |n addition, Directors have the nght to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense

Meetings of the Board during the year

Environment supportive of challenge

The effective operation of the Board s dependent on the
inherent checks and balances within the vanous Board roles

As highly qualified and successful indmduals in their respective
fields of endeavour all Independent Non-Executive Directors
nfluence, debate and contribute to decisions relating to the
strategy of the company, its performance and Its impact.on
stakeholders The Independent Non-Executive Directors are
evaluated and judged on the quality and content of their
contrnbutions to Board debate and are expected to offer
alternative viewpoints and challenge perceptions and decisions
as appropriate

The Board met nine times dunng the year Attendance of the current Directors at Board meetings and committee members at
meetings of the committees on which they served dunng the year 1s set out In the table below

Corporate
Gowvernance &
Board Audit  Remunaration Mominatiens  Bigger Picture

Number of meetings held in year
Director

Nicholas Fergusan ™
Jeremy Darrech CEQ
James Murdoch®x
Andrew Griffith

Tracy Clarke® ™o

David DeVioel™

Martin Gilbert™&x)
Andrew Higginson™ e
Thomas Mockndge®x
Jacques Nasser® e
Matthieu Pigasse™ ™
Daniel Rimer WX
Arthur Siskind e

Lord Wilson of Dinton™
David Evans®?

Allan Leighton®®

Dame Gail Rebuek ?

9 6 4 6 2

i
1

[+ I ¥ Y
.

(o SR Y- I e -SSR+ . B S« S U v B+ I =
1 1
- 1
b |
1 1

Notes

() Remuneration Commuttee member

(4} Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee member
(u} Audit Committee member

(V) The Bigger Picture Commuttee member

() James Murdoch was unable to attend a Board meeting due to a prior business engagement
(vi) On 3 Apnil 2012 two Board meetings were held While it was not possible to convene alf directors for the first meeting most directors were able to attend the second

meeting

(w1} Mr Mockndge was unabie to attend a Board meeting due to a house move from italy to the UK

(vim) Jacques Nasser was unable to attend two Board meetings due to conflicting meetings of the BHP Billiton Board of which hes Chorrman He was also travelling on the day

of 3 April 2012 and so unoble to attend the two meetings cofled et short notice on thal day
(1x) MrRimer could not attend one Bodrd meeting due to a prior business commilment and wes unable to attend another due to a family iliness
(x) Matthieu Pigasse, Tracy Clarke and Martin Gitbert were appointed to the Board dunng the year
(xt) Dowid Evans, Allan Leighton and Dome Gaif Rebuck retired from the Board duning the year
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continued

The Independent Non-Executive Directors held meetings without
the executive directors present and the Charrman and SID held
regular meetings with major shareholders dunng the year

Directors & Qfficers’ Insurance and Indemnity

The Company recognises that all Directors are equally and
collectively accountable under the law for the proper stewardship
of the Company's affairs The Company maintamns a Directors’
and Officers liabrlity insurance policy which meets defence costs
when the Director 1s not proved to have acted fraudulently

Additionally, the Company’s articles of association allow the
Company to indemnify the Directors and deeds of indemnity
have been 1ssued to all the Directors of the Company

EFFECTIVENESS

Board composition and independence

The Board currently comprnises 14 Directors made up of two
Executive Directors and 12 Non-Executive Directors At least half
of the Board of Directors are determined to be independent

by the Board in accordance with provision B1 2 of the Code
Biographies of each of the Directors are set out on pages 40to
41 and identify those Directors who are in the view of the Board,
independent within the mean:ng of the Code Cn appointment
the Charrman met the independence criteria set out In provision
B11 of the Code

The Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a wide range

of expenence and expertise to the Group's affairs, and carry
significant weight in the Board s decisions The Independent Non-
Executve Directors are encouraged to challenge management and
help develop proposals on strategy Time Is regularly put aside at.
Board meetings to discuss the strategic direction of the Company

Prior to appointment, and on an annual basis, each Board
member receives and completes a questionnaire to determine
factors that may affect independence according to best practice
statements contained within the Code The responses to the
questionnarre assist the Board in ascertaining whether a Director
1s Independent in character and judgment, and whether there are
relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could
appear to affect the Director's judgment.

Appointments to the Board and succession planming

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee keeps

the Board s balance of skills knowledge, experience and the
length of senace of Indniduals under constant review In respect
of succession planning and supplementing the skill set of the
Board, there 1s an established procedure for the appointment of
Directors In brief, the Committee identifies the set of skills and
expenence required and, with the assistance of externa search
agencies, selects individuals to take Board positions on review of
thewr individual ments The process adopted by the Committee
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around Director recruitment 1s discussed in the Corporate
Governance & Nominattons Committee's report.

Board and committee changes durning the year

0On 18 October 20N, Andrew Higginson was appointed as a
member of the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee
At the Company’s AGM on 29 November 2011 David Evans and
Allan Leighton retired from the Board On the same date Martin
Gilbert and Matthieu Pigasse were appointed to the Board as
Independent, Non-Executive Directors

0On 3 Apnl 2012, the Company announced that James Murdoch
had stepped down as Chairman and would continue to serve

in his capacity as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
Nicholas Ferguson was appointed as Chairman Thomas
Mackridge was appointed as Deputy Chairman and Andrew
Higginson was appointed as Sentor independent Non-Executve
Director

On1May 2012, Daniel Rimer replaced Nicholas Ferguson as
Charman of the Remuneration Committee. Nicholas Ferguson
remains a member of the Remuneration Committee and Martin
Gilbert was appointed as a member of the Committee Matthieu
Prgasse was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee
Also on 1 May 2012, Andrew Higginson replaced Lord Wilson

as Chairman of the Corporate Governance & Nominations
Committee Lord Wilson remains a member of the Corporate
Governance & Nominations Commuittee and Danel Rimer was
apponted as a member of this Committee James Murdoch was
appointed Chairman of The Bigger Picture Committee in place
of Dame Gail Rebuck whe stepped down as Charrman and as a
member of the Committee

On 11 June 2(N2, Martin Gilbert was apponted as a member of
the Audit Committee On 11 June 2012 Dame Gall Rebuck retired
from the Board On the same date, Tracy Clarke was appointed
to the Board as an Independent Non-Executwve Director and was
also appointed as 2 member of the Remuneration and The Bigger
Picture Committees '

Time comnutment

Executive Directors are not allowed to take on the chairmanship
of a FTSE 100 company, but are allowed to take up one external
non-executive FTSE 100 appointment and retam any payments
nrespect of such appointments All Non-Executive Directors are
advised of the likely ime commitments reguired on induction,
and are expected to devote sufficient time for the effective
discharge of their functions The Company provides Non-
Executive Directors with appropnate support and facilities for
consideration of the Company s strategy and performance, and
a dialogue with the Chairman 1s strongly encouraged so that any
1ssues regarding conflicting commitments and time pressures ¢an
be addressed approprniately
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Induction & training

All new Directors receive an induction taillored to their indwidual
requirements The induction process involves meeting with ail
of the Company’s Executive Directors and Senior Executives
This facilitates their understanding of the Group and the key
dnivers of the business’ performance Dunng the year, Directors
have receved training in relation to the Listing Rules, directors’
duties and competition law compliance They have also recenved
presentations from a number of areas of the business induding
Customer Group and Sky Sports

Information provided to the Directors

The Company Secretary 1s responsible for ensuring good
nformation flows within the Board and its committees, between
sentor management and Non-Executive Directors In respect of
each Board and Committee meeting, Directors are provided with
a tallored Board pack at least one week pnor to the meeting To
imprave the delivery and secunty of Board papers the Company
has adopted an electronic system whereby Board packs are
directly loaded onto Directors 1Pads Directors regularly receve -
addrtional information from the Company between Board
meetings Including a monthly report updating the Directors on
the performance of the Group

Board evaluation

An evaluation of the Board 1s undertaken on an annual basis to
ensure that governance best practice standards are achieved
and upheld This year's internal Board evaluation has focused on
Board composition and succession planning and was led by the
Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee with regular
reporting to and input from the Board

The evaluation framework sought views on

« the effectiveness of the Board,

« the mix of skills and expenence on the Board
» the performance of the Board s committees

The evaluation 15 ongoing whilst the Board goes through a penod of
replacing Board members as they retire The Board has deaded that.
an externally facilitated Board Evaluation will be undertaken dunng
the 200213 financial year The development themes ansing frorm the
external evaluation process will be discussed in future reports

Directors’ reappointment

In respect of Code provision B 71 all Executrve and Non-Executive
Directors will retire and offer themselves for reappotntment at
the 2012 AGM of the Company in comphance with the Code

Conflicts of interest

Under UK comparty law all Directors must seek authonsation
before taking up any posiion with another company that
conflicts, or may possibly conflict with the Company’s interests
The Company’s articles of association contain provisions to

allow the Directors to authonse situations of potential conflicts
of interest so that a Director 15 not in breach of his duty under
company law All existng external appointments for each Director
have been authonsed by the Board and each authonsation s set
out in a Conflicts Register Directors are required te notify the
Board of potential conflicts so that they can be considered and

if appropnate, authonsed by the Board In addition the Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee conducts an annual review
of Directors conflicts and reports its findings to the Board

The Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee reviewed
the Board s conflicts during the financial year and concluded
that conflicts had been appropriatety authonsed and that the
process for authorisation 1s operating effectively The Corporate
Governance & Nominations Committee and the Board will
continue to monitor and review potential conflicts of interest on
aregular basis

ACCOUNTABILITY

Throughout this report and, as required through other periodic
financial statements the Board 1s committed to providing
shareholders with a dear assessment of the Company’s position
and prospects The Audit Committee has responsibility for
oversight of corporate reporting nsk management and the
Company’s relationship with its auditor A full description of the
Audit Committee s terms of reference 1s included in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 50 to 53

Significant nsks to the business are kept under constant review
and appropriate matenal controls are sanctioned and employed
as approprate The Company’s pnncipal nsks and examples of
how we mitigate those nisks are detatled on pages 28-31

REMUNERATION

The Board believes in adopting remuneration packages that
are appropnate for attracting, retaining and motivating
Directors The Remuneration Committee’s report on Directors
remuneration on pages 54 to 63 explains how remuneration
packages and performance incentives are employed by the
Company at Board leve! The Remuneration Committee 1s
responstble for setting the Remuneration policy for the Board
and ensures that no Director 1s involved in decisions affecting
their own remuneration

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder communications

Presentations and webcasts on the development of the
business are avallable to all shareholders on the Company’s
corporate website The Company alsc uses email alerts and
actwvely promates downloading of all reports enhancing speed
and equality of shareholder commumcation The Company has
taken full advantage of the provisions within the Companies
Act 2006 allowing the website to be used as the primary
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continued

means of communication with shareholders where they have
not requested hard copy documentation The shareholder
information sectron on pages 129 to 130 contains further details
on electronic shareholder communications together with more
general iInformation of interest to shareholders which 1s also
included on the Company’s corporate website

Shareholder engagement

The Company 1s committed to maintaimng and improving
dialogue with shareholders in order to ensure that the chjectives
of both the Group and the shareholders are understood A
programme of meetings with institutional shareholders, fund
managers and analysts takes place each year The Company *
also makes presentations to analysts and investors around

the time of the half-year and full-year results announcement,
conference calls are held with analysts and investors foltowing
the announcement of the first quarter and third quarter results,
and on accasion, following the announcement of the fourth
quarter results, and presentations are made during the year to
many existing or potential shareholders at investor conferences

The Board views the AGM as an opportunity to communicate

with private investors and sets aside ime at these meetings

for shareholders to ask questions of the Board At the AGM, the
Chairman provides a brief summary of the Company’s actvities
for the previous year to the shareholders All resolutions at the
201 AGM were voted by way of an electronic poll This follows
best practice and allows the Company to count all votes rather
than just those of shareholders attending the meeting. As
recommended by the Code, al! resolutions were voted separately
and the voting results, which included all votes cast for against
and those withheld, together with all proxies lodged prior to the
meeting, were Indicated at the meeting and the final results were
released to the London Stock Exchange as soon as practicable
after the meeting The announcement was also made available on
the Company’s corporate website As in previous years, the proxy
form and the announcement of the voting results made it clear
that a ‘vote withheld' 1s not a vote in law and will not be counted
in the caleulation of the proportion of the votes for or against the
resolution

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Chairman’s overview

We have had an active year,
securing the appointment of
three new Independent Non-
Executve Directors Martin Gilbert,
Matthieu Pigasse and Tracy Clarke
to succeed Dawvid Evans, Alian
Leighton and Dame Gail Rebuck on
their retirement from the Board We also have a new Chairman,
Nicholas Ferguson who replaced James Murdoch in Apnl 2012
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Qur orderly programme of replacaing Independent Non-Executive
Directors as they retire will continue into the 201243 financial
year as Jacques Nasser has indicated that he does not intend to
stand for reappointment at the Company’s 2012 AGM It was Lord
Wilson of Dinton s intention to retire at this year's AGM However,
he has agreed to stand for reappointment in order to ensure that
the Board has the correct balance of Independent Non-Executive
Directors during the penod in which we expect his replacement
to be appointed This will ensure the Company’s continued
compliance with corporate governance best practice

Succession planning Is a key part of our annual programme and
for each position we have reviewed the existing skill-set on the
Board, specifically in terms of background, knowledge experience
and the dversity of the Board We have balanced this with the
Company's strategic direction and cbjectives to ensure that
each appointment strengthens the Board so that it canhelp and
challenge management to grow and take the business forward

We have used external consultants to help us with the
recruitment process and members of the Corporate Governance
& Nominations (“CGN") Committee and the Chief Executive Officer
have met with a number of candidates throughout the year who
met, the Committee’s cntena This pregramme will continue into
the 201243 financial year The CGN Commuttee reviewed the roles
and responsibilties of Directors and the membership of the Board
and its Committees and a number of changes were recommended
to the Board duning the year Nicholas Ferguson has been
appointed Chairman, Thomas Mocknidge has been appointed

as Deputy Chairman and | have been appointed as the Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director

This year's Board evaluation process has focussed on the
composition of the Board and its committees and succession
planning In ine with Corporate Governance best practice the
CGN Committee has deaded to undertake an external board
evaluation dunng the 201213 finanaal year whuch will ensure that
the views of our new Independent Nen-Executive Directors are
captured as the Board is refreshed

The Board as a whole welcomes the opportunity to adapt

to Innovations and change within the field and 1s actively
progressing Inttiatives such as addressing gender balance on
the Board, sourcing the nght. skills to complement our talented
management team and creating robust succession plans to
safeguard the Company's future performance

Andrew Higginson
Committee Chairman

Committee membership

The CGN Committee 15 chared by Andrew Higginson and its other
members are Lord Wilson of Dinton Nicholas Fergusen Daniel
Rimer and Arthur Siskind The majonity of the members of the
CGN Committee are independent Non-Executive Directorsin
comphance with the Code
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Changes to the membership of the Committee during the
year

Lord Wilson of Dinton stepped down as Chairman of the CGN
Committeeon1 May 2012 and Andrew Higginson was appointed
inhis place Lord Wilson remains a member Daniel Rimer was
appointed as a member of the CGN Committee on 1 May 2012

The role of the Committee
The Chairman reports regularly to the Board on its activities its
main duties nclude

« thedentification and nomination, for approval by the Board
of candidates to fill Board vacancies as they arise,

« thedrafting of requirements for a particular appointment to
the Board taking into consideration the present balance of
skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board,

« the regular review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board and to recommend any changes to the Board or
succession planning

+ the provision of a formal letter of appointment setting cut
clearly what 1s expected of new appointees to the Board 1n
terms of time commitment, term of office and committee
service as well as therr duties and habilities as a Director
including details of the Company's corporate governance
policies and Directars and Officers hability insurance cover,
and

« the monitoring of the Company’s comphance with applicable
Corporate Governance Codes and other similar requirements

Activities during the year

During the year, the CGN Committee reviewed the Company s
Corporate Governance Memorandum which includes the terms
of reference of the Board and its Committees and recommended
amendments to the Board to reflect best practice The revised
terms of reference were approved by the Beard and are avalable
on the Company’s corporate website

The CGN Committee has reviewed the composition of the Board
and its Committees and a formal recruitment process has been
followed to identify candidates who fulfil the Board s eritena
This has been debated by the Board and the CGN Committee
and the Chief Executive Officer met with a number of potentiat
candidates dunng the year An external recruitment consultancy,
JCA Group has been used to help the CGN Committee identify
possible candidates and run the recruitment process '

The CGN Committee recommended three candidates to the
Board dunng the year, Martin Gilbert, Matthieu Pigasse and

Tracy Clarke All of these candidates have different backgrounds
expenence and skill sets which will help strengthen the Board and
improve its diversity

The Board and the CGN Committee have noted the findings of
the Davies Review It 1s the CGN Committee’s intention to increase
female representation on the Board Below Board level women
account for 22% of senior management, which 1s an increase from
recent years reflecting the Company’s focus on ensunng that
women are faly represented in leadership and management
positions During the year the Company won the Women of the
Future Corporate Award 201

The CGN Committee also reviewed the independence of the
Non-Executive Directors and recommended to the Board that
there be no changes to the independent status of the current
independent Non-Executive Directors The Non-Executive
Directors who are considered by the Board to be independent
are clearly identified on pages 40 to 41 The Board's critena for
determining whether a Non-Executive Director is independent
are set out In the Memorandum on Corporate Governance which
can be found on the Company’s corporate website

The CGN Committee’s review took into consideration the fact
that Jacques Nasser had served on the Board for more than nine
years and it Is his intention to retire at the Company’s 2012 AGM
The CGN Committee s review also took into consideration the
fact that by the date of the Company’s 2012 AGM Lord Wilson of
Dinton will have served on the Board for more than nine years
Prevision B 11 of the Code suggests that serving more than nine
years could be relevant to the determination of a Non-Executive
Director's independence The CGN Commuttee concluded that
Lord Wilson of Dinton continued to demonstrate the essential
charactenistics of Independence expected by the Board and
that there are no relationships or circumstances that are likely to
affect, or could appear to affect, his judgment

The CGN Committee reviewed the Board's conflicts during the
financial year and concluded that Directors’ conflicts had been
appropriately authorised and that the process for authonsation
was operating effectively The CGN Comnuttee and the Board will
continue to monitor and review potential conflicts of interest and
take action to mitigate them as necessary

Charrman’s overview

We are bullding a sustainable
business because this creates value
for our customers and 1s cntical

to bullding long-term success The
Bigger Picture Committee provides
strategic leadership for the work we
do at Sky to contribute positively

to society From acting responsibly in our day-to-day operations
to inspining action across our focus areas of Environment, Sport
Arts and Schools we make a difference In the commumities where
we live and work, and we give our customers and our people more
reasons to Join Sky and stay with us to enjoy all that we offer
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Over the year we have continued to contribute to the UK
economy, investing in the growth and success of the creative
industries We've continued to make sure our products and
services can be used by everyone, managed our environmental
impact, created valuable partnerships with our supplters and
done even more to make Sky a great place to work.

We reached our £4m fundraising target for Sky Rainforest
Rescue, our partnership with WWF to help save a billion trees

in the Amazon rainforest, six months ahead of target. We have
approved the extension of this work untid 2015, and will focus on
promoting sustainable alternatives to deforestation and using
our position as a broadcaster and media company to drive even
greater awareness In the UK and Ireland

We have also agreed four more years of support from grassroots
to elite cyching through our partnership with Briish Cycling, and
will continue to iIncrease participation by backing the leading
riders through our support of Team Sky and inspirng the next
generation to get involved Sky1s now one of the largest investors
n arts on screen through the Sky Arts channels and onthe
ground through the Sky Arts Ignition Senes which is creating

new ground-breaking art works events and performances In
February 2012 we were pleased to announce Tate Liverpool as
the first of six partners and are also looking forward to seeing the
work of the five talented young artists emerge over the coming
year as we support them with mentonng and funding,

I am proud that for the first time we have been identified as one
of eleven globally leading compantes in the Publishing Media
sector of the Dow Jones Sustainability Index This recognition
for what we do across Sky to make sure we contribute long-term
value to society Is impartant to us, our Investors and to the
markets in which we work,

Lastly | would like to thank Dame Gail Rebuck for her leadership
of The Bigger Picture Committee as It has evolved over her tenure
as the Chair

James Murdoch
Committee Chairman

Comruttee Membership
The Bigger Picture Committee 1s chaired by James Murdoch, and
its other members are Tracy Clarke and Lord Wilson of Dinton

Changes to the membership of the Committee during
the year

Dame Gall Rebuck resigned as Chairman of The Bigger Picture
Committee and as a member on 1 May 2012 and James Murdoch
was appointed Chairman in her place Tracy Clarke became
amember of The Bigger Picture Committee foilowing her
appointment to the Board on 11 June 2012
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The role of the Committee

The Chairman of The Bigger Picture Commuttee reports regularly
to the Board an its actmties The main duties of The Bigger
Picture Committee include

« reviewing and approving The Bigger Picture strategy,

+ seeking external stakeholders views on The Bigger Picture
strategy and performance,

« reviewing and approving the annual reporting of The Bigger
Picture actmties

« monitoring progress in achieving The Bigger Picture objectives
and key performance indicators

+ ensuring the resources and skills are avallable to implement
The Bigger Picture strategy, and

»  providing the Board with an cverview of the social,
environmental and ethical impacts of the Company s activities
and how they are being managed

An overview of the Company's approach to being a responsible
business day to day and inspiring our customers to take actionto
make a difference ts provided in the section on ‘How we do business’
on pages 19 to 27 of the Directors’ report - Business review

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman’s overview

Ouring the year, the Audit

Committee continued to focus

on the financial performance of

the Company internal audit, nsk

management compliance and

| financial governance The Audit
Committee has a standing agenda

which it reviews and works through each year

This year the Audit Committee has recerved a number of
presentations from the management of different operating units
to improve its undlerstanding of their operations and the nsks
they face and how those nsks are managed

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the Groups
implementation of adequate procedures in relation to the Bribery
Act 2010 recewved presentations from the Charrman of the Data
Governance Comimittee and received regular reports from the
Company’s internal audit function and external auditor

During the year the Company conduded a review of editonal
practices at Sky News While there had been no allegation of
impropriety at Sky News, the Company undertook the review at
its instigation as part of its commitment to acting responsibly
across all areas of Sky’s business Reporting tethe Audit
Committee the process included the review of emails of a
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number of key Sky News journalists by the Company’s external
legal advisors Herbert Smith The review concluded in Apnl 2012
and found no evidence of iImpropriety or cause for concern
Separately the Audit Committee undertook a review of the way
inwhich the Company approached two separate investigations
undertaken by Sky News In each of the investigations a Sky News
journalist accessed the email of indviduals suspected of cniminal
activity Following a thorough review of each of those cases the
Audit Committee concluded that the action was justified in the
public interest and subject to proper editenal oversight.

We welcomed two new members to the Audit Committee, Martin
Gilbert and Matthieu Pigasse, who both have extensive recent
and relevant financial expenence in the fund management and
investment banking sectors Allan Leighton, a former Chasrman
of the Audit Committee, and Dame Gall Rebuck retired from the
Board and as members of the Audit Committee during the year
and { would like to thank them both for their valued contnbution
to the work of the Audit Committee

Andrew Higginson
Committee Chairman

Committee Membership

The Audit Committee, which consists exclusively of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in compliance with the Code, has
clearly defined terms of reference as laid down by the Board
The Audit Committee 1s chaired by Andrew Higginson and the
other members are Matthieu Pigasse and Martin Gilbert. The CFO
and representatives from the external auditor and the internal
audit department attend meetings at the request of the Audit
Committee The CEQ and other business and finance executives
attend meetings from time to time The Audit Committee
Charrman reports regularly to the Board on its actvities

David DeVoe and Arthur Siskind have a standing invitation to
attend meetings of the Audit Committee Therr attendance at
these meetuings Is as observers only and In a non-voting capacity

Changes to the membership of the Committee dunng the
year

Allan Leighton stepped down as a member of the Aucht
Committee on 29 November 2011 and Dame Gail Rebuck stepped
down on 11 June 2012 Matthieu Pigasse was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee on 1 May 2012 and Martin
Gilbert was appointed on 11 June 2012 There was a penod dunng
the year between Allan Leighton's retirement from the Board
and the Audit Committee on 29 November 201 and Matthieu
Pigasse’'s appointment as a member of the Audit Committee on

1 May 2012, that the Audit Committee's membership fell to two
Independent Non-Executive Directors The meeting of the Audit
Committee held on 30 January 2012 was held prior to Mr Pigasse’s
appointment to the Committee There were no other meetings
held without three Independent Non-Executive Directors betng
present from 29 November 2011 to 1 May 2012

The role of the Committee
The Chairman reports regularly to the Board on its activities Its
marn duties include

« making recommendations to the Board inrefationtothe
appoeintment, reappomtment and removal of the external
auditor and discussing with the external auditor the nature
scope and fees for the external auditor’s work,

+  reviewing and making recommendations to the Beard
regarding the approval, or any amendment to the quarterly,
half year and annual financial statements of the Group

« reviewing the Group s significant accounting pohcies,
+  reviewing the Groups systems of internal control,
»  reviewing the Group's treasury policies

+ recommending the appointment of the Groups Director
Audit, Risk Management and Compliance,

« reviewing the audit plan and findings of the Group’s Internal
audit function

» monitonng and reviewing the effectiveness of the Groups
internal audit function,

» approving all non-audit services provided by the Group's
external auditor In accordance with the Group's policy,

¢ monttoring the Group's whistle-blowing policy

»  News UK Nominees Limited, a subsidhary of News Corporation
15 a major shareholder in the Group The Audit Committee
recelves on a quarterly basis, a schedule of all transactrons
between companies within the News Corporation group and
the Group and any other related party transactions, showing
all transactions which have been entered into during the year
and which cumulatively exceed £100,000 in value,

+  Audit Committee approval 1s required for the entenng into
by the Group of a commitment or arrangement (or any
series of related commitments or arrangements) with News
Corporation or any of its subsidianes or any other related
party which imvolves or could reasonably involve the payment
or receipt by the Group of amounts equal to or In excess
of £10 million but not exceeding £25 milhon In aggregate
value with News Corporation Any transaction in excess of
£25 million in aggregate value must be submitted to the Audit
Committee and, iIf approved by the Audit Committee, must
also be submitted to the full Board for approval

The Audit Committee members have considerable financial
and business expenence and the Board considers that the
membership as a whole has sufficilent recent and relevant
financial experience to discharge its functions In addition, the
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Board has determined that each member of the Audit Committee
has sufficient accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by the UK Listing Authonity’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Actvities during the year

The Audit Committee met six times duning the financial year
Meeting agendas were organised around the Company’s financial
reporting cycle and items covered were as follows

Financial management and reporting
+ received regular updates from the CFO on the financal
performance and financial management of the Group,

+  reviewed the Company's Annual Report, half-yearly results
and interim management statements

+ reviewed the Group's accounting policies and

+ received quarterly reports from the treasury function onthe
funding liguidity and operational capabilities of the Group
and compliance with treasury policies

Internal control
» constdered the effectiveness of the Group s internal controls
over financial reporting

+  reviewed the Internal audit department’s resources and
annuat audit plan,

« reviewed quarterly reports from internal audit on the results
of its audit work and management's implementation of its
recommendations,

+ received quartery updates from internal audit on the status
of Senior Accounting Officer (SAQ) certification work to
ensure SAQ compliance, and

+ evaluated the effectiveness of the internal audit department.

External Audit Matters
» received regular reports from the external auditor

«  reviewed and approved the 201112 audit work plan,

+ recenved regular updates onthe use of non-audit services
provided by the external auditor and ensured that all services
and fees were approved in accordance with the Group's policy,

+ reviewed the effectiveness quality of work and independence
of the external auditor, and

+ approved the re-appointment, remuneration and
engagement letter of the external auditor

Risk management
+ reviewed the Groups Risk Register

+ received risk presentations from vanous business areas and
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+ approved the Group's Risk Management, Policy and Standards

Other
« reviewed quarterly secunty updates which include whistle-
blowing

» reviewed quarterly related party transactions reports, and

« reviewed the Group s implementation of adequate
procedures in relation to the Bnbery Act 2010

The Audit Comnittee also receved updates from the Director of
Group Secunty the Chairman of the Data Governance Committee i
and the Director of People on health and safety |

The external auditors attended five meetings of the Audit
Committee during the year The Director Audit Risk Management
and Comphance has direct access to the Committee Charman
and the external audit partner

Internal controf and nsk management

The Directors have overall responsibility for establishing and
maintaning the Groups systems of internal control and risk
management and for reviewing therr effectrveness These systems
are desgned to manage and where possible eliminate, the nsk of
failure to achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or
loss There s an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant nsks faced by the Group in accordance
with the revised guidance on internal control issued by the
Financial Reporting Council in October 2005 Dunng the panod
under review no significant falings or weaknesses were identified

The Audit Committee on behalf of the Board, considers the
effectiveness of the operation of the Groups systems of internal
control and nsk management dunng the year and this review

has been carned out for the year ended 30 June 2012 and up

to the date on which the financial statements were approved
This review relates to the Company and its subsidianes and does
not extend to joint ventures The Audit Committee meets on

at least a quarterly basis with the Group's Director Audit Risk
Management and Compliance and the external auditors

There s a comprehensive budgeting and forecasting process and
the annual budget, which is regularly reviewed and updated 15

approved by the Board Performance 1s monitored aganst budget
through weekly and monthly reporting cycles Durng the financal
year under review monthly reports on performance were provided
to the Board and the Group reports to shareholders each quarter

In respect of Group financial reporting the Group finance team

15 responsible for prepanng the Group financial statements and

there are well established controls over the financial reporting

process These are also documented in hine waith the requirements

of the SAQ legislation and the controls are reviewed and signed

of f to confirm their continuous operation by the control owners

twice a year and are independently tested by the internal audit ‘
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team The results of the SAQ testing are reported to the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis

There are nisk registers which identify the risks faced by the
Group and these are consolidated into a Group Risk Register The
registers detall the controls that manage the nsks and where
necessary, the action plans to mitigate the nsk exposure. The
business develops the action plans and the internal audit team
monitor thetrr implementation The Audit Committee formally
reviews the Group Risk Register twice a year and there s a rolling
programme where senior executives from the business present
their nsk management plans The Groug's principal risks and
uncertainties are detailled in the Business Review

The mternal audit team provides objective assurance as to the
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control and risk
management to the Group s operating management and to the
Audit Committee

Disclosure controls and procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls, procedures and
systems that are designed to ensure that information reguired
to be disclosed as part of the Company s UK listing obligations 1s
accumulated and communicated to management including the
CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decistons regarding
required disclosures

The Company has established a Disclosure Committee The
committee I1s chared by the Company Secretary and its members
consist of senior managers from group finance legal and nvestor
relations It has responsibility for considering the materiality

of information (including inside information) and, on a timely
basis determination of the disclosure and treatment of such
information The Disclosure Committee also has responsibibity for
overseeing the process for the formal review of the contents of
the Company’s Annual Report

Changes in intemnal controls

No change In the Group's internal control over financial reporting
has occurred dunng the year ended 30 June 2012 that has
matenially affected oris reasonably likely to matenally affect the
Group's internal control over financial reporting.

Use of external auditor

The Group has a pelicy on the provision by the external auditor
of audit and non-audit services which categorises such services
between

« those services which the auditor is not permitted to provide,

+ those sennices which are acceptable for the auditor to prownde
and the provision of which has been pre-approved by the
Audit Committee, and

« those services for which the specific approval of the Audit
Committee is required before the auditor 1s permitted to
provide the service

The policy defines the types of services falling under each
category and sets out the cntena wiuch need to be met and
the internal approval mechanisms required to be completed
prior to any engagement. An analysis of all services provided by
the external auditor 1s reviewed by the Audit Committeeon a
quarterly basis

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Audit Committee has
reviewed audit independence and scope of non-audit services
and independence safeguards with Deloitte LLP, the Group's
external auditor As part of the review, the Audit Committee has
received and reviewed confirmation inwriting that, in Deloitte
LLP s professional judgment, Deloitte LLP 15 independent within
the meaning of all UK regulatory and professional requirements
and the objectvity of the audit engagement partner and audit
staff 1s not impaired

The Audit Committee was satisfied throughout the year that the
objectmty and independence of Deloitte LLP was not in any way
impaired by erther the nature of the non-audit related services
undertaken during the year the level of non-audit fees charged
or any other facts or circumstances Services provided dunng
the year were approved by the Audit Commuittee An analysis of
auditor remuneration is disclosed 1n note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements

The appomntment of Deloitte LLP as the Group’s external
auditor (incumbents since 2002) 1s kept under review The Audit
Committee has approved the external auditor's remuneration

, and terms of engagement and s fully satisfied with the

perfermance objectivity quality of challenge and independence
of the external auditor The Audit Committee has recommended
that a resolution to reappoint the external auditor as the
Company’s statutory auditors be proposed at the Company s
forthcoming AGM The external auditor 1s required to rotate the
audit partner responsible for the engagement every five years
The current lead partner started his term of office in relation to
the 2010/11 financial year

Data Governance

The Data Governance Committee (the "DG Committee™) reports
to the Audit Committee The role of the DG Committee 1sto
ensure that appropriate procedures and controls are in place to
ensure that the Group processes personal data in accordance
with Data Protection laws, and that indviduals are able to
exercise their nghts under such laws A set of policies has been
updated and further developed under the DG Committee to
outline and promote consistent standards and practices in the
collection and use of personal data across the Group The policies
also set out the responsibilities of employees in managing
personal data and the escalation process to be followed, should
employees become aware of any breach of policy

Directors’ responsibilities
The responsibilities of the Directors are set out on page 67
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

Chairman’s statement

ey - On behalf of the Board, | am pleased
to present our report on Cirectors’
remuneration for 2012, a year nwhich
the Company has delivered another
excellernt performance and increased
returns to shareholders We put
performance at the heart of our
remuneration policy Our objectives
are to align executive intergsts with value creation for shareholders
and to ensure that the Company can continue to retain and attract
the talent that will allow It to achieve long-term success

As a consequence the majonty of executive pay Is tied to the
achievement of challenging targets based on a range of measures
geared to the Company’s strategic goals If those targets are met
or exceeded through outstanding performance the Company s
executives will be rewarded accordingly By the same token, any
failure to achieve the Company’s goals has a direct impact on
executve pay

Results for this year show that against the continued backdrop of
a challenging economic environment, the Company has generated
continued strong demand from customers for its products and
delwvered record financial performance As we continue to improve
the quality and value that we offer, customers are choosing Sky in
greater numbers and taking a growing number of products from
us Net product growth of 3 0 milhon took the total to 28 4 million,
up by 12% year on year including the addition of 312000 new
households Over the last three years our total subscription
product base has now grown by 61%, from 176 million to 28 4 million

Strong operating results led to revenue growth of 3% despite
freezing prices for customers Combined with good discipline

on costs, this has delivered double-digit growth in adjusted
operating profit and the highest adjusted operating margin for
six years Earnings per share has more than doubled since 2007/8
We have also provided superior returns to shareholders, and our
share price has outperformed the FTSE100 index by 4% since the
proposed News Corporation offer dropped away Cash returns to
shareholders this fiscal year were £953 milion

Thus strong performance is reflected inthe remuneration of the
Executive Directors, which is designed to align ther interests

as strongly as possible with those of shareholders Overall
remuneration 1s composed of a mix of fixed pay, short-term vanable
pay and long-termvariable pay The ratio of fixed to vanable pay
1520% B80% which remains one of the lowest inthe FTSE100
where the average fixed tovanable ratio 1s 35% 65% Over a five
vear period fixed pay for Executive Directors today 1s 7% lower In
absolute terms than it was in 2007 Over the same period base pay
for employees as a whole has increased by 16 5% in absolute terms

This year the Remuneration Commyittee proposed not tomcrease
the base salanes of the CEQ and CFO Salary ncreases for the rest of
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the Company were awarded and in ight of the excellent performance
of the Company the average increase of 2 75% for those employees
earming less than £100,000 p.a was increased to 4%, ensuring that
the largest proportion of the ncrease went to front ine staff and
junior and middle management.

It 1s the Committee’s intention that a high proportion of total
executive pay should be vanable and related to performance

To ersure that vanable pay 1s farr and appropnate in ight of

the Company’s overall performance, the Committee retains the
discretion to adjust bonus payments ether up or down The major
component of vanable pay s the Long Term Incentive Plan which s
determined by Company performance and shareholder returns over
athree-year penod We believe this approach will continue to provide
the nght Incentrves of significant rewards for supenor performance
over time and promgotes value creation for shareholders.

As a Committee we are very aware of the strong mterest inthe
subyect of remuneration and, as well as taking due account of other
external factors, we are committed to an ongoing dialogue with our
investors We heold an annual consultation meeting on remuneration
with the Company's major shareholders and institutional investor
groups which enables us to take shareholders' views fully nto
account when making decisions about remuneration

During 201112 the Committee reviewed the remuneration
arrangements for Executive Directors to ensure that they continue
to meet the objectives of the Company's remuneration policy

As part of the review of annual bonus measures it was proposed
to replace customer net growth with the broader measure of
product net growth This aligns our measures to our agreed
business strategy

The Remuneration Committee have noted that the Executive
Long Term Incentrve Plan (LTIP) vests every two years This differs
from most other schemes which have annual vesting The effect
of this 1s that subject to the performance conditions having
been met, there will be a significant difference in Directors total
remuneration from one year to the next. As part of its continuing
review of policy, the Remuneration Committee will consider the
possibility of moving to annual vesting in respect of the LTIP

During this calendar year the Department for Business
Inncvation and Skills (BIS) has made several proposals for
changes to the Directors Remuneration Reports published as
part of compantes’' Annual Reports The Committee discussed
these proposals at length and will give further consideration
to the appropriate changes in due course To improve the
presentation of this report we have made a number of changes
and | trust shareholders will appreciate the new format

Danel Rimer
Committee Chairman




DIRECTORS REPORT - GOVERNANCE

Section 1 - Remuneration Policy

11 Pnnélples

In setting remuneration policy the Committee s guided by its
responsibility to shareholders, the performance of the Company
and relevant external factors

Remuneration across Sky is based on the following principles

+  We want to reward all our peoaple fairly and competruvely to
attract and retain the calibre of ndmiduals that will continue
to deliver sigmificant growth in value

» Any increases in fixed pay for Executive Directors are decided
inthe same way as those for all employees and are based on
the performance and expenence of each indvidual and the
size and scope of their role

1.2 Structure of remuneration

«  Executive Directors remuneration is geared towards
rewarding challenging long-term strategic objectives and
targets and offers the opportunity to earn significant
rewards for outstanding levels of performance

» Care s taken to ensure that the overall remuneration policy
does not inadvertently encourage inappropnate risk taking
and the Committee penodicalty conducts a forma! review of
risk in the context of remuneration

+  Thisyear the Committee reintroduced relative TSR into the
July 2012 LTIP awards which was omitted for the 20M financial
year due to the share price being impacted by the possible
bid from News Corporation

Element of remuneraton How it supports the strategy Level / opportunity Datail
Basic safary Takes account of each executive’s + CEC - E935,000 = Salaries are reviewed annually Any changes are
expenience and personal contnbutton +CFO - 573500 made from 1 July

» Noincreases were awarded in 201213

Annual bonus Drives and rewards annual performance « CEQ - up to 200% of  Payments are based on achwevernent of targets,
base salary including
+CFO-upto150%of  + Operating profit growth
base salary « Operating cash fiow
» An amount equivalent . product net growtn
to up to half of the
bonus can be
nvested in the
Co-lnvestrent Plan
Co-Investment Plan Encourages executive investment and + Executive may invest Deferred shares are matched based on three-year

commitment Helps retain talent

an amount equivalent compound annual EPS growth
touptohalfoftherr . gelow RPI +3% - no match

h
annual cashbonusin RP+3% -1 1match

shares
« The number of shares * RP1 +6%-15 1 match

may be matchedup  * Straight line vesting i between
toamaxmumof1s

shares (on an after

tax basis) for every

share Invested

Long Term Incentive Plan Incentivises long-term value creation

(LTIP) directly bnking to shareholder interests
Rewards achievement of sustaned EPS
growth and relative TSR performance

2012/13 awards will be  + 0% of award ts based on achievement of
« CEO - 600000 shares  ©perabional targets (equally weighted on EPS
«CFO - 320000 shares Operating cash flow Revenue growth)
« 30% of the award 1s based on TSR relatwve to the
FTSEI00
» Measured over three years
= \esting OCCUrs every two years

Notes
(1) Pension and other benefits detarfedin 1 4

(1) Opercting profit, operating cash flow EPS and revenue growth are generally defined as adjusted operating profit adjusted operating cash flow adusted EPS and
adjusted revenue growth however the Committee will review the measures and may emend definitions at its discretion
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

continued

REMUNERATION MiX

Target remuneration Maximum remuneration
Average of Average of
Executwe Directors Executwe Directors

Fixec
uly &
Lnp mp
benus

Executive Directors’ remuneratton at Sky has three mam
elements

pay

Maximum
benus

« Fixed pay - basic salary pension and other benefits

+ Short-term vanable pay - annual bonus with an option to
invest an amount equivalent to up to half the bonus in a Co-
Investment Plan

+ tong-termvanable pay - the Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Remuneration Committes believes that the majority of
executive pay should be hinked to performance

13 Basic salary

Basic salartes of all our employees are reviewed annually Salary
awards for employees including Executive Directors take
account of Company performance anindnadual s performance
durning the year and f appropriate, local market conditions For
Executive Directors salanes are benchmarked against a subset
of the FTSE100 (comprising 20 relevant companies of a similar
market capitalisation) No salary increases have been awarded to
Executive Directors for 2013 !

14 Pension and other benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for all elgible
employees, the BSkyB Pension Plan ("Pension Plan™) The Group
has no legacy-defined benefit plans Employees contrnbute up
to 4% of pensionable salary into the Pension Pian each year and
the Company matches this with a contnbution of up to 8% of
pensionable salary

Individuals whose pension contributions exceed the Annual
Allowance for pension tax relief are paid as a cash supplement.
During the year Jeremy Darroch was given a cash supplement of
£128.255 and Andrew Gnffith was grven a cash supplement of
E37883 For Executive Directors this contnbution rate 1s well below
market norms

The Pension Plan has income protection of up to two-thirds
salary, or £300 000 and insured death in service of up to one-
third salary which can be taken entirely as a pension, or 50%
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lump sum and 50% pension, or entirely as alump sum, subject
to the lifet:ime allowance The Pension Plan also has enhanced
Life Assurance cover up to four times annual salary for those
employees who decide not to join the Pension Plan they receve
Life Assurance of two times annual salary

Other benefits include use of a company car and private medical
insurance

1.5 Annual bonus

The annual bonus s designed to drive the achievement of
annual financial and strategic business targets, and personal
performance

For 2013 the annual bonus for Executive Directors wall continue to
be based on three equally-weighted measures operating profit,
free cash flow and product growth These are three of the Key
Performance Indicators for Sky as detalled in Our Performance on
pages 10 to 11 The bonus that may be achieved against the three
measures may be adjusted up or down by the Committee based on
the personal performance of each indmdual executve

The maximum bonus opportunities for 2013 continue to be 200%
and 150% of salary for the CEQ and CFO respectively Executive
Directors and Senior Executives have the opportunity to invest
an amount equivalent to up to half of thesr annual bonuses

in return for performance-related matching shares under the
Co-Investment Plan (see page 57) For 2012, actual performance
against measures and the resulting payouts under the annual
bonus are shown on page 58

16 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Sky operates an LTIP for its Executive Directors and Senior
Executives to incentmvise and drive long-term value creation
This provides strong alignment with shareholders’ interests and
ensures that the entire senior management team is focused on
the same goals

Key features of the LTIP
+ Al awards are made at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee

* The LTIP operates in three-year cycles, with vesting occurnng
every other year The next vesting of LTIPs are due tovest at
the beginning of the 2013A14 financial year

« Inthe first year, participants are granted nil-cost options with

+  vesting based on a three-year performance period In the
second year, a further award of up to 100% of the year-one
award may be granted This second tranche vests at the same
time as the first.
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+ To provide ahgnment with shareholders, the grants are fixed
as a number of shares rather than as a monetary value The
value of an Executive s award 1s therefore linked to the share
price

« Toensure an cutcome that is fair to both executives and
shareholders, the Committee retains discretion over any
- vesting in the event of change of control

LTIP award sizes

As part of the 2012A13 LTIP grant cycle Jeremy Darroch will be
granted an award of 600 000 shares and Andrew Griffith will be
granted an award of 320000 shares

There was no Increase made to the level of LTIP awards this year

Conditions of vesting
The Committee regularly reviews the measures under the LTIP to
ensure they remain appropriate

For the awards that were made in 2010 and 201 {vesting 1n 2013),
TSR was not used as a measure as the Company’s share price at
the time of grant was matenally impacted by the possible tbid
from News Corporation

For awards made from July 2072 and any that will be made in 2013
(vesting in 2015) the relative TSR measure will be rentroduced
70% of these awards will be based on operational targets and
30% on relative TSR

1) Operational targets (100% weighting for 20102011 awards and
70% for 2012/2013 awards)

The operational performance conditions for the LTIP are EPS
growth, operating cash flow and revenue growth, each of which1s
key to Sky's success EPS captures our bottom line performance,
operating cash flow our ability to generate and manage cash and
revenue growth Is a key measure of the success of our strategy

20101201 awards N
Points are awarded for performance on three operational
measures as follows

+ For EPS one point 1s awarded for growth of RPI +3% p a, with
the maximum ten points awarded for RPL +8% pa or more

«  For operating cash flow and revenue growth one pomt 15
awarded for 75% achievement of target on a sliding scale up
to ten ponts for 105% or more

+  One pont equates to 10% of the award vesting with
maximum vesting for 21 points or more, with straight-line basis
between these points

This ts shown in further detall in the table below

EPS growth Operating cash flow Revenue growth
Performance Performance
Performance Points achieved foints achieved Points

achieved awarded  (%oftarget) awarded (%oftarget) awarded
105% 105%

RP +8% pa 10 or more 10 or more 10

RP1 +7% pa 8 100% 8 100% 8

RP +6% pa 6 a95% 6 95% 6

RPI +5% pa 4 90% 4 90% 4

RPL +4% pa 2 85% 2 85% 2

RPI +3% pa 1 75% 1 75% 1

Less than Less than Less than

RP1 +3% pa o] 75% 0 75% o]

20122013 awards

The operational performance conditions of the LTIP award for
2012/2015 are the same as the awards for 2010/2013 being EPS
growth, operating cash flow and revenue growth over three years
As prevtously disclosed the Company will reintroduce TSR for this
scheme and 30% of the awards will vest on TSR performance The
EPS growth target for the maximum award of 10 points was set
at RPI+5% p a (equvalent to 26% growth inearnings over three
years if RPI 1s 3% p a) This level of growth in earnings was setat a
level which exceeds consensus research analysts estimates

1} TSR performance (30% weighting for 2012 and 2013 awards)
The Company's TSR performance 1s measured relative to the TSR
of the constituents of the FTSE100

If the Company’s TSR performance Is below median, the TSR
element of the award lapses in full For median performance,
10% of an award may vest with 30% vesting for upper quartile
performance Vesting is on a straight-tine basts, between these
points as shown below

TSR Vesting Schedule

Payout
Oeof grant m

=

L " i "

A
Below 50 1.3 (24 53 mn kel &0

YyYvyyvvyvy

Final TSR rank {%)

TSR calculations are conducted independently by New Bridge
Street, advisors to the Committee
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

continued

17 Co-Investment Plan

To further encourage Executive Directors and Senior Executives
to rwest in the Company the Co-Investment Plan (CIP) offers the
opportunity to earn performance-related matching shares in
return for therr investment,

Key features of the CIP
»  This helps align executives with shareholder interests by
encouraging them to purchase BSkyB shares

+ Around 136 executives are invited to buy shares 90
executrvas elected to do so, dunng the peniod under review
including both of the Executive Directors

+ Parbicipants in the CIP can invest an amount equivalent to
up to 50% of their annual bonus in shares (deferred for three
years) and are granted a conditional matching award of
shares based on the amount invested

* Shares are matched up to a maximum of 15 shares 1
share invested, and may vest depending on three-year EPS
growth One matching share 1s awarded for RPI+3% pa with
15 shares for RPl +6% p a. as set out below

/ EPS growth Match awarded \
(number of matching

performance
(annual average growth shares awarded
over three-year term) per deferred share)
Less than RPI +3% 00
RPI +3% 10
RPI +4% 117
RPI +5% 133

RP! +6% 15
Qore than RPl +6% 15 /

Straght-line interpolation hetween points

18 Other share plans

1) Management Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "Management
Lme~y

The Company also operates a Management LTIP Selected
employees participate in the Management LTIP but this does

not include any Executive Directors or Senior Executives who
participate in the LTIP Awards under this scheme are made at the
discretion of the CEO

1) Sharesave Scheme

The Sharesave Scheme is open to UK and Insh employees
Options are normally exercisable after either three or five years
from the date of grant The prnice at which options are offered 1s
not less than B0% of the middle-market price on the dealing day
immediately preceding the date of imatation Itis the policy of
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the Group to make an invitation to employees to participate in
the scheme following the announcement of the year-end results
Qurrently approximatety 5 450 employees participate in these
schemes

1) 20 Year Award Plan

A one-off grant of 100 shares was made to all employees in
2009 to celebrate Sky’s 20th anniversary These shares were
delivered in February 2012 They were not subject to any further
performance condition other than continued employment.

) Executive Share Option Schemes ("Executive Schemes”™)

Sky has in place Approved and Unapproved Executive Share
Option Schemes under HMRC guidelines Executive Directors and
Senior Executives who participate in the LTIP do not participate
in the Executive Schemes No options have been granted since
2004

Section 2 - Performance

2.1 Performance graph

The graph below shows the Company’s TSR for the five years

to 30 June 2012, measured as the value of a £100 holding in
ordinary shares at the start of the period The performance 1s
shown relative to the indices which are SonSIdered to be the most
relevant

160
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Source Thompson Datastream

2.2 Annual bonus

As shown on pages 10 to 11, our customer focus once again
delivered strong financial results Ina difficult consumer
environment customers continue to recognise the great value
we offer by choosing Sky over other providers and buying more

services from us
1]

The targets relevant to the calculation of the annual bonus are as
follows

« Operating profit up 14% to £1,223 milion
Operating cash flow up 11% to £1,313 million

« Customer net growth for the year was 312 000
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Based on the Company s record results, performance against
the key bonus measures and outperformance against its
competition, the maximum bonus will be paid out. Therefore,
the CEC and CFO recenved bonuses of 200% and 150% of salary
respectvely Next year customer net growth will be replaced by
product net growth This will align the measures to the business
strategy going forward as product net growth 1s now the greater
proportion of the value added to the business

23L7P

As disclosed n last year's remuneration report, the three-year
performance of the Company cver the 2008 to 20N financiat
years resulted in the operational performance conditions being
met in full and 21 points being achieved resulting in 70% of that
award vesting The TSR performance over the three-year period
ended 31 July 2011 came 1n the top quartile at B0 0% meaning
that the full 30% of this element of the award vested, resulting
10 100% total vesting of the awards Subsequently on 31 July 201
1200,000 LTIP shares vested to Jeremy Darroch and 640,000
LTIP shares vested to Andrew Griffith Outstanding awards under
this plan are shown in the table on page 62

2.4 Co-Investment Plan

The EPS performance for the Co-Investment plan exceeded the
target of RPI +6% pa and the award will vest in full on 27 August
2012

Outstanding awards under this plan are shown in the table on
page 62

Section 3 - How decisions are made

3 1 Membership of the Remuneration Comnuttee

Buring the year ended 30 June 2012, the Commuttee comprising
the following Independent Non-Executive Directors, met four
times

= Daniel Rimer (appointed Chairman on1May 2012).

+ Tracy Clarke (appointed a member on 11 June 2012)

» Dawd Evans (resigned 29 Navember 2011).

= Nicholas Ferguson (stepped down as Chairman on 1 May 2012)
+  Martin Gitbert (appointed 1 May 2012).

» Jacques Nasser

Each member's attendance at these meetings Is set out inthe
Corporate Governance report on page 45

The full terms of reference for the Commuttee are avallable on the
Company’s corporate website

3.2 Advisors

New Bridge Street (an Aon Hewstt Company) (NBS) act as
adwvisors to the Committee They advise on all aspects of senior
executive remuneration and have no other role within the
Company NBS 1s now wholly-owned by Aon plc and while other
compares within the Aon group do undertake matenal non-
remuneration work for the Company, the Cormmmittee does not
beheve that the independence of NBS Is compromised in any way

The fee paid to New Bridge Street for remuneration advice
was £153 000

The Chief Executive and the Director for People provide
infarmation as required The Committee s also supported by the
Company Secretary Finance and Human Resources functions No
individuals are present nor provide any input regarding their own
remuneration

3.3 Remuneration Committee annual schedule

Date Key agenda tems

September
October

Committee Chairman meeting wath Shareholders

Agree calendar for the year

Review Company performance -

Shareholder update

January Review the executive pay environment and

governance tssues including any changes in legislation
Incentive plan performance update

Agree comparator groups for benchmarking anatysis
Shareholder update

May Rewiew total remuneration and structure of packages
against the comparator group

Incentive plan performance update

June Consider and review proposals for
- Any changes to Executive Directors fixed pay

- Achievement of bonus against Company
perfarmance

- Executive and Management share awards
~CEQ s direct reports’ total remuneration

- Executive Directors bonus targets for next financial
year

Juty Review and agree
- CEO s direct reports’ pay packages
- Share awards for all management
- Remuneration Report
- Incentive plan performance outcome

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC
59

2OUDUIBACE)

SIUBWLBID]S (DL

LOJEWIOL 130 Oudi0uS




DIRECTURS REPORT - GOVERNANCE

Report on Directors’ remuneration

continued

Section 4 - NED and Chairman fees
Non-Executive Directors’ fees are reviewed annually The current
fees are set out In the table below

Fee category (per annumy) 20m 2012 2013

£ £ £
Chairman 25000 250007 450000
Deputy Chairman 25000 400000 30000
Basic fee 53,800 56500 58 000
Committee Chairman 25000 25000 25000
Committee Members 10000 10000 10,000
Senior Independent Director 20000 20000 40000

(1) Following the appamtment of Nicholas Ferguson as Chairman of the Company
the Board reviewed the fees paid to the Chairman Deputy Chairman and Senior
Independent Director After taking sndependent adwvice it was agreed that the
fees for the Chawrman be tncreased to £450 000 effective from Nicholas
Ferguson s date of appaintment as Chawrman on 3 April 2012 This increase
reflects the time commitment and duties of the role The Chairman s fee s
nchuswe of the basic fee and committee fees payable to directors The fees of
the Deputy Chairman were set at £30 000 effectrve from 3 Apri! 2012 and the
fees payabie to the Semor Independent Director were set at £40 000 effective
from 3 Apnl 2012

Each Non-Executive Director is engaged by the Company for an

initial term of three years Reappointment for a further termis

not automatic, but may be mutually agreed

Section 5 - Service Contracts and Directors’ Share
Interests '
51 Service contracts Executive Directors

Executive Directors’ service agreements contain a maximum
notice penod of one year and a non-compete provision of
one year In the event of termination Executive Directors
may be entitled to up to one year s salary and benefits No
bonus 1s payable in respect of the notice peniod not worked
by the ndmidual In the event of termination for cause’ salary
and benefits would be payablte only up to the actual date of
termination

Jeremy Darroch s imitial service contract as the CFO of the
Company commenced on 16 August 2004 This was revised on
7 December 2007 when he became CEOQ
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Any outside appointments for Executive Directors are considered
by the Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee to
ensure they would not cause a conflict of interest and, if not,

are then approved by the Chairman on behalf of the Board It

1s the Company s policy that remuneration earned from such
appointments may be retained by the indradual Jeremy Darroch
1s a Non-Executive Director of Marks and Spencer Group plc

and earned £85 000 for his appointment in the year ended

30 June 2012

52 Share interests

The Company encourages the Non-Executive Directors to build
up a holding in the Company’s shares and has introduced a
facility whereby Non-Executive Directors can elect toreceive a
portion of their fees in BSkyB shares Shares are purchased on
amonthly basis in the market The Directors who are deemed

to be affiliated with News Corporation (James Murdoch Dawvid
DeVoe, Thomas Mockridge and Arthur Siskind) are not allowed to
participate in this facility This i1s due to the fact that under Rule
9 of the Takeover Code they would be deemed to be acting in
concert with News Corporation If they were to purchase shares
in the Company and this would place News Corporation under an
obligation to make a mandatory offer for all of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company

The interests of the Directors in the ordinary share capital of the
Company dunng the year were

AL 30 Jurte At 30 June

201 2012
Jeremy Darrach 230046 296157
Micholas Ferguson 12239 14966
Andrew Gnffith ! 57093 87533
Andrew Higginson 4485 5639
Jacques Nasser 2840 3904
Daniel Rimer 9876 15,836
Lord Wilson of Dinten 2764 3803
Martin Gilbert - 971
Matthieu Pigasse - 1068

This table 1s qudited
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Except as disdosed in this report no other Director held any interest in the share capital, ncluding options, of the Company or of any
subsidiary of the Company during the year All interests at the date shown are beneficial and there have been no changes between
1 July and 25 Juty 2012

During the year ended 30 June 2012 the share price traded within the range of 614 0 and 850 5 pence per share. The middle-market
closing price on the last trading day of the financial year was 696 5 pence

Section 6 (audited) - Directors’ remuneration
The emoluments of the Directors for the year are shown below

Total Total Total

emcluments emoluments  emoluments

before ncluding ncluding

Salaryand Bonus pension Employer's pension pension

fees scheme Benefits 2012 pensions 2012 20m

£ E 3 E £ £ E

Executive

Jeremy Darroch 935000 1870000 1447867 2949786 33333 298309 .2,788554
Andrew Gniffith 573500 860250 53967 1487717 33333 1,521,050 1424259 )
Is}
Non-Executive ‘_%‘
Nicholas Ferguson 230657 - - 230657 230657 155685 2
Thomas Mocknidge £3808 - - 63808 63808 53800 A
Andrew Higginson ™ n317g9 - - n3179 13179 99,339 m

Tracy Clarke ™ 4413 - - 4413 4413 -

Dawd DeVoe 56 500 - - 56 500 56500 53800

Martin Gilbert ¢ 35611 - - 3561 35611 -

James Murdoch v B9 417 - - 89417 89417 88800

Jacques Nasser 67108 - - 67108 67108 74,339

Matthieu Pigasse (" 35060 - - 35060 35060 -
Darvel Rimer ¢? 73167 - - 73167 73167 74 339 -3“
Arthur Siskind 66 500 - - 66,500 66,500 63 BOO 3
Lord Wilson of Dinton @ 97333 - - 97333 97333 109339 a)
Dame Gail Rebuck ™ 92749 - - 92,749 92749 109339 Q
David Evans 2837 - - 283N 2837 74 339 LE:‘
Allan Leighton ¢ 25871 - - 25871 25871 53922 a
Total emoluments 2588244 2730250 198753 5517247 66 666 5583913 5,223 654 .—%
3
This table 1s oudited w

Notes

(1) Jeremy Darroch was gaen a pension cash supplement of £128 255 and Andrew Griffith was given a pension cash supplement of £37883 dunng the financal year See 14
on page 56 for further information

(1) Nicholas Ferguson was appointed Chawrman of the Company on 3 April 2012 and stepped down as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 1May 2012

(m) Thomas Macknidge was apponted Deputy Chairman of the Company on 3 Apni 2012

() Andrew Higginson was appointed Senior independent Non Executwve Director on 3Apni 2012 and Chairman ofthe Corporate Gavernance & Nomnations Committee on
3Aprif 2012 after becoming 0 member of the committee on 18 October 2011

(v) Tracy Clarke was appotnted as a Derector of the Company and o member of the Remuneration Commuttee and The Bigger Picture Committee an 11 June 2012

(v} Martin Gribert was appomnted as a Director of the Company on 29 November 2011 as o member of the Remuneration Commitiee on 1May 2012 and as ¢ memberof the
Audit Comnuttee on 11 june 2012

{wn) Jomes Murdoch stepped down as Charrman of the Company on 3 Apri 2012 and was appainted Chairman of The Brgger Picture Committee on ! May 2012

(vin) Matthreu Pigasse was appointed as a Director of the Company on 29 November 2011 and as a member of the Audit Committee on 1 May 2012,

(x) Daruel Rimerwas appointed Chairman of the Remunerotion Committee end a member of the Corporate Governance & Nominatiens Committee an 1 May 2012,

(x) Lord Wiison of inton stepped down as Charman of the Corporate Governance & Nominations Committee on 1 May 2012

(1) Dame Gad Rebuck stepped down es Chairman and @ member of The Bigger Picture Committee on | May 2012 and resigned as o Director of the Company on 11 june 2012

(xu) David Evans and Allen Leightan resigned as Directors of the Company on 23 November 2011

LQI0W IO L 130048 10US
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

continued

Section 7 (audited) - Share schemes
7 1Long Term Incentive Plan
Details of all outstanding awards held under the LTIP are shown below

Number of shares under award Market
At Granted  Exercsed Lapsed At prce Date
30 June during during during 30 une Exercise at date Dateof fromwhich
Name of Director 201t the year the year the year 2012 price _of exercrse Award _exercisable  Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 600,000 - 400000 - 200000 nfa s 310708 31071 3076
600000 - 220000 - 380,000 nfa £74587 260809 nom 31076
600000 - - - 600000 nfa nfa 290710 290713 29308
- 500000 - - 800000 n/a nfa 29071 290713 290718
Andrew Griffith 320,000 - 320000 - - nfa E6 7170 310708 NnNom 30716
320000 - 80000 - - n/a £6711 260809 o 310716
- 240000 - - nfa  £693906 - - -
320000 - - - 320000 n/a nfa 250710 290713 290718
- 455000 - - 455000 nfa nfa 200/ 290713 290718
This table 1s audited
Nates
+ The aggregate vaiue received by the Directors on exercise of the LTIP before tax was £8 692, 338(2011 £ml)
+ See performance conditions for LTIP on page 57
+ Following the vesting of awards portiapants still employed by the Company will have five years to exercse ther shares
7.2 Co-Investment Plan
Details of all outstanding awards held under the Co-Investment Plan are shown below
Number of shares under award Market
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At price Date
30 June during during dunng 30 June Exercise at date Cateof fromwhich
Name of Director 200 the year the year the year 2012 prce  of exercise Award _exercisable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 204 4259 - - - 204425 nfa nfa 270809 270812 270817
183935® - - - 183935 nfa nfa 310810 310813 310818
- 207729w - ~ 207728 nfa nfa 300801 300814 300819
Andrew Gnffith 75506 - - - 75506 nia nfa 270809 270812 270817
69672% - - - 69672 nfa nfa 310810 310813 30818
- 95,793 - - 95793 nia nfa 30081 300814 300819
This table 1s audited
Notes

See performance conditions for the Co Investment Plan on page 58
(1) Jeremy Darroch hokds 73 848 shares as a motch under this award
(i} Jeremy Darroch holds 59 667 shares as a match under this oward
(i) Jeremy Darroch holds 66 011 shares as ¢ match under this award
(v} Andrew Griffith holds 29 492 shares as a match under this award
{v) Andrew Grffith hokis 22,601shares as a match under this award
(w1} Andrew Griffith holds 30 440 shares as a match under this award
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7.3 Executive Share Options

Details of all outstanding optiens held under the Executive Schemes are shown below

Number of shares under award

Market
At Granted  Exercised l.apsed AL price Date
30 June during during during 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 20M the year the year the year 2012 price ofexercise exercisable Expiry date
Andrew Griffith® 40025 - - 40,025 - £754 nfa 06104 oeNN
44184 - - - 44184 £662 nfa Mo907 Q10913
19 8154 - - - 19,819 ES O3 nfa 060808 060814

Thus table ts audited

Notes

(1) These are altawards that are outstanding following Andrew Griffith s appomntment as a Pirector on 7 April 2008 The Company has not made any Executive Share Option

awards to any employee since 2004

(1) These options vested following the actuevernent of the performance target being the growth in Sky's EPS being equal to or greater than the increase in RPI plus 3% per

annum

7 4 Sharesave Scheme Options

Details of all outstanding awards held under the Sharesave Scheme are shown below

Number of shares under award

Market
At Granted  Exercsed AL price Date
30 June during during 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 20mn the year the year 20012 price ofexercise exerasable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 3591 - - 3,591 £4 33 n/a 010215 010815
Andrew Grffith 2580 - 2580 - E372 £6 885 Dig212 010812
Andrew Gnffith - 1771 - 177 £568 nla 010215 20815
This table s audited
Options under the Company s Sharesave Scheme are not subject to performance conditions
7.520 Year Award Plan
Details of all outstanding awards held under the 20 Year Award Plan are shown below
Number of shares under award
Market
At Granted  Exercised At prce Pate
30 June during during 30 June Exercise atdate fromwhich
Name of Director 20m thevyear the year 2012 prie ofexercise exercsable Expiry date
Jeremy Darroch 100 - 100 - nla E69916 050212 050412
Andrew Gniffith 100 - 100 - n/a E69916 050212 050412
This table 1s audited
Shares granted under the 20 Year Award Plan are not subject to performance conditions
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Other governance and statutory disclosures

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Comparnies Act 2006 requires the Company to set outin

the Directors’ Report a fair review of the business of the Group
durning the finanaial year ended 30 June 2012 including an analysis
of the positton of the Group at the end of the financial year, and

a desenption of the principal nsks and uncertainttes facing the
Group (known as a Business Review). The purpose of the Business
Review s to enable shareholders to assess how the Directors have
performed their duty under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006

The information that fulfils the Business Review requirements
can be found In the following sections of the Directors’ Report.

« Chief Executive Officer's statement on pages 4to 6
*  Qur performance KPis on pages 10 to 11

« Rewview of our business on pages 12 to 27

« Financial and operating review on pages 32 to 38

« Principal nsks and uncertainties that face the Group are
described on pages 28 to 31

+  Significant trends that could have a matenal effect onthe
performance of the Group are described on pages 37 to 38

+ People matters and community and environmental matters are
descrbed inthe How we do business section on pages 19 to 27

Pages 4 to 66 inclusive (together with the sections incorporated
by reference) consist of a Directors’ Report that has been drawn
up and presented in accordance wath and in reliance upon
applicable English company law and the iabilities of the Directors
in connection with that report shall be subject to the imitations
and restnctions provided by the law

Pnincipal activities

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc1s the holding company of
the Bntish Sky Broadcasting group of companies The Groups
principal actmvities are detailed in the Review of our business on
pages12to 27

Results and dvidends

The profit for the year ended 30 June 2012 was £906 million
(20N £810 milhon) The Cirectors recommend a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2012 of 16 20 pence per ordinary share
which together with the intenm dividend of 9 20 pence paid to
shareholders on 24 Apni 2012, will make a total dmvidend for the
year of 25 40 pence (2011 23 28 pence) Subject to approval at
the AGM the fina! dvidend will be paid on 16 November 2012 to
shareholders appearing on the register at the close of business
on 26 October 2012

Share capital

The Company’s issued ordinary share capital at 30 June 2012
comprised one class of ordinary shares All of the issued ordinary
shares are fully paid and rank equally in all respects Further
details of the Company’s share capital s disclosed in notes 25
and 26 to the consolidated financial statements
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interests m voting nghts

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the UK Listing
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTRs) 1s published
on a Regulatory Information Service and on the Company’s websrte
As at 25 July 2012, the Company had been notified under DTRS of
the following sigrificant holdings of voting nghts in as shares

Amount  Percent of
Identity of person or group owned class

News UK Nominees Limited® 654 974,065 3914
Capital Research and Management

Company® 80751601 518
BlackRoek Ine ™ 88682765 506
The Capital Group Companies Inc/? 55977854 310

{1 Direct holding which is subject to restrictions onits voting rights {please see
“Voting nghts™ below).
() indwect hokding
At 25 July 2012 3914% of the Company's shares are held by
News UK Nominees Limited, a company incorporated under
the laws of England and Wales which 1s an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of News Corporation As a result of Rupert
Murdoch s ability to appoint certan members of the Board of
Directors of the corporate trustee of the Murdoch Family Trust,
which beneficially owns less than 1% of News Corporation’s
Class A Common Stock and 38 4% of its Class B Common Stock
Rupert Murdoch may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of the
shares beneficially owned by the Murdoch Family Trust. Rupert
Murdoch however disclaims any beneficial ownership of those
shares Also, Rupert Murdoch beneficially owns less than 1% of
News Corporation’s Class A Common Stock and an additional
13% of its Class B Common Stock Thus, Rupert Murdoch may
be deemed to beneficially own in the aggregate less than 1% of
News Corporations Class A Common Stock and 39 7% of its Class
B Common Stock, although as stated above Rupert Murdoch
disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of News Corporation
beneficially owned by the Murdoch Famuly Trust

The Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP™) was estabhshed to
satisfy awards made to participants of the Company’s employee
share plans The trustees of the ESOP have waved the nght to
dwvidends payable in respect of the shares held by it except to
the extent of O 0001% of the dividend payable on each share

At 30 June 2012, the ESOP had an interest In 16,293,345 of the
Company’s ordinary shares The Trustees who are independent of
the Company, have full discretion on how they vote the ordinary
shares held by the ESOP

Voting nghts

The Company’s articles of assocation provide that subject to

any nghts or restnctions attached to any shares, on a show of
hands every member present in person or by proxy shall have one
vote, and on a poll every member shall have one vote for every
share of which he 15 a holder On a poll votes may be given either
personally or by proxy or (in the case of a corporate member) by a
duly authorised representative
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A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting
may appoint one or mare proxies to attend and vote instead of
him If a member appoints more than one proxy he must specify
the number of shares which each proxy 1s entitled to exercise nghts
over A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company Holders
of the Company’s ordinary shares do not have cumulative voting
nghts A voting agreement dated 21 September 2005 was entered
nto between the Company, BSkyB Holdco Inc, News Corporation
and News UK Nominees Limited which became unconditional on
4 November 2005 and caps News UK Nominees Limited's voting
nghts at any general meeting at 3719% The provisions of the
voting agreement cease to apply on the first to oceur of a number
of arcumstances which nclude the date on which a general offer
15 made by an independent person (as defined in the voting
agreement) for the ordinary share capital of the Company

Restrictions on transfer of securities

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer of securities
in the Company, which 1s governed by the articles of association
and prevailing legislation, nor 1s the Company aware of any
agreements between holders of securities that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of secunties or that may result in
restnictions on voting rights

Vanation of rights

Subject to the Companues Act 2006, nghts attached to any diass
of shares may be varied with the consent in wnting of the holders
of three-quarters 1n nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the
dass or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the shareholders

Directors’ powers In relation to the Company 1ssuing and
buying back its own shares

The Directors were granted authority at the 2011 AGM to allot
relevant securiies up to a neminal amount of £289 000,000 This
authority will apply until the concluston of this year's AGM An
ordinary resolution to provide the Directors with an authonty to
allot relevant secunties up to a nominal amount of £273000000
will e proposed at the 2012 AGM A special resolution will also

be proposed to renew the Directors’ powers to make non-
pre-emptive 1ssues for cash in connection with rights issues and
otherwise up to a nominal amount of £41,000,000

On 29 November 2011, at the Company’s AGM the Board was
granted the authorty to return £750 milion of capital to
sharehelders via a share buy-back programme This authonty
was subject to an agreement between the Company and News
UK Nominees Limited (and others) dated 28 July 2011 whereby
following any market purchases of shares by the Company,
News Corporation would sell to the Company sufficient shares
to maintain its percentage shareholding at the same level as
apphed prior to those market purchases The price payable to
News Corparation would be the price payable by the Company in
respect of the relevant market purchases

On 25 July 2012 the Board agreed to seek the necessary
approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to
sharehelders via a share buy-back programme Shareholder
approvals will be sought at the Company s AGM on 1 November
2012 The Company has entered into an agreement with News
Corporation under which, following any market purchases

of shares by the Company News Corporationwill sell to

the Company sufficent shares to maintan ts percentage
shareholding at the same level as apphed prior to those market
purchases The price payable to News Corporation will be the
price payable by the Company in respect of the relevant market
purchases The agreement is conditional on the appropriate
shareholder approvals being granted The effect of the
agreement is to provide that there will be no change in News
Corporation's economic or voting interests in the Company as a
result of the share buy-back programme

Articles of asscaiation
The Company s articles of association may only be amended by
special resolution at a general meeting of shareholders

Board of Directors
The names and biographical detalls of the Directors of the
Company are given on pages 40 to 41

The Directors’ interests In the ordinary shares and options
of the Company are disclosed within the report on Directors’
remuneration on pages 60 to 66

Appointment and retirement of Directors

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more
Directors Any such Director shall hold office only until the

next AGM and shall then be eligible for reappointment by the
Company’s shareholders At the Company’s 2012 AGM all current
Executive and Non-Executive Directors will retire itis the
intention that Jacques Nasser will not seek reappointment but
all the other Executve Directors and Non-Executive Directors will
offer themselves for reappointment in accordance with provision
B 71 of the Code

Alternate Directors

A Director may appolint any other Director or any other person

to act as his Alternate An Alternate Director shall be entitled

to recerve notice of and attend meetings of the Directors and
committees of Directors of which his apponter s a member and
not able to attend The Alternate Director shall be entitled to vote
at such meetings and generally perform all the functions of his
appointer as a Director In his absence.

On the resignation of the appointer for any reason the Alternate
Director shall cease to be an Alternate Director The appointer
may also remove his Alternate Director by notice te the Company
Secretary signed by the appointer revoking the appointment An
Alternate Director shall not be entitled to fees for bus service as
an Alternate Director
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Other governance and statutory disclosures |

continued

Thomas Mockridge, David DeVoe, Arthur Siskind and James
Murdoch have appointed each of the others to act as ther
Alternate Director

Significant agreements

Details of any significant agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate on a change of control of the Company are disclosed in
the review of the business on pages 18 and 19

Payment policy

The pelicy of the Group 15 to agree terms of payment with
supplhers prior to entering into a contractuat refationship Inthe
absence of a specific agreement 1t 1s the policy of the Group to
pay suppliers In accordance with its standard payment terms of
45 days The Group had below 45 days’ purchases outstanding
at 30 June 2012 (201 below 45 days), based on the total amount
invoiced by non-programme trade suppliers during the year
ended 30 June 2012 Programme creditors include significant
balances which are not yet contractually due n respect of
amounts both contractually due and invoiced, the outstanding
number of days purchases s below 45 days (2011 below 45 days)

Financial Instruments

Details of the Group s use of financial instruments togetherwith
informaticn on our financial risk management objectives and
polcies, and our exposure to financial nsks can be found in note
24 to the consoldated financial statements

Chantable contributions and community and
environmental activities

Dunng the financial year Sky contnbuted £5,208 632 to chanties

for the purpose of supporting Bigger Picture activities focusing

on responsibiity, ervironment, sport, arts and cycling These
contributions were made to Sky's key chanty partners Youth

Sports Trust, Brtish Cycding, WW, Global Action Plan and the Hay
Chetftenham, Bath and Bnghton Iiterature festivals We also made
contnbutions to chanties through our employee matched fundrarsing
and payroll gving actvties and our volunteenng initiatives

An overview of how Sky makes a positive difference to UK and
Insh society through its Bigger Picture programme Is provided

in the section on "How we do business” on pages 19 to 27 of the
Directors report - Business review In addition Sky will publish an
in-depth summary of its Bigger Picture activities in September
2012 and in this will outhne Sky s total community investment
using the London Benchmarking Group model

Additional information can be found at www sky com/
thebiggerpicture

Political contnbutions
Political contributions of the Group 1n the UK duning 2012
amounted to ril (2011 nil)

*

Goling concem

The Group's business-activities together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set
out in the review of the business on pages 12 to 27 The financial
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position of the Group, its cash flows and liquidity position are
descenbed Inthe financial and operating review on pages 32 to

38 In addition, notes 22, 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements include details of the Group s treasury activities, long
term funding arrangements, financial Instruments and hedging
actmities and exposure to financial nsk.

As set out above the Group has sufficient financial resources
which, together with intemally generated cash flows, will
continue to provide sufficient sources of iquidity to fund its
current operations Incduding its contractual and commeraial
commitments as set out on pages 111to 112, ts approved capital
expenditure and any proposed dvidends, and the Group 1s well
placed to manage its business nsks successfully, despite the
current economic outlook

After making enquiries, the Directors have formed the judgment,
at the time of approving the consolidated finanaial statements
that there s a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

the foreseeable future For this reason, the Directors continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements

Disciosure of Information to auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006 each of the persons who are Directors of
the Company at the date of approval of this report confirms that

« sofar as the Director s aware there s no relevant audit
information (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which
the Company’s auditor 15 unaware and

+ the Director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to
have taken as a Director to make himselffherself aware of any
relevant audit information (as defined) and to establish that
the Comparty’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Auditors

Deloitte LLP the auditors of the Company have expressed
theirwillingness to continue In office A resolution to reappomnt
them as the Company’s auditors and to authorise the Directors
to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at The Queen
Elizabeth || Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary Westminster
London SWIP 3EE on 1 November 2012 at 11 00am, 1s avarlable for
download from the Company’s corporate website at-www sky

com/corporate

By order of the Board, @

Dave Gormley Q ?/YW'\
Company Secretary

26 July 2012 ———

SN



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report
and the financia! statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law, the Directors
are required to prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the |AS
Regulation and have also chosen to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by the EU Under
Company law, the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that peniod In preparing these financial statements,
International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

« properly select and apply accounting policies,

» present nformation, ncludng accounting policies N a
manner that provides relevant reliable, comparable and
understandabte information,

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are Insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions cther
events and conditions on the entity's financial position and
financial performance and

» make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue
as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Directors’ responsibiiity statement
The Directors confirm that to the best of therr knowledge

1 The financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets habiities financial positton and profit
or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

2 The management report whichis incorporated into the
Directors’ report, Includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakmgs included in the consohdation
taken as awhole together with a description of the principal
rnisks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board
Je h Andrew Griffith
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
25 July 2012 25 July 2012
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PI

LC
67

3

3 LS L Ly

|
3
<
3
Q
Q
I
v
o
-
®
=
ey
3
2
“

LONBLIOJ UL 13PIOYSIDUS

S12) JO ADSS0OIG




COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BRMSH SKY BROADCASTING GROUPPLC

We have audited the financial statements of British Sky
Broadcasting Group plc for the year ended 30 June 2012 which
comprise the Consolidated and Company Income Statements the
Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income
the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets the Consolidated
and Company Cash Flow Statements the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes
1to 33 The financial reporting framework that has been appled

in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparnies

Act 20086. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or
assume respensibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fairview Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion

on the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law

and International Standards on Auditing (UK and trefand), Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Group’s and the Parent Company’s
arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately
disdosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements |n addrion, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the Groups and of the Parent Company's affairs as at
30 June 2012 and of the Group s and the Parent Company s
profit for the year then ended

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
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+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as
regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

Separate opiion In relation to IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB
As explained in note 1 to the Consolidated financial statements,
the Group in addition to complying with its legal obligation to apply
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also apphed IFRSs as
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

in our opinion the Consolidated financial statements comply with
IFRSs as issued by the IASB

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our opimcn

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparies
Act 2006, and

»  the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report toyou if,
N our opINion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Comparyy, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recenved from branches not visited by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns or

« certain disclosures of directors remuneration speafied by law
are not made or

= we have not received all the Information and explanations we
require for our audit

tUnder the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ thedirectors statement contained within the Annual Report in
relation to going concern on page 66,

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to
the Company s comphance with the nine provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review, and

« certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on

directolsfamameratiTy
R
ilham Touche (Senior Statutory Auditer)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London United Kingdom

25 July 2012




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Consolidated financial statements

CONSOQOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2072

2012 20m
Notes £m £m
Continutng cperations
Revenue 2 6,791 6,597
Operating expense 3 {5548) (5524)
Cperating profit 1,243 1,073
Share of results of jJoint ventures and associates 15 39 34
Investment income 4 .18 S
Finance costs 4 [ any
Profit on disposal of available-for-sale investment 5 - ]
Profit before tay_” 6 1189 1014
Taxation 8 (283) {256)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 906 758
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 9 - 52
Profit for the year atthbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 906 B10
Earnings per share from profit for the year (in pence)
Basic
Continuing operations 10 526p 43 5p
Discontinued operations 10 - 30p
Total 10 526p 46 5p
Diluted
Continuing operations 10 522p 43 0p
Discontinued operations 10 - 28p
Total 10 522p 45 9p
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated income statement.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .
for the year ended 30 June 2012
2012 20m
£m Em
Profit for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 906 810
Other comprehensmve ncome
Amounts recoghised directly in equity .
Exchange differences on translabion of foreign operations 2 3)
Gain on revaluation of avallable-for-sale investments 8 59
Gain (loss) on cash flow hedges 99 (130}
Tax on cash flow hedges 23 36
86 {43y
Amounts reclassified and reported in the income statement
(Loss) gain on cash flow hedges (29) 42
Tax on cash flow hedges 7 n
Transfer to Income statement on disposal of foreign operations - 4
22) 35
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year {net of tax} 64 8)
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 970 802
The accompanying notes are an integral part. of this consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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CONSOLIDATED ENANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 30 June 2012
202 20m
Notes Em £m
Non-current assets
Goodwll 12 556 944
Intangible assets 13 523 462
Property plant and equipment 14 948 896
Investments 1n joint ventures and associates 15 156 151
Avallable-for-sale Investments 16 228 215
Deferred tax assets 17 16 69
Trade and other recervables 19 7 13
Dervative financial assets 23 390 275
3234 3025
Current assets
Inventones 18 456 375
Trade and other recevables 19 621 592
Short-term deposits 23 710 430
Cash and cash equivalents 23 464 92
Derwative financial assets 23 24 n
2275 2,329
Total assets 5509 5,354
Current habilities
Borrowings 22 8 8
Trade and cther payables 20 1855 1675
Current tax habtilities 189 187
Provisions 21 43 21
Denvative financial habilities 23 3 21
2,098 1912
Non-current llabilities
Borrowings 22 2398 2325
Trade and other payables 20 27 26
Prowvisions 21 12 g9
Dervative financial habilities 23 29 47
Deferred tax labilities 17 ] -
2467 2407
Total liabilities 4,565 4,319
Share capital 25 837 876
Share premum 26 1437 1437
Reserves 26 (1330) (1278)
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent company 26 944 1035
Total habllities and shareholders’ equity 5,509 5,354

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet.

These consohdated financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group plc, registered number 2247735 have been approved by

the Board of Directors on 25 July 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

Darroch Andrew Gnffith
ecukwle Officer Chief Financia) Officer
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CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 20m
Notes E£m £m
Continuing operations
Cash flows from operating actvities
Cash generated from operations 27 1737 1569
Interest received 17 7
Taxation paid (254 (219
Net cash from operating activities 1500 1,357
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends recerved from joint ventures and associates 39 29
Net funding to Joint ventures and associates (8} (4}
Proceeds on dispesal of iInvestments - 32
Purchase of property plant and equipment (228} (197
Purchase of intangible assets (229) (226}
Purchase of subsidianes (net of cash and cash equivalents purchased} (15) (222)
Purchase of avalable-for-sate investments (5) -
Increase in short-term deposits (2807 (30)
Net cash used in Investing activities (724) (618)
Cash flows from financing actmties
Repayment of obligations under finance leases m (U]
Proceeds from disposal of shares in Employee Share Ownarship Plan (CESOPT} 10 32
Purchase of own shares for ESOP (161} (90)
Purchase of own shares for cancellation {5486) -
Interest paid . 125) (124}
Dwidends paid te sharehalders (410) (353)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,233) (536}
Net (decrease) mcrease in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations (457) 203
Cash generated from discontinued operations 9 - 69
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year o 649
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 464 921
The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of this consolidated cash flow statement
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CONSOLIDATED FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 June 2012

Avalable- Total
Share Share ESOP Hedging for-sale Other  Retained shareholders’
capital  premium reserve resarve reserve reserves eamings equity
Em £m £m Em £m £m Em Em
At 1uly 2010 876 1437 “7n 77 98 362 (2,243} 560
Profit for the year - - - - - - 810 810
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - (8) - {8}
Transfer to income statement on disposal of
foreign operations - - - - - 4 - 4
Revatuation of available-for-sale investments - - - - 59 - - 59
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - (88) - - - (88)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - 25 - - - 25
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ - - (63) 59 (4) 810 802
Share-based payment - - [(8))] - - - G 10
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - 19 19
Purchase of non-controling interest - - - - - - 3 (3)
Dmadends - - - - - - (353} (353)
At 30 June 201 B76 1,437 (107) 14 157 358 (1,700) 1035
Profit for the year - - - - - - 06 06
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - 2 - 2
Revaluation of available-for-sale investments - - - - - - 8
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - 70 - - - 70
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - (16) - - - 16)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 54 8 806 970
Share-based payment, - - {5) - - (BO) (85)
Tax onitems taken directly to equity - - - - - - Q0) 00}
Share buy-back programme (see note 26)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation 39 - - - - 39 (546} (546}
- Finanaial habiity for close period purchases - - - - - - (0} (((®)]
Dmdends - - - - - - {410} {410
At 30 June 2012 837 1437 {112) 68 165 399 {1850) 944

For a description of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve, see note 26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of changes m equity

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC
72




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies

Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc (the “Company”}is a
limited hability company incorporated in England and Wales
and domiciled in the United Kingdom ("UK"). The consolidated
financial statements include the Company and its subsidianes
(together the “Group™) and its interests in associates and
jontly-controlled entiiies

a) Statement of complance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU”),

the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the International
Accounting Standard {"IAS") Regulations In addition the Group
also complied with IFRS as 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {*IASB*)

b) Basis of preparation

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on
agoing concern basis (as set out in the Directors’ Report) and
on an histonical cost basis except for the remeasurement to fair
value of financial instruments as described in the accounting
policies below The Group has adopted the new accounting
pronouncements which became effective this year none of
which had any significant impact on the Group s results or
financial position

The Group maintains a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the
Sunday nearest to 30 June in each year In fiscal year 2012 this
date was 1 July 2012 this being a 52 week year (fiscal year 201

3 July 2011, 53 week year) For convenience purposes the Group
continues to date its consehdated financial statements as at

30 June The Group has classified assets and habilities as current
when they are expacted to be realised in, or ntended for sale or
consumption In the normal operating cycle of the Group

<) Basis of consolidation

1 Subsidanies

Subsitharies are entities controlled by the Company Control
exsts when the Company has the power directly or indirectly
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities Subsidiaries are included
In the consolidated financial statements of the Company from
the date control of the substdiary commences until the date
that control ceases Intra-group balances and any unrealised
gains and losses or iIncome and expenses arsing from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in prepanng the consolidated
financial statements

1 Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities where the Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint contral, over the financial and operating
polices of the entity Joint ventures are those entities which are
Jently controlled by the Group under a contractual agreement
with another party or parties

These consohdated financial statements include the Groups
share of the total recognised gains and losses of associates

and joint ventures using the equity method from the date

that significant influence or joint control commences to the
date that it ceases, based on present ownership interests and
excluding the possible exercise of potential voting nights, less any
impairment losses (see accounting policy J) When the Group's
interest in an associate or joint venture has been reduced to nil
because the Group's share of losses exceeds Its interest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group only provides for additional
losses to the extent that it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations to fund such losses or where the Group has made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture Where

the disposal of an investment in an associate or joint venture 1s
considered to be highly probable the investment ceases to be
equity accounted and, instead s classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
tosell

o} Goodwill

Business combinations that have occurred since 1 July 2004 the
date of transstion to IFRS {the “Transition Date "), are accounted
for by applying the purchase method of accounting Following
this method, goodwill Is Initially recogrised on consolidation
representing the difference between the fair value cost of the
business combination and the fair value of the identifiable
assets, habilities and contingent liabiities assumed

In respect of business combinations that occurred prior to the
Transition Date goodwill has been included at the amounts
recognised under the Group’s UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ( UK GAAP™) accounting policies on the Transition Date
On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the
attributable amount of goodwill 1s included inthe determination
of profit or loss on disposal, except for goodwtll written of f to
reserves under UK GAAP prior to the Transition Date, whichis not
reinstated and 1s not included tn determining any subsequent
gain or loss on disposal

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any impairment losses and

Is tested, at least annually, forimpairment based on the
recoverable amounts of the cash generating unit to which

the goodwill has been allocated Any imparment identified

I1s recognised iImmediately in the income statement and is

not subsequently reversed The carrying amount of goodwill

in respect of associates and joint ventures I1s included in the
carrying amount of the investment in the asscciate or joint
venture Goodwill Is tested for impairment in ine with accounting
policy | below

e) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (“PPE")
i Intangible assets

Research expenditure is recognised In operating expense in the
income statement as the expenditure s incurred Development
expenditure (relating to the application of research knowledge
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CONSOUDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1 Accounting policres continued

to plan or design new or substantially improved products for
sale or use within the business) Is recogrused as an intangible
asset from the point at which it 1s probable that the Group has
the intention and ability to generate future economic benefits
from the development expenditure that the development s
technically feasible and that the subsequent expenditure can
be measured reliably Any other development expenditure 1s
recognised in operating expense as incurred

Other intangible assets, which are acquired by the Group
separately or through a business combination are imually stated
at cost or fairvalue, respectmvely, less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses other than those that are classified as
held for sale, which are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell

Amortisation of an intangible asset begins when the asset 1s
available for use, and 1s charged to the income statement through
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the intangible
asset s estimated useful Iife, principally being a penod between
1and 25 years, unless the asset life 1s jJudged to be indefinite If
the useful Iife 1s indefinite or the asset Is not yet available for

use no amortisation s charged and an impairment test 1s carried
out at least annually Other intangible assets are tested for
impairment in ine with accounting policy | below

1l Property, plant and equipment.

Owned PPE is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, (see accounting policy ), other than
those items that are classified as held for sale, which are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell When an item of PPE comprises major components having
different useful economic lives the components are accounted
for as separate items of PPE

Assets held under finance leases, which confer nghts and
obligations similar to those attached to owned assets, are
treated as PPE (see accounting policy o)

The cost of PPE less estimated residual value, 1s depreciated in
operating expense on a straght-line basis over its estimated
useful life Land and assets that are not yet available for use,
are not depreciated Principal useful economic lives used for this
purpose are

Freehold buldings 25to 40vyears

Equipment furniture and fixtures 3 to15years
Assetsunderfinance leases and  Lesser of lease term and the
leasehold mprovements useful economic life of the asset

Borrowing costs directly attnibutable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
BRITISH SKY BROADCASTING GROUP PLC
74

that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
thewr intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
untt! such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use orsale

To the extent that the financing for a qualifying asset 1s part

of the Group's gerieral borrowings, the Interest cost to be
capttalised 15 calculated based upon the weighted average

cost of borrowing to the Group (excluding the interest on any
borrowings specific to any qualifying assets). This is then applied
to the expenditures on the asset.

All other borrowing costs are recogrised in profit or loss in the
period towhich they relate

f) Denvatrve financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group uses a number of derivative financial instruments
to hedge 1ts exposure to fluctuations in Interest and foreign
exchange rates

Derwatives are held at fair value from the date on which a
derwvative contract 1s entered into Fair value is defined as the
amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a hability
settled between knowtedgeable willing parties In an arms length
transaction The fair value of denvatwve financial instruments

15 estimated with reference to the contracted value and the
appropnate market value prevaiing at the balance sheet

date Certan dervatives held by the Group which relate to

highly probable forecast transactions ("hedged items™), which
meet qualifying criternia under I1AS 39 "Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement” {"IAS 39"} are designated as cash
flaw hedges or fair value hedges, and are subject to cash flow
hedge accounting or fair vatlue hedge accounting respectively
Certain other denvatives held by the Group do not meet the
qualifying critena for recognition for accounting purposes as
hedges, despite this being their economi¢ function. Changes in
the farr values of these derivatives are recognised immediately

n the income statement. The Group does not hold or Issue
dervatives for speculative purposes

1 Dervatives that qualfy for cash flow hedge accounting
Changes in the fair values of dernvatives that are designated as
cash flow hedges (“cash flow hedging instruments™) are initially
recognised in the hedging reserve In circumstances in which
the dervative used 1s a currency option, only changes inthe
intrinsic value of the option are designated under the cash flow
hedging relationship, with afl other movements being recorded
immediately in the Income statement. Amounts accumulated in
the hedging reserve are subsequently recognised in the income
statement in the periods in which the related hedged items are
recogmised in the ncome statement,




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At inception the effectiveness of the Groups cash flow hedges

1s assessed through a comparnison of the principal terms of the
hedging instrument and the undertying hedged item The ongoing
effectiveness of the Group’s cash flow hedges 1s assessed using
the dollar-offset approach, with the expected cash flows of
hedging instruments being campared to the expected cash flows
of the hedged items This assessment 1s used to demonstrate
that each hedge relationship 1s expected to be highly effective
oninception, has been highly effective in the pened and 1s
expected to continue to be highly effective in future penods The
measurement of hedge ineffectiveness for the Group s hedging
Instruments 1s calculated using the hypothetical derivative
method, with the fair values of the hedging instruments being
compared to those of the hypothetical derivative that would
result in the designated cash flow hedge achieving perfect hedge
effectiveness The excess of the cumulative change in the farr
value of the actual hedging instrument compared to that of the
hypothetical dervative 1s deemed to be hedge ineffectiveness,
which i1s recogrised in the income statement

The Group uses a range of 80% to 125% for hedge effectiveness,
n accordance with tAS 39 and any relationship which has
effectiveness outside this range is deemed to be ineffective and
hedge accounting 1s suspended

When a cash flow hedging instrument expires Is terminated or

15 exeraised or if a hedge no longer meets the qualifying critenia
for hedge accounting any cumulative gain or loss existing in the
hedging reserve at that time remarns in the hedging reserve

and is recognised when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately
recognised In the income statement, provided that the
underlying transaction 1s still expected to occur When a forecast
transaction Is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in the hedging reserve is Immediately
recognised in the ncome statement and all future changes inthe
fair value of the cash flow hedging instruments are immediately
recognised In the income statement,

n Dervatwves that qualify for far value hedge accounting

The Group has designated certain derivatives as fair value hedges
as defined under 1A5 39 Any changes in the fair value of the
dervatives are recogrsed immediately in the income statement.
The carrying values of the underlying hedged items are adjusted
for the change in the fair vatue of the hedged nsks, with the

gains or losses recognised mmediately in the income statement,
offsetting the fair value movement on the dervatve

Prospective effectiveness 1s assessed quarterly through a
comparison of the principal terms of the hedging instrument and
the underlying hedged item including the likelthood of default

by the derwative counterparty The retrospective effectiveness
of the Group s farr value hedges is calculated quarterly using the
cumulative dollar-offset approach with movements in the fair
value of the hedged tem being compared to movements in the
far value of the hedging instrument. The Group uses arange of

B0% to 125% for hedge effectveness and any relationship which
has effectiveness outside this range I1s deemed to be ineffective
and hedge accounting 1s suspended

m Embedded denvatives

Dervatives embedded in other finanaial Instruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their
nsks and characteristics are not dosely refated to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not carred at far
value with unrealised gans or losses reported in the income
statement. Embedded dervatives are carried on the balance
sheet at fair value from the inception of the host contract.
Changes in farr value are recogrused within the income statement,
during the period In which they anse

£) Inventones

1 Acquired and commissioned television programme Inventones
Programme Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (*"NRV™), including where applicable estimated
subscrber escalation payments and net of the accumulated
expense charged to the income statement to date

Programming nghts are included as inventories when the legally
enforceabte licence penod commences and all of the following
conditions have been met (g) the cost of each programme

15 known or reasonably determinable (b) the programme
matenal has been accepted by the Group in accordance with

the conditions of the rights, and (¢) the programme 15 available
for its first showing Prior to being included in inventories, the
programming rights are classified as television programme nghts
not yet available for transmission and not recorded as inventories
on the Group s balance sheet and are instead disclosed as
contractual commitments (see note 28) Payments made upon
receipt of commissioned and acquired programming, but in
advance of the legal nght to broadcast the programmes, are
treated as prepayments

The cost of television programme inventories Is recognised in
the operating expense hine of the income statement, primarily as
descnbed below

Sports - 100% of the cost 1s recognised In the iIncome statement
on the first breadcast or where the nghts are for muttiple
seasons or competitions, such nghts are principally recognised on
a straight-ine basis across the seasons or competitions

News - 100% of the cost is recognised in the income statement
on first broadeast.

Mowies - The cost 1s recognised In the infome statement ona
straight-line basis over the peried of broadcast nghts

General entertainment - The cost s recognised in the income
statement based on the expected value of each planned
broadcast.
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CONSOUIDATED AINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Where programme rights are surplus to the Groups
requirements and no gain 1s anticipated through a disposal

of the nghts or where the programming will not be broadcast
for any other reason a write-down to the Income statement 15
made Any reversals of Inventory write-downs are recognised as
reductions In operating expense

u Set-top boxes, routers and related equipment

Set-top boxes, routers and retated equipment are valued at
the tower of cost and NRV, the latter of which reflects the value
that the business expects to realise from the set-top boxes
and related equipment in the hands of the customer, and are
recognised through the operating expense hne of the iIncome
statement. Any subsidy Is expensed on enablement whichis
the process of activating the viewing card durnng installation
s0 as to enable a viewer to view encrypted broadcast services,
and effectively represents the completion of the installation
process for new customers The amount recogmised in the income
statement I1s determined on a wetghted average cost basis, In
accordance with IAS 2 “Inventory”

1 Raw materials, consumables and goods held for resale

Raw matenals, consumables and goods held for resale are

valued at the lower of cost and NRV The cost of raw matenals
consumables and goods held for resale Is recognised through the
operating expense line of the income statement on a first in first
out basis

h) Fiancial assets and habilities

Financial assets and llabiities are inhially recegnised at fair value
plus any directly attnbutable transaction costs At each balance
sheet date, the Group assesses whether there 1s any objective
evidence that any financial asset s imparred Financial assets

and habiltties are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial asset or hability Financial assets are derecognised from
the balance sheet when the Groups contractual nghts to the cash
flows expire or the Group transfers substantially all the nsks and
rewards of the financial asset Financial habilities are derecognised
from the Group s balance sheet when the obligation specified In
the contract s discharged cancelled or expires

1 Avallable-for-sale investments

Equity Investments intended to be held for an indefinite penod
are classified as avallable-for-sale investments They are
carried at farr value, where this can be reliably measured, with
movements In far value recognised directly in the available-for-
sale reserve Where the fair value canrot be reliably measured
the investment Is carried at cost.

Any impairment losses in equity investments classified as
avallable-for-sale Investments are recogrised in the Income
statement and are not reversible through the income statement,
and are determined with reference to the closing market share
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price at the balance sheet date Any subseguent increase inthe
fair value of the avallable-for-sale investment above the impaired
value will be recognised within the avallable-for-sale reserve

Avallable-for-sale iInvestments are included within non-current
assets unless the carrying value 1s expected to be recovered
principally through sale rather than continuing use, i which
case they are included within current assets On disposal, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration receved and any cumulative gan or loss that had
previcusly been recognised directly in reserves I1s recognised in
the income statement.

1 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are non-dervative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and, where no stated
interest rate 1s applicable, are measured at the onginal invoice
amount, if the effect of discounting 1s immatenal Where
discounting 1s matenial, trade and other recervables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method An
allowance account I1s maintained to reduce the carrying value

of trade and other recesvables for impairment losses identified
from objective evidence, with movements 1n the allowance
account, either from increased impairment losses or reversals of
imparrment. losses, being recognised in the income statement

m Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equwalents include cash in hand bank accounts
deposits recevable on demand and deposits with matunty
dates of three months or less from the date of inception Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and which form an
integral part of the Groups cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents where offset
conditions are met

w Short-term deposits

This includes short-term depasits and commercial paper which
have maturity dates of more than three months from inception
These deposits are mitially recognised at fair value and then
carned at amortised cost through the iIncome statement less any
allowance for impairment losses

v Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-derivative financial liabilities
and are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method Trade and other payables with no stated interest rate
are measured at the oniginal invoice amount if the effect of
discounting 1s immatenal

vi Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded as the proceeds receved, net of direct
Issue costs Finance charges, including any premium payable on
settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are accounted
for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the
effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount
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of the underlying instrument to which they relate to the extent
that they are not settled inthe penod in which they anse

i) Transponder prepayments

Payments made in respect of future satellite broadcast capacity
have been recorded as prepaid transponder costs These
payments are recogrised in the iIncome statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the agreement.

2} Impairment

At each balance sheet date in accordance with IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of all its assets excluding inventonies (see accounting policy g)
non-current assets classified as held for sale, financial assets
(see accounting policy h) and deferred taxation (see accounting
policy p) to determine whether there 1s any indication that any of
those assets have suffered an impairment loss

Animpairment I1s recogrused 1in the income statement whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds Its recoverable amount Animpairment of an investment
1IN a joint venture or associate I1s recognised within the share

of profit from joint ventures and assoctates The recoverable
amount 15 the greater of net selling price, defined as the fair
value less costs to sell and value inuse In assessing valuen

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and nsks
specific to the asset. Where 1t1s not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an indwidual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unrt to which the
asset belongs Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to those units, and then to reduce the
carrying amount of other assets m the unit on a pro-rata basss

An imparrment loss for an indnadual asset or cash generating
unit will be reversed If there has been a change in estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised and 1s only reversed to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, If no iImpairment loss had been recognised
Impairment of goodwill1s not reversed

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a probable,
present legal or constructive obligation to make a transfer of
economic benefits as a result of past events where areliable
estimate 1s avalable The amounts recognised represent the
Group’s best estimate of the transfer of benefits that will be
required to settle the obligation as of the balance sheet date
Provisions are discounted If the effect of the time value of money
1s material using a pre-tax market rate adjusted for risks specific
to the hability

Iy ESOP reserve

Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase the Company’s
own equity shares the cost of those shares, including any
attnbutable transaction costs 15 presented within the

ESOP reserve as a deduction in shareholders’ equity in the
consolidated finanoial statements

m) Revenue recognrtion

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and transactions
between Group companies represents the gross inflow of
economic benefit from Sky's operating activities The Group's
main sources of revenue are recognised as follows

« Retaill subscription revenue, including subscriptions for TV
services, Sky Broadband and Sky Talk services, is recognised
as the goods or services are provided net of any discount
gven Pay-per-view revenue 1s recognised when the event or
movie 15 viewed

+ Wholesale revenue 1s recognised as the services are provided
to cable and other retatlers and 1s based on the number of
subscribers taking the Sky channels as reported to the Group
by the cable and other retallers, and the applicable rate card
or contract.

« Advertising sales revenue is recognised when the advertising
1s broadcast Revenue generated from artime sales, where
Sky acts as an agent on behalf of third parties 1s recognised
on a net commission basis

« Installation, hardware and service revenue Is recognised in the
income statement when the goods and services are activated

« Other revenue principally ncludes income from technical
platform services, Sky Bet third party set-top box sales and
public access WiFi services With the exception of Sky Bet
revenue, other revenue 1s recognised net of any discount
given, when the relevant goods or service are provided Sky
Bet revenue 1s recognised i accordance with IAS 39 and
represents income in the period for betting and gaming
activities defined as amounts staked by customers less
winnings pard out

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration
recewved or recervable When the Group sells a set-top box,
installation or service and a subscrption in one bundled
transaction, the total consideration from the arrangement 1s
allocated to each element based on therr retative fair values The
farr value of each indvidual element 1s determined using vendor
specific or third party evidence. The amount of revenue the Group
recognises for delvered elements is imited to the cash receved

n) Employee benefits

Wages, salanes, social security contributions bonuses payable
and non-monetary benefits for current employees are recognised
in the incame statement as the employees services are rendered
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NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

The Group provides pensions to eligible employees through
defined contnbution schemes The amount charged to

the income statement in the year represents the cost of
contrbutions payable by the Group to the schemes in exchange
for employee services rendered In that year The assets of the
schemes are held independently of the Group

Termination benefits are recognised as a liability when, and only
when, the Group has a demonstrable commitment to terminate
the employment of an employee or group of employees before
the normal retirement date or as the result of an offer to
encourage voluntary redundancy

The Group 1ssues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees which must be measured at fair
value and recognised as an expense In the income statement,
with a corresponding increase inequity in the case of equity-
settled payments and liabilities in the case of cash-settled
awards The fairvalues of equity-settled payments are measured
at the dates of grant using option-pricing models, taking

Into account the terms and conditions upon which the awards
are granted Cash-settled share-based payments are measured
at their fair value as at the balance sheet date The fairvalue

1s recognised over the pertod duning which employees become
unconditionally entrtled to the awards, subject to the Group s
estimate of the number of awards which will be forfeited, either
due to employees leaving the Group prior to vesting or due to
non-market based performance conditions not being met. Where
an award has market-based performance conditions the fair
value of the award 15 adjusted for the probabiity of achieving
these via the option pricing mode! The total amount récognised
Inthe Income statement as an expense 15 adjusted to reflect the
actual number of awards that vest except where forferture 1s
due to the fallure to meet market-based performance measures
In the event of a cancellation, whether by the Group orby a
participating employee the compensation expense that would
have been recognised over the remainder of the vesting penod 1s
recognised immediately in profit or loss

o) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental

to ownership of the asset to the lessee Allother leases are
classified as operating leases

When the Group Is lessor, sublease iIncome from operating leases
15 recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease

When the Group i1s lessee assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their far value on the date
of acquisitien, or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments The corresponding hability to the lessoris
included in the balance sheet as afinance lease obligation
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Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reductions of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the rematning batance of the liability

The lease expense ansing from operating leases 1s charged to the
Income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the
lease Benefits received and receivable as incentives to enter into
operating leases are recorded on a straight-line basss over the
lease term

p) Taxation, including deferred taxation

The Greups liability for current tax 1s based on taxable profit for
the year, and 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and habilities are recognised using the
balance sheet liability method providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
llabihties in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit Temporary differences
ansing from goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or
llabilities that affect neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
are not provided for Deferred tax habilities are recognised

for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in
subsidianies and assocates, and interests In joint ventures,
except where the Group I1s able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it 1s prebable that the temporary
difference will not reverse m the foreseeable future The amount
of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
habilities, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect an amount that

1s probable to be realised based on the weight of all available
evidence Deferred tax s calculated at the rates that are
expected to apply in the penod when the ability 1s settled or
the asset is realised Deferred tax assets and habilities are not
discounted Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except where it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity tnwhech case the deferred tax is also included
within equity Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset
when there Is a legally enforceable nght to set of f current tax
assets against current tax llabilities and when they relate to
Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group Intends to settle its current tax assets and liabiliies on a
net basis

q) Distnbutions to equrty shareholders
Dvidends are recognised In the retained earnings reserve in the
year in which they are declared
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The cost of repurchasing the Group s own equity shares for
cancellation ("share buy-backs™ 1s recorded in retained earnings
In addition the nominal cost of shares repurchased 1s deducted
from share capital and a matching credit 1s recorded in the capital
redemption reserve

r} Eamings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share represents the profit or loss for
the year, dwvided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares In 1ssue dunng the year excluding the weighted average
number of ordimary shares purchased by the Group and

held in the Group s ESOP during the year to satisfy employee
share awards

Diluted earnings or loss per share represents the profit or loss
for the year, dvided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares inissue durning the year excluding the weighted average
number of ardinary shares purchased by the Group and held

in the Group s ESOP during the year to satisfy employee share
awards plus the weighted average number of dilutive shares
resulting from share options where the inclusion of these would
not be antidilutive.

s) Foreign currency translation

The Group s functionat currency and presentational currency

15 pounds sterling. Trading actvittes denomuinated in foreign
currencies are recorded in pounds sterling at the applicable
monthly exchange rates Monetary assets liabilities and
commtments denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange at that date’
Non-monetary assets and llabiities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to pounds sterling at the exchange rate
prevaling at the date of the iIniial transaction Gains and losses
from the retranslation of assets and habilities are included net
i profit for the year, except for exchange differences arising on
non-monetary assets and habilities where the changes in far
value are recognised directly in equity

The assets and habilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date Income and expense items are translated at the applicable
monthly average exchange rates Any exchange differences
ansing are classified as equity and transferred to other reserves

t) Reportable segments

IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” requires the segment information
presented in the financial statements to be that which 1s used
internally by the chvef operating decision maker to evaluate

the performance of the business and decide how to allocate
resources The Group has identsfied the Board of Directors as

its chief operating deaision maker and as the internal reporting
reviewed by the Board focuses on the operations of the Group as
a whole and does not identify indmvidual operating segments, the
Group has only one reportable segment )

u) Accounting Standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted certain new standards
amendmenits and interpretations to existing standards which
have been published but are only effective for our accounting
penods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 or later penods These
new pronouncements are listed below

«  Amendments to 1AS12 "Income Taxes Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets” (effective 1 January 2012)

+ Amendments to|AS1 “Presentation of Financial Statements -
Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income”
(effective 1 July 2012)

« |FRS10 "Consclidated Financial Statements” (effective
1 January 2013)

+ IFRS 11 "Jomt Arrangements” (effective 1 January 2013)

* IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
(effective 1 January 2013}

» |IFRS13 “Farr Value Measurement” (effective 1 January 2013)

« Amendment to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
(effective 1 January 2013)

+  Amendment to IAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements”
(effective 1 January 2013)

+  Amendment to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” (effective 1 January 2013)

« Amendments to IFRS 7 "Finanaial Instruments Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Finanaal Liabihities”
(effectve 1 January 2013)

« Annual improvements 2009-201 Cycle (effective 1 January
2013)

+  Amendments to 1AS 32 "Financial Instruments Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”
(effective 1 January 2004)

« |FRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective 1 January 2015)

The Directors are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption
of these standards, amendments and interpretations 1n future
periods

v) Cnical accounting polictes and the use of judgment

Certain accounting policies are considered to be critical to the
Group An accounting policy 1s considered to be critical if, in the
Directors’ jJudgment, its selection or application matenally affects
the Group's financial position or results Below s a summary of
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CONSQUDATED AINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

1 Accounting policies continued
the Group s critical accounting pohicies and details of the key
areas of judgment that are exercised in ther application

1 Revenue (seenote 2)

Selecting the approprate timing for and amount of, revenue
ta be recogrised requires judgment This may involve
estimating the fair value of consideration before it 1s received
When the Group sells a set-top box installation or service

and a subscription In one bundled transaction the total
consideration from the arrangement is allocated to each
element based on 1ts relative far value The fair value of each
individual element is determined using vendor specific or third
party evidence The amount of revenue the Group recognises
for delivered elements I1s imited to the cash receved

Judgment s also required in evaluating the likelihood

of collection of customer debt after revenue has been
recognised This evaluation requires estimates to be made
including the leve! of provision to be made for amounts with
uncertain recovery profiles Provisions are based on histoncal
trends In the parcentage of debts which are not recavered, or
on mere detailed reviews of individually significant batances

1l Taxation {see note 8)

The Group's tax charge is the sum of the total current and
deferred tax charges The calculation of the Group’s total
tax charge necessarily nvolves a degree of estimation and
judgment in respect of certain items whose tax treatment
cannot be finally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authonty or as appropriate,
through a formal legal process

Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make
Judgments and estimates in relation to tax audit issues and
exposures Amounts accrued are based on management’s
interpretation of country-specific tax law and the hkehhood

of settlement. Tax benefits are not recognised unless it

1s probable that the tax positions will be sustained Once
considerad to be probable, management reviews each material
tax benefit to assess whether a provision should be taken
against full recognition of the benefit on the basis of the likely
resolution of the issue through negotiation and/or itigation

The amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements In respect of each matter are derved from the
Group s best estimation and judgment as described above
However, the iInherent uncertainty regarding the outcome

of these items means the eventual resolution could differ
from the provision and in such event the Group would be
required to make an adjustment in a subsequent penod which
could have a matenal impact on the Groups profit and loss
andjor cash position
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m Goodwill (see note 12)

+  Judgmentis required in determining the fair value of
identifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilities
assumed in a business combination Calculating the
fair values involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions, induding expectations about future cash flows,
discount rates and the Iives of assets following purchase

« Judgment s also required in evaluating whether any
impairment loss has ansen against the carrying amount
of goodwill This may require calculation of the recoverable
amount of cash generating units to which the goodwill 1
assoclated Such a calculation may involve estimates of the
net present value of future forecast cash flows and selecting
an appropnate discount rate Alternatively, it may invelve a
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell of the applicable
cashgenerating unit,

iv Intangible assets and property plant and equipment

(seenotes13 and 14)

« The assessment of the useful economic lives of these assets
requires jJudgment Depreciation and amortisation is charged
to the income statement based on the useful economic Iife
selected This assessment requires estimation of the period
over which the Group will benefit from the assets

« Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets
has any indication of impairment also requires judgment, If
anindication of Impairment 1s identified, further judgment
I1s required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast
to be dernved from the asset. This forecast involves cash flow
prosections and selecting the appropnate discount rate

« Assessing whether assets meet the required critera for
initial capitalisation requires judgment This requires a
determination of whether the assets will result in future
benefits to the Group In particular, internally generated
intangible assets must be assessed during the development
phase to identify whether the Group has the ability and
intention to complete the development successfully

v Deferred tax (see note17)

+ The key area of judgment in respect of deferred tax
accounting 1s the assessment of the expected timing and
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities held at the balance sheet date In
particular assessment Is required of whether It 1s probable
that there will be surtable future taxable profits against which
any deferred tax assets can be utilised

vi Programming inventory (see note 18)
+  The Group has several main types of programming inventory
Sport, News, Movies and General entertainment, as detatled

In accounting pohicy (g)(7)
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The cost of acquired Sport and News rnights 1s recognised in
the income statement on first broadcast or where Sports
nghts are for multiple seasons or competitions, Sports rights
are amortised on a straight-line basis across the seasons

or competitions Acquired movie nghts are amortised on

a straight-line basis over the period of the transmissien
nghts These treatments best represent our estimate of the
benefits received from the acquired nghts

The key area of accounting for programmung inventory
requirng Judgment is the assessment of the appropriate
profile over which to amortise general entertainment
programming This assessment requires the Group to form
an expectation of the number of times a programme wll
be broadcast, and the relative value associated with each
broadcast In order to perform this assessment, the Group
considers the following factors

The period over which the programme 1 expected to be shown on
the Group's channels. This 1s usually based on a combination of
the actual period specified in the contract for the programme
nights, and the initial expectation of when repeat broadcasts wil
be scheduled

The alternative prograrming available to the Group for
scheduling within this penod This consideration provides
the most appropnate information in order to estimate how
frequently individual programmes wall be shown during the
period inwhich the Group holds their broadcast rights

The potential benefits associated with scheduling programming
Certain high-profile or high-quality programming titles

have additional value to the Group as they attract new TV
Customers and encourage retention of existing TV Customers
As such, these programmes are able to retain more value
throughout their broadcast runs than would be indicated
when considering the expected viewing humbers alone

0

Expectatrons as to the number of viewers a programme 15 likely
to achieve for each indvidual broadcast over the contractual
broadcast period The number of viewers per broadcast
directly influences advertising revenue for channels although
this consideration s partly influenced by the Groups
assessment of the potential impact of the publicly available
information on its competitors’ scheduling intentions agamst
planned broadcasts

-
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

2. Revenue
2012 2o
Em Em

Continuing operations

Retail subscrniption 5593 5471
Wholesale subscnption 351 323
Advertising 440 458
Installation hardware and service o8 12
Other 309 233
6,791 6597

To provide a more relevant presentation, management has reclassified Sky Player and Sky Mobile revenue of £11 milhion in the current
period and £16 million In the comparative penod from other revenue to retail subscription revenue

Revenue from continuing operations anses from goods and services provided to the UK with the exception of £418 milhion
(201 £422 million) which anses from services provided to other countries

3 Operating expense

2012 20m
£m £m

Continuing operations
Programming 2298 2188
Direct networks 676 584
Marketing'® 1064 1179
Subsenber management and supply chain 621 596
Transmission, technology and fixed networks 385 395
Administration” 494 582
5,548 5,524

(0 included within admurystration costs for the year ended 30 June 201215 a credit of £31 muikon 1 refation to the News Corporation proposal consisting of costs incurred
offset by the recaipt of the break fee (see note 30) Also included are restructuring costs af £11 muhon which compnse severance payments in relation to approxtmately
35 seruor roles as part of a restructunng nitiative to improve operational efficiency Included within edrnistration casts for the year ended 30 June 20111s £26 million of
restructuning costs arsing on the acquisition of Lang TV which compise prncipatiy redundancy payments and the early termination of @ pre-acquisitien centroct end
£15 metion of costs in refation to the News Carporation proposal

(n} Included within marketing costs for the year ended 30 June 201152 credit of £41 mithon in relation to the refund of import duty on set-tep boxes paid out in pror years
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4 Investment income and finance costs

2012 20m
£m £m
Investment iIncome
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term deposits 14 9
Dindends receved from available-for-sale investments 4 -
18
2012 2on
£m £m
Finance costs
- Interest payable and similar charges
£743 milhon/E750 million Revolving Credit Facilities ("RCF Y? ®) 6)
Guaranteed Notes (see note 22) (115) (ne)
Finance lease interest 7} ()]
(130) {129)
- Qther finance income (expense}
Remeasurement of borrowings and borrowings-related dervative financial instruments (not qualifying for hedge
accounting) 20 17
Remeasurement of other denvative financial Instruments (not qualifyng for hedge accounting) - (2
Gain (loss) anising on denvatives in a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship a7 [C)
(Loss) gain ansing on adjustment for hedged item in a designated fair value hedge accounting relationship (48) 7
19 18
(D)) mn

(1} Included in RCF costs for the vear ended 30 June 201215 a write-off of £5 million refating to the facrhty fee on the £750 muthon RCFwhich has now been replaced with the

£743 mulhon RCF (see note 22)

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifying assets duning the year arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by
applying a capitalisation rate of 5 4% (2011 5 3%) to expenditure on such assets The amount capitalised in the current year amounted

to £1 million (2011 less than £1 mifion}

5 Profit on dispasal of available-for-sale investment

Inthe prior year, on 5 Apnil 2011, the Group sold 1ts avalable-for-sale investment 1n Shine Limsted (*Shine”) for a maximum consideration
of £36 million, of which £31 million has been received to date The remaining consideration Is contingent on certain post transaction
eritena and 1s currently held in escrow At the date of disposal the Group estimated the fair value of the contingent consideration to
be £4 millkon and recorded a profit on disposal of £9 million being the excess of the recogrised consideration above the carrying value

of the shares
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CONSOUDATED FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

& Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation Is stated after charging

Contmuing  Discontimued

operations operations Total
£m Em £m
Year ended 30 June 2012
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 1,854 - 1854
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 179 - 179
Amortisation andimpairment of intangible assets 165 - 165
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 50 - 50
Year ended 30 June 201
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 1850 - 1850
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 173 3 176
Amortisation and imparrment of intangible assets 159 1 160
Rentals on operating leases and similar arrangements 42 2 44
Consolidated non-current assets outside the UK were £2 million (2011 £2 million)
Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange gains recogrised in the ncome statement during the year amounted to £2 million (201 losses of less than
£1 milion) .
Audrt fees
An analysis of auditor's remuneration 1s as follows
2z 201
£m Em
Total audit fees 1 1
Total non-audit fees 1 1
Total auditor remuneration 2 2

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts were £11 millon (2011 £09 millien) and
fees payable to the Company s auditor for the audit of the Company s subsrdiaries pursuant to legislation were £0 3 miflion (201

£0 4 milhion) .

Amounts paid to the auditor for non-audit fees include audit related services of £0 3 million (201 £0 3 million), taxation services of
£0 3 million (2011 nif) other assurance services of £01 mithon (2011 £01 midkon) other advisory senvices of £01 millon 20N nil) and

transaction services of mil (201 £0 4 midlon)
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7 Employee benefits and key management compensation

a) Group employee benefits
2012 20m
£m Em
Wages and salanes 687 651
Social secunty costs 78 80
Costs of employee share opticn schemes™ 66 &7
Contnbutions to the Group s pension schemes™ 26 7
857 825

(1) A £66 muffion charge relates to equity-settied share based payments (2011 £63 mithan chamge) There were no charges refating to cash-settled shore-based payments
(201 £2 mifhon credit)

(i) The Group operates defined contnbution pension schemes The penston chasge for the yeor répresents the cost of contnbutions payable by the Group to the schemes
dunng theyear The amaunt payable to the schemes by the Group at 30 June 2012 was £5 mifion (2011 £4 milkon)

The average monthly number of full-tme equivalent persons (including temporary employees) emptoyed by the Group during the year
was as follows

2012 201

Number Number

Channels and saervices 2466 2498
Customer service sales and marketing 1087 9440
Transmisston and technology 3204 2753
Management and administraticn 1180 1315

17.937 16,006

There are approximately 506 (2011 446) temporary staff included within the average number of full-time equivalent persons
emplaoyed by the Group

b) Key management compensation (see note 30d)

2012 20m

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 6 5
Share-based payments 7 6
13 1

Post-employment benefits were less than £1 millkon (201 less than £1 million) The amounts disclosed for key management
compensation are Included within the disclosures in note 7(a)

8 Taxation
a) Taxation recogrused in the income statement
d 2012 20m
Em £m
Current tax expense
Current year 303 386
Adjustment in respect of prior years (33) ms)
Total current tax charge 270 271
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 3] an
Adjustment in respect of prior years 7 10
Total deferred tax charge (credit) 13 )
Taxation 283 264
Continuing operations 283 256
Discontinued operations (see note 9) - 8
283 264

Taxation relates to a £283 million UK corparation tax charge (2011 £264 millicn)
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CONSOLIDATED INANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

8 Taxation continued
b) Taxation recognised directly in equity

2012 201t

£m Em
Current. tax (credit) relating to share-based payments (4 2
Deferred tax charge (credit) relating to share-based payments 24 a7)
Deferred tax charge (credit) relating to cash flow hedges 16 (25)
26 44)

c) Reconcihation of effective tax rate

The tax expense for the year s lower (2011 lower) than the expense that would have been charged using the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK (25 5%) applied to profit before tax, The applicable enacted or substantively enacted effective rate of UK
corporation tax for the year was 25 5% (2011 275%) The differences are explamed below

20012 201t
£m Em

Profit before tax
- Continuing operations 1189 1014
- Discontinued operations N - 60

1189 1,074
Profit before tax multiphed by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 25 5% (2011 275%) 303 295
Effects of
Mon-deductible expense E] 83
Deferred tax write-off followsng tax rate change 2 2
Tax attnibuted to discontinued operations - 8
Tax exempt gain cn discontinued operations - a7}
Tax exempt gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments® - (2)
Over provision In respect of prior years” (25) (105)
Taxation 283 264

(1) Thisincludes the tax effect of agreeing a number of histonc issues with HMRC resuling in a credit to the pnor yeor tax tiobility

(1) Thisis the tox effect of the gain on disposal of the available-for-safe investments relating to the Group s investment m Shine for the year ended 30 June 2011 see note 5
9 Discontinued operations

On1 September 2010, the Group completed the sale of its business-to-business telecommunications operation, Easynet Global
Services ("Easynet”) to Lloyds Development Capital ("LDC™) for £100 milbon Subsequent to this an agreed working capital adjustment
reduced total net consideration to £94 million

The Group retains the UK network assets that it acquired as part of the oniginal acquisition of Easynet Group 10 2005 As part of the
sale, the Group and LDC entered into a long-term supply agreement to grant Easynet continued access to the Groups fibre network
and Easynet continues to be a key suppher of data network and hosting services to the Group

Easynet represented a separate major ine of business for the Group As a result its operations were treated as discontinued for the
year ended 30 June 2011 A single amount 1s shown on the face of the consalidated income statement compnsing the post-tax result
of discontinued operations and the post-tax profit recogrused on the disposal of the discontinued operation

A pre-tax profit of £62 million arose on the disposal of Easynet being the net proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of
Easynet s net habilities and attnbutable goodwilt
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The results of discontinued operations, which were included in the consohdated income statement for the year ended 30 June 2011,
were as follows

20m®
' £Em
Revenue ! 32
OCperating expense (34)
Operating loss (2)
Profit on disposal 62
Profit before tax 60
Attnbutable tax expense™ )]
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 52
() Amounts include the results of discontinued operations up to the date of disposal (1 September 2010)
() Attnbutable tax expense compnses nilin respect of operating actrwtses ond £8 millian ansing as a result of the disposal
The net habilities of Easynet at the date of disposal were
15eptember
2010
Em
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 2
Property plant and equipment 40
61
Current assets
Inventary 1
Trade and other receivables 47
Cash and cash equvalents 16
64
Total assets 125
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 83
Provisions 1
a4
Non-current hatilities
Trade and other payables 37
Deferred tax labiity 5
42
Total liabilities 126
Net llabilities V)
Total consideration 94
Met liabilities disposed ]
Attnibutable goodwall (30
Foreign exchange recycled to the income statement on disposat (&3]
Other - 1
Net profit on disposal 62
Consideration received In cash and cash equivalents 54
Less cash and cash equivalents disposed of (16)
Net cashinflow ansing on disposal 78

During the year ended 30 June 2011 cash flows attnbutable to Easynet comprnised a riet operating cash outflow of £7 million and a net
cash inflow in respect of investing activities of £76 million
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CONSOUDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

10 Earnings per share
The weighted average number of shares for the year was

2012 20m
Millions of  Millions of
shares shares

Ordinary shares 1,731 1753
ESOP trust ordinary shares (0 (o)
Basic shares 172 1.743
Dilutive ordinary shares from share options 16 20
Diluted shares 1,737 1763

The caleulation of diluted earnings per share excludes less than 1 million share options (2011 2 milion) which could potentially dilute
earnings per share in the future but which have been excluded from the calculation of diluted earrangs per share as they are ant-dilutive
inthe year )

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dviding the profit or loss for the year into the weighted average number of
shares for the year In order to provide a measure of underlying performance, management have chosen to present an adjusted
profit for the year which excludes items that may distort comparability Such items anse from events or transactions that fall within
the ordsnary actmties of the Group but which management believes should be separately identified to help explain undertying
performance

2012 20m
Em £m
Reconciliation from profit, for the year from continuing operations to adjusted profit for the year from
continuIng operations
Profit for the year from continuing operations 906 758
(Net recovery of) costs in relaticn to News Corporation proposal (see note 3} (31} 5
Costs relating to restructuring exergse (see note 3) n -
Living TV restructuring costs (see note 3) - 26
Recovery of import duty on set-top boxes (see note 3) - @)
RCF fee write-off (see nate 4) -
Remeasurement of a!l denvative financialinstruments not qualifying for hedge accounting and hedge
Ineffectiveness (see nate 4) [€1)] (8
Profit on disposal of joint venture (see note 15) @ -
Profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale investment (see note 5) - (9)
Tax credit on settlement of lability® - 5)
Tax effect of above 1tems 10 9
Adjpusted profit for the year from continuing cperations 875 725
(1) Taxcredt ansing on the settlement of the pre-acquisition tax kabiities of a substdiary of the Group
3 2012 20m
pence pence
Earnings per share from profit for the year
Basic
Continuing operations 526p 435p
Discontinued operations - 30p
Total 526p 465p
Diluted
Continuing operations 522p 430p
Discontinued operations - 29
Total 52.2p 455p
Adjusted earnings per share from adjusted profit for the year from continuing operations
Bastc 50 8p 416p
Diuted 50 4p 411p
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1 Dwmidends
2012 20m
Em Em

Dnadends declared and paid during the year

2010 Final dwidend paid 11525p per ordinary share - 20
2011 Interim dvdend pard 8 74p per ordinary share - 152
201 Final dividend paid 14 54p per ordinary share 253 -
2012 Interim dividend paid 9 20p per ardinary share 157 -
410 3153

The 2012 final dvidend proposed 1s 16 20 pence per ordinary share being £269 millon The dividend was not declared at the balance
sheet date and 1s therefore not recognised as a hability as at 30 June 2012

Dividends are paid between Group companies out of profits available for distribution subject to, inter alla the provisions of the
companies’ articles of association and the Comparies Act 2006 The ESOP has waived its nghts to dividends

12. Goodwill

Em
Carrying value
At1July 2010 852
Purchase of Living TV Group ("Lving TV ") . 79
Purchase of The Cloud Networks bimited ("The Cloud ) 38
Other purchases 5
Disposal of Easynet Enterprise (€0}
At 30 June 2011 944
Purchase of Acetrax AG ("Acetrax 'y 12
At 30 June 2012 956

Goodwill has principally arisen from the Group's purchases of the Sports Internet Group (*SIG") British interactive Broadcasting
(“BIB"), Easynet’s UK broadband network assets and residential business 365 Media, Amstrad, Living TV and The Cloud Impairment
reviews were performed on these goodwill balances at 30 June 2012, which did not indicate Impairment

Dunng the year, the Group completed the acquistionof Acetrax for consideration of £15 million. This resulted In addrional goodwill of £12 million

Goodwill, allocated by cash generating unit, 1s analysed as follows

2012 201

Em £m

Broadcast®” 807 795
Betting and garming™ 149 149
956 944

The Broadcast unit includes intang bles with indefinite lives of £25 miflion (2011 £25 million)

Recoverable amounts for the cash generating units were calculated on the basis of value inuse or fair value less costs to sell as appropriate,
using cash flows calculated for the next five years as forecast by management. A long-term growth rate of 3% was applied in order to
extrapclate cash flow projections beyond this period The cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 8% (201 9%)

In determining the applicable discount rate, management applied judgment in respect of several factors which included inter alia
assessing the nsk attached to future cash flows and making reference to the capital asset prcing model (the "CAPM”). Management
gave consideration to the selection of appropriate inputs to the CAPM which iIncluded the nisk free rate, the equity risk premium and a
measure of systernatic nsk. Management also considers capital structure and an appropnate cost of debt in arrving at the discount rate

1) Broadcast

The Broadcast unit Includes goodwill ansing from the purchase of Easynet s UK broadband network assets, Fasynet’s UK residential
business 365 Media’s content business, BIB Amstrad Living TV and The Cloud The key assumptions onwhich forecast five year cash
flows of the Broadcast unit were based include the number of gross customer additions, the rate of churn, the average revenue per

user levels of programming spend, acquisition costs per custemer and anticpated changes in the product mix and marketing mix of the
broadcast business The values assigned to each of these assumptions were determined based on the extrapolation of historical trends
within the Group, and external Information on expected future trends in the UK and Ireland entertainment and communications industry
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CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

12. Goodwll continued

iy Betting and gaming

The Betting and gaming unit includes goodwill arising from the purchase of SIG and 365 Media s betting businesses The key
assumptions, on which forecast five year cash flows were based, indude the number of weekly unique users the number of bets
placed per user perweek the average stake per user per week and the average spend per active user per week The values assigned to
each of these assumptions were determined based on an extrapolation of historical trends within the unit. and external information
on expected future trends in betting and gaming

13 Intangible assets

Internally
generated Acquired
intangible  mtangible

Internally assets assets
generated Software Other not yet not yet
intangible development  Scftware  intangible avallable avallable
assets (external) licences assets for use foruse Total
Em £m £m Em Em £m Em
Cost
At 1 July 2010 174 305 120 13 32 99 843
Additions from business combinations - - 2 a0 - - 92
Additions 49 22 3 60 14 67 215
Msposals (23) {51 (22) [Q)] - - ©7)
Disposals of discontinued operations &) [ed) an 9 - - 43
Transfers 19 73 2 - (203 (74) -
At 30 June 2011 214 347 88 243 26 92 1,010
Additions from business combinations - 3 - 1 - - 4
Additions 45 22 n 57 56 3 222
Disposals (3%) a4 {20) 7 - - {116}
Transfers 28 19 1 - 28) 20) -
At 30 June 2012 252 347 80 284 54 103 1,120
Amortisation
At 1 July 2010 92 255 81 79 - - 507
Amortisation 35 53 16 53 - - 157
Impairments 2 1 - - - - 3
Disposals (23) (€D (22) (U] - - 9n
Disposals of discontinued operations 3 2 (m &) - - (22}
At 30 June 201 103 256 64 125 - - 548
Amortisation 54 37 15 9 - - 165
Disposals (35) (44) 20y (W) - - me)
At 30 June 2012 122 249 59 167 - - 597
Carrying amounts
At1huly 2010 82 50 39 34 32 99 336
AL 30 tune 20M m ot 24 na 26 92 a62
At 30 June 2012 130 a8 21 117 54 103 523

The Group's internally generated intangible assets relate to software development associated with our customer managerent
systems and set-top boxes The Group's other intangible assets mainly include copyright licences, customer lists and relaticnships,
connection fees and patents and brands acquired in business combinations

The estimated future amortisation charge on intangibte assets with finite lives for each of the next five years (s set out below 1tis
likely that future amortisation will vary from the figures below as the estimate does not mclude the impact of any future investments
disposals or capital expenditure

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
£m Em £m £m Em
Estimated amortisation charge 176 122 89 21 20

For intangible assets acquired in business combinations in the year, the average amortsation pernodis 9 years (2011 20 years)

Other intangible assets include certain assets with indefinite useful Iives The carmying value of these assets 1s E25million (20N £25 milion)
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Equipment, AsSELS

Freehold furniture not yet

land and Leasehold and available

butldings®™® Improvements fixtures foruse Tota!

£m Em Em £m Em
Cost
At buly 2010 186 73 1040 rrd] 1520
Additions from business combinatians - - 3 - 3
Additions 2 2 167 39 210
Disposals m 2) 8) - 21
Disposals of discontinued operations - {148} (136) [#4) (152)
Transfers 145 - 83 (228) -
At 30 June 2011 332 59 1139 30 1560
Foreign exchange movements - - )] - (U]
Additions - 1 192 38 231
Disposals - m (160) - Qen
Transfers 1 - 40 ) -
At 30 June 2012 333 59 1,210 27 1,629 )
Depreaation Q
AL 1 July 2010 26 27 568 - 621 =
Depreaation 6 1 167 - T 14 2
Impasrments - - 2 - 2 P
Disposals D) @ 18) - ©n -
Disposals of discontinued operations - 4) (108) - m2)
At 30 June 2011 31 22 611 - 564
Foretgn exchange movements - - m - [O)
Depreciation 10 6 163 - 178
Disposals m m (159) - (61
At 30 June 2012 40 7 6514 - 631
Carrying amounts
At July 2010 160 46 472 221 899
At 30 June 201 301 37 528 30 895
At 30 June 2012 293 32 596 27 948

(1} The emounts shown include assets heid under finance feases with a net book vaiue of £5 muthon (2011 £6 mithon} The cost of these assets was £11 mithon (2011 £17
mifhon) and the accumulated depreciotion was E6 milion (2011 £5 miton). Deprecation charged dunng the year on such assets was £ 1million (201 £1mithon)
(#) Depreciation was not charged on £88 mithon of fand (2011 E88 muliion)
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CONSOLIDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

15 Investments in joint ventures and associates
A list of the Group’s significant investments in joint ventures and associates, incduding the name country of incorporation and
proportron of ownership interest is given in note 32 to the consclidated financial statements

The movement in joint ventures and associates during the year was as follows

2012 201
Em Em

Share of net assets
At 1luly 151 149
Movement In net assets
- Funding, net of repayments 6 4
- Dividends received™® (3% (29)
- Share of profits™ 39 . 34
- Disposal of joint venture ©® (3 -
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign joint ventures and assoates 2 (6))]
At 30 June 156 151

(1} Duning the year the Group disposed of its interest in Chelsea Digital Medra Limited Included in share of profits for the year 1s a profit on dispasal of £7 million
Consideration received on the sale to date of £6 mithion is included within dnadends receved

The Group's share of any capital commitments and contingent hiabilities of associates and joint ventures 15 shown in note 28

a) Investments In joint ventures
Representing the Groupss share of each joint venture

2012 20m
Em £Em
Non-current assets il 5
Current assets 75 63
Current habiities ' (32) (32)
Non-current liabilties (46) (7)
Shareholders’ equity 26 29
Revenue 84 79
Expense (69) (59)
Taxation - @ )
Share of profit from joint ventures 1 16
b) Investments In associates
Representing a100% share of each associate
2012 20m
Em Em
Total assets 256 183
Total habilitres (78 66)
Shareholders’ equity 178 17
Revenue® 296 257
Profit® 105 85
(1) Revenue and profit numbers are provided for the full year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011
16 Available-for-sale investments
2002 20m
£m £m
Investmentn ITV at cost ! 946 946
Impairment of [TV investment (807 (BO7)
Realised gain on [TV investment s 15
Part disposal of ITVinvestment (196) (196)
Unrealised gan on [TV mvestment 165 157
Fair value of [TV investment 223 15
Other investments at cost 5 -
228 15
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On 17 Navember 2006 the Group acguired 696 mullion shares in TV at a price of 135 pence per share, representing 179% of the issued
capital of ITV for a total consideration of £946 million including fees and taxes The Group's mvestment in TV 1s carnied at fair value

.
The fair value i1s determined with reference to its equity share price at the balance sheet date Animpairment in the carrying value was
first recorded at 31 December 2007 due to the significant and prolonged dechine in the equity share price In accordance with IFRS, the
Group has continued to review that carrying value and has recognised a cumulative impairment loss of £807 million in fiscal 2008 and
fiscal 2009 This iImparment loss was determined with reference to ITV's closing equity share price of 20 0 pence at 27 March 2009, the
last trading day of the Group’s third fiscal quarter in fiscal 2009 In line with IFRS, all subsequent increases in the fair value of the ITV
investment above this impaired value have been recorded in the avalable-for-sale reserve

On 8 February 2010 the Group placed a shareholding of 10 4% in ITV in accordance with the final undertakings given by the Group

to the Secretary of State for Business Innovatron and Skills relating to the Group s investment in ITV The placing by the Group of
404,362,095 ITV shares at 48 5 pence per share resutted in aggregate consideration of £196 mifion A profit of £115 million was realised
on disposal being the excess of the consideration above the impaired value of the shares The Group continues to hold just under 75%
of the sharesin [TV

The disposal was exempt from tax under the provisions of the Substantial Shareholding Exemption (SSE) and as such the SSE
provisions would prevent any capital loss anising for tax purposes

The Group holds certan unquoted equity Investments that are carned at cost less impairment. The fair value of these investments s
not considered to differ significantly from therr carrying value

17 Deferred tax
1) Recognised deferred tax assets (habilities)

Share-
based Financial
Accelerated Short-term payments  Instruments
tax temporary  temporary temporary
depreciation Taxlosses differences differences differences Total
Em YEm £m Em Em Em
At 1 July 2010 ® - 6 25 (30 @
(Charge) credit toincome (€3] 1 (€3] 18 (5) 9
Credit to equity - - - 19 24 43
Acguisition of subsidianes 2 - - - - 22
Disposal of subsidiary 3 - 2 - - 5
Effect of change in tax rate
-Income - - - 2) - @
- Equsty - - - 2) 1 (U]
At 30 June 2011 14 1 6 58 {10) 69
(Charge) to income [{)) - - {6} (5) 2)
Credit to equity - - - 23) 8) (41
Acquisition of subsidianes Q)] - - - - )]
Effect of change in tax rate
-income - - - (2) 1 (1)
- Equity - - - n 2 1
At 30 June 2012 12 1 ] 26 (30) 15

Deferred tax assets have been recogrised at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 201 on the basis that, from management s current forecast of
the Group's entities, it 1s probable that there will be sutable taxable profits agamnst which these assets can be utiised Tax losses are
treated as unrecogmised deferred tax assets if it 15 not considered probable that suitable future taxable profits will arise During the
year, any tax losses suffered by UK entities have been relieved against taxable profits in other UK entities in the Group

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the penods in which they reverse The
rate enacted or substantively enacted for the relevant periods of reversal 15 24% as at 30 June 2012 (201 26%)

The Government has indicated that it intends to introduce further reductions in the main tax rate, with the rate falling by 1% each year
down to 22% by 1 April 2014 These further reductions to the tax rate, below the 24% rate have not been substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and are therefore not reflected in these consolidated finanaial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

17 Deferred tax continued

The impact of the reduction to the main tax rate to 22% (201
25%) on the deferred tax attributes of the Group would be a
reduction in the deferred tax asset by £1 million (2011 £2 million)

Certain deferred tax assets and labilities have been offset.
The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset} for financial reporting purposes

18 Inventones

2012 20m

Em Em

Television programme nghts 379 265
Set-top boxes and related equipment 69 S8
Other inventories a 12
: 456 375

At 30 June 2012, 81% (2011 85%) of the television programme
rights and 100% (2011 100%) of set-top boxes and related

2%% 22:11 equipment and other inventories Is expected to be recognised in
Deferred tax assets 25 79 the income statement within 12 months
Deferred tax habilities @n (10) 19 Trade and other receivables
15 69
2012 20m
1) Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets Em Em
Gross trade recewvables 170 274
2012 201 Less provision for imparrment of recevables (89) {i195)
£m Em Net trade recenvables 81 79
Taxlosses ansing from trading 252 300 Amounts receivable from joint ventures and
Tax losses ansing from capital disposals and assoclates 8 7
provisions against (nvestments 341 366 Amounts recevable from other related parties 2 10
593 666 Prepayments 294 239
Accrued income 155 152
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised In respect of the VAT 1 17
items above because it 1s not probable that future taxable profits ~ Other 70 B8
will be available against which the Group can utiise the losses Current trade and other receivables 621 592
Non-current prepayments 7 13
AL 30 June 2012, a deferred tax asset of £14 milion (201 Non-current other recevables G -
£40 million) principally arising from UK losses in the Group, has Non-current trade and other recevables 17 13
Tatal trade and other receivables 538 605

not been recognmised These losses can only be offset against
taxable profits generated in the entities concerned There s
currently insufficient evidence to suppaort the recognition of a
deferred tax asset relating to these losses The UK trading losses
can be carried forward indefinitely !

At 30 June 2012 a deferred tax asset of £238 million (201

£260 millson) has not been recognised i respect of overseas
trading losses on the basis that it 1s not probable that these
temporary differences will be utiised These losses indude

£235 million (201 £258 million) with respect to the Group's
German holding company's former investment in KirchPayTV and
£3 milion (201 £2 million) with respect to The Cloud and Acetrax
subsidianies The Cloud and KirchPayTV overseas trading losses can
be carned forward indefinitely The Acetrax losses will expire over
the course of the next seven years

At 30 June 2012 adeferred tax asset of £329 million (201

£354 million} has not been recognised in respect of potential
capital losses related to the Group’s former investment n
KirchPayTV on the basis that utilisation of these temporary
differences 1s not probable At 30 June 2012, the Group also has
capitallosses with a tax value estimated to be in excess of £12
million (2011 £12 millton) including impairment of a football club and
other investments, which have not been recognised as a deferred
tax asset, on the basis that it 1s not probable that they will be
utiised The capital losses can be carned forward indefinitely
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Included within current trade and other recevables 1s mil 2011 nil)
which 1s due in more than one year

The ageing of the Group's net trade recewvables which are past
due but not iImpatred 1s as follows

2012 20m

Em £Em

Upto 30 days past due date 49 62
30 to 60 days past due date 1 1
60 to 120 days past due date 2 2
More than 120 days past due date - 2
52 67

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and
other recevables approxmates therr far values The Groupis
exposed to credit sk on its trade and other recenvables however
the Group does not have any significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over alarge number of counterparties
and customers Trade recervables principally compnse amounts
outstanding from subscrbers advertisers and other customers

Prowvisions for doubtful debts

2012 20Mm

Em £m

Balance at beginming of year 195 153
Amounts utilised (137 -
Income statement charge 3 42
Balance at end of year 89 195
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20 Trade and other payables

202 om

Em £m

Trade payables® 629 429
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 10 5
Amounts owed to other related parties 80 69
VAT 140 145
Accruals 620 654
Deferred income 291 286
Other s 87
Current trade and other payables 1855 1,675
Trade payables 9 12
Amounts owed to other related parties 8 5
Deferred income 6 7
Other 4 2
Non-current trade and other payables 7 26
Total trade and other payables 1.882 1,701

(1) included within trade payables are £226 millon (2011 £182 mufion) of US dollar-denominated payabies

The Directors constder that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their far values Trade payables pnncipally
comprise amounts ocutstanding for programming purchases and ongoing costs

21 Provisions

AL Provided Utilised At Prowmded Utilsed At
1 July dunng dunng 1Juby durng during 30 June
2010 the year the year 20m the year the year 2012
£m £m £m Em Em Em £m
Current habilities

Restructuring provision 7 - (7) - 6 - 6
Acquired and acquisition related provisions® 15 4 (8) n 4 - 15
Other provisions™ 5 5 - 10 18 6) 22
27 9 {15) i) 28 (6) 43

Non-current abilities
Cther provisionst® n 1 (3) 9 7 ) 12

() These provisions arose on the acquisttion of Amstrad which took place during the year ended 30 June 2008 The amounts remaining at 30 June 2012 primarily refate to
the settiement of outstanding claims

(1) Included m other provisions are amounts provided for onerous contracts for property leases mamntenance and legal disputes The timing of the cash flaws for onerous
property leases and marntenance are dependent on the terms of the remaining feases The trming of the cash flaws for fegal disputes cannot be reascnably deterrmined

() Inclucled withun non current other provisions are amounts prowded for onerous contracts for property feases and maintenance The tming of the cash flows are
dependent on the terms of the leases but are expected to continue up to June 2021
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22 Borrowings
2012 20m w
£m £m o
Current borrowings aQ
Obligations under finance leases® 8 8 8
Nen-current barrowings 2
US$750 millien of 5 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2015 500 490 <
£400 milhon of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 407 406 3
US$750 mitlion of 6 100% Guaranteed Notes repayabie in February 20187 495 476 2
US$582 B milien of © 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2018 420 383 g
£300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 20274 296 285 g
US$350 milion of 6.500% Guaranteed Nates repayable in October 20357 220 214 3
Obligations under finance leases™ 60 6l
2398 2,325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

22. Borrowings continued
(i) Guaranteed Notes

At 30 June 2012, the Group had n1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were 1ssued by the Company

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fied Floating
Em £m £m Frced Floating
US$750 million of 6 100% Guaranteed Nctes repayable in February 2018 387 290 97 6829% 6mLIBOR +1892%
US$582 8 million of 2.500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in
November 2018™ 389 260 129 7091% 6mLIBOR+5542%
£300 million of & 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable i May 2027 300 300 - 6 000% N/A
1076 B850 226

(3} Onilune 2012 the Group entered trito forword starting interest rate swaps to fix thenterest rotes on £260 mithon of the November 2018 notes from 15 May 2013 to
15 November 2018 The £260 milon, referred to as fixed in the tabie above, has one further rate reset in November 2012 before thrs fixed rate becomes effective

At 30 June 2012, the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were 1ssued by BSkyB Finance UK ple

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged interest Rates
Hedged
Valuer Fixed Floating
Em £m £m Fixed Floating
US$750 million of S 625% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2015 428 171 257 5427% 6mLIBOR +0698%
£400 million of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5750% 6mLlIBOR -0 229%
U5$350 milhon of 6 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 200 200 - 5826% NJA
1028 721 307

At 30 June 201, the Group had in 1ssue the following Guaranteed Notes, which were 1ssued by the Company

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
Em Em £m Fixed Floating
US$750 million of 6 100% Guaranteed Notes repayable in February 2018 387 230 o7 6829% 6mLIBOR +1892%
Us$582.8 million of 9.500% Guaranteed Motes repayable in November 2018 389 - 385 N/A  6m LIBOR + 5 542%
£300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 300 300 - 6000% N/A
1076 590 485

At 30 June 2011, the Group had 1n 1ssue the fallowing Guaranteed Notes, which were 1ssued by BSkyB Finance UK ple

Interest Rate Hedging Hedged Interest Rates
Hedged
Value* Fixed Floating
Em £m £m Fixed Floating
US$750 million of S 625% Guaranteed Motes repayable In October 20015 428 171 257 §427% 6m LUBOR +0698%
£400 milion of 5 750% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2017 400 350 50 5750% 6mLIBOR-0229%
US$350 million of 6 S00% Guaranteed Notes repayable in October 2035 200 200 - 5 B26% N/A
1028 72 307

*  Note. Hedged value is the finaf redemption value including any hedgmng

The Group has a Eure Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”} which provides the Group with a standardised documentation

platform for senior debt 1ssuance in the Eurobond markets The £300 milion of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes maturning in May 2027 have

been issued under the Programme, which allows 1ssuance of up to E1billon
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(1) Finance leases '
The mimimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows

2012 20m
Em £m
Within one year 8 8
Between one and two years B 8
Between two and three years a 5]
Between three and four years 8 8
Between four and five years 8 B8
After five years 153 161
193 201

Future finance charges on finance tease habilities {12%}) {132)
Present value of finance lease habilities 68 &9

The main obligations under finance leases are In relation to

(=) finance arrangements in connection with the broadband network infrastructure During the year repayments of £7 million
(2011 £7 million) were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated against the capital
outstanding The lease bears interest at a rate of 111% and expires in November 2039

(b finance arrangements in connection with the contact centre in Dunfermline Duning the year, repayments of £E1million
(2011 £1mithon) were made against the lease A proportion of these payments have been allocated aganst the capital amount
outstanding The lease bears interest at a rate of 8 5% and expires in September 2020

(ni) Revolving Credit Facility
The Group has a £743 million RCF with a matunity date of 31 October 2016 syndicated across 10 counterparty banks each with a
minimum credit rating of “Baal’ or equivalent from Standard & Poors At 30 June 2012 the RCF was undrawn (2011 undrawn)

The Group 1s subject to two financial covenants under the RCF, a maximum leverage ratio and a mimmum interest cover ratio which are
tested at the end of each six monthly period The key financial covenants are the ratio of Net Debt to EBITDA (as defined in the loan
agreements) and EBITDA to Net Interest Payable (as defined in the loan agreements) Net Debt to EBITDA must be no more than 3 001
and EBITDA to Net Interest Payable must be at least 3 501 The Group was in comphiance with these covenants for all periods
presented

(iv) Guarantees

The following guarantees are in place relating to the Group’s borrowings (2) British Sky Broadcasting Limited, Sky Subscnbers

Services Limited, BSkyB Finance UK plc and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joint and several guarantees in relation to the
Company's £743 milion RCF and the outstanding Guaranteed Notes issued by the Company (b) the Company British Sky Broadcasting
Limited Sky Subscribers Services imited and Sky In-Home Service Limited have given joirt and several guarantees in relation to the
outstanding Guaranteed Notes 1ssued by BSkyB Finance UK plc
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CONSOLIDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

23 Denvatives and other financial Instruments
Set out below are the dervative financial Instruments entered nto by the Group to manage its interest rate and foreign exchange nsks

2012 201
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Fair Value Notonal Fair value Notional Fair Value Notwonal Fair Value Notonal

£m £m £m £Em Em £m Em £m
Fair value hedges .
Interest rate swaps 141 833 - - 95 B12 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-curency swaps 186 661 - - 133 661 - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 28 880 3 223 8 442 (28) 783
Currency options {collars) 2 13 - 13 4 28 - 28
Denvatives not in a formal hedge relationship
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 25 M 127 2 67 - 9
Cross-currency swaps 57 353 (28) 390 44 353 [Cly)) 390
Interest rate swaps - 140 - 120 - - - -
TJotal 414 2,905 {32) 873 286 2363 {68) 1,210

The maturity of the dervative financial Instruments is as follows

2072 20m

Assat Liabstty Asset Liabiity

£m £m £m £m
In one year or less 23 (2) 9 20
Betwean one and two years 6 Q)] 4 6)
Between two and five years m M B? {2
In more than five years 284 {28) 186 (40)
Total 414 (32) 286 (68)

Included within the fatr value of forward foreign exchange contracts are a number of US dollar-dencominated forward foreign exchange
contracts which the Group has taken out with counterparty banks on behalf of its joint venture AETN UK On the same dates as these
forward contracts were entered into the Group entered into equal and opposite forward contracts with AETN UK As a result the net
fair value of these contracts to the Group was nil (2011 nil) The gross sterling notional value of these forward contracts at 30 June
2012 was £2 milion (2011 £2 million)

The fair value of the Group's debt-related dervative portfolio at 30 June 2012 was a £356 milllon net asset (2011 net asset of £232
milkon) with net notional principal amounts totaling £1,454 million (2011 €1454 milion) This compnsed net assets of £186 mdlion
designated as cash flow hedges (201 net assets of £133 million), net assets of £141 million designated as farr value hedges 20N net
assets of £95 millon) and net assets of £29 milion not designated in a formal hedge refationship (2011 net assets of £4 millior)

At 30 June 2012, the carrying value of financial assets that were, upon intial recognition designated as financial assets at farr value
through profit or loss was mil (2011 nul)

Hedge accounting classification and impact

The Group has designated its interest rate swaps as fair value hedges of interest rate risk representing 37% (2011 37%) of the Group's
debt portfolic Movements in the fair value of the hedged items are taken to the Income statement and are offset by movementsin
the far value of the hedging instruments to the extent that hedge accounting 1s achieved

The Group has designated its fixed rate cross-currency swaps as cash flow hedges of 34% (20M 34%) of the Group's debt portfolio

As such the effective portion of the gamn or loss on these contracts is reported as a separate component of the hedging reserve, and
15 then reclassified to the iIncome statement in the same periods that the forecast transactions affect the income statement. Duning
the current year, gains of £22 million were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to finance costs in the income statement to
offset the currency translation movements in the undertying hedged debt (2011 losses of £54 million)

The Group designates its forward foregn exchange contracts and the intnnsic element of options (collars) as cash flow hedges of forecast
foreign currency sales and purchases Gains or losses are released from the hedging reserve and recyded to the income statement in
the same period as the hedged item 1s recognised If forecast transactions are no longer expected to ocour, any amounts included in the
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hedging reserve related to that forecast transaction would be recogrused directly in the mcome statement, Dunng the current year gains
of £3 millon were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to operating expense in the income statement (2011 gains of £2 million).
Gains of £5 million were removed from the hedging reserve and credited to revenue in the income statement (2011 gains of £11 million).

Hedge effectiveness testing 1s performed quarterly using the dollar-offset approach. The actual movement in the hedging items

15 compared with the movement in the valuation of the hypothetically perfect hedge of the underlying nsk at inception and any
ineffectiveness 1s recognised directly In the income statement. Ineffectiveness of £1 million was recognised in the income statement
dunng the current year (2011 £3 million)

A hedge relationship 1s deemed to be effective If the ratio of changes in valuation of the underlying hedged item and the hedging
instrumerit 1s within the range of 80% to 125% Any relationship which has a ratio outside this range Is deemed to be ineffective
atwhich point hedge accounting 1s suspended Dunng the year ended 30 June 2012 there were no instances inwhich the hedge
relationship was not highly effective (2011 no instances).

Fimancial instruments

(a) Carrying value and fair value

The accounting classification of each class of the Group s financial assets and financial habilities, together with their farr values,
1s as follows

Held to Dervatives  Derwvatives in Total
maturity  Available- deemed held hedging Loans and Other carrying Total fair
mvestments for-sale for trading relationships  recevables labilities value value
£m Em £m £m £m Em £m £m
At 30 June 2012
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (2338) (2,338) (2674)
Dervative financial Instruments - - 28 354 - - 382 382
Trade and other payables - - - - - 1,378) (1378) (1378)
Provisions - - - - - (12) {12y (12)
Obligations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - (68) (68) (68)
Avalable-for-sale investments - 228 - - - - 228 228
Trade and other receivables - - - - 278 - 278 278
Short-term deposits 70 - - - - - 710 o
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 464 - 464 464
At 30 June 201
Quoted bond debt - - - - - (2264) (2264) {2.500)
Dervative financial Instruments - - 6 212 - - 218 218
Trade and other payables - - - - - {1189) (1189) (1189)
Prowvisions - - - - - (15) (] (15)
Obligations under finance leases
and other borrowings - - - - - (1)) (69) [
Avallable-for-sale investments - 215 - - - - 215 215
Trade and cther receivables - - - - 332 - 332 332
Short-term deposits - 430 - - - - - 430 430
Cash and cash equivalents 150 - - - 7n = =74 921

The fair values of inancial assets and financial habilities are determined as follows

« The fair value of financial assets and financial habilities with standard terms and conditions and which are traded on active hiquid
markets 1s determined with reference to quoted market prices

«  The fair value of other financial assets and finanaial abilities (excluding dervative instruments) 1s determined 1n accordance
with generally accepted pncing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments,

«  Foresgn currency forward contracts and options are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yreld curves derived from
quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts

«  |nterest rate and cross-currency swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based
on the applicable yield curves derved from quoted interest rates, and
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CONSOQLIDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

23 Denvatives and other financial iInstruments continued

= The farr value of obligations under finance leases and other borrowings 1s estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net
present value. The far value of short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents is equivalent to carrying value due to the
short-term nature of these instruments

The differences between carrying values and fair values reffect unrealised gains or losses inherent in the financial instruments based
onvaluations as at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 201 The volatile nature of the markets means that values at any subsequent date could
be significantly different from the values reported above

Cash and cash equivalents classified as held to maturity investments comprise money market deposits which have maturity dates of
less than three months from inception Money market deposits enhanced return investmenits and trni-party repurchase agreements
which have matunty greater than three months from inception are dassified as short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents classified as loans and receivables mainly comprise investments n AAA rated money market funds which
can be withdrawn without notice

(b) Fair value hierarchy
The following table categorises the Group's financial instruments which are held at fair value into 1 of 3 fevels to reflect the degree to
which observable inputs are used in determining therr fair values

Fair value Levell Level2 Level 3
Em Em £m Em
AL 30 June 2012
Assets measured at far value
Available-for-sale financal Instruments
TV investment 223 223 - -
Otherinvestments at cost 5 - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss
Interest rate swaps 141 - 141 -
Cross-curTency swaps 243 - 243 -
Forward fareign exchange and option contracts 30 - 30 -
Total 642 223 414 5
Liabiities measured at fair value
Financial habilities at fair value through profit orloss
Cross-currency swaps (28) - (28) -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts (4) - [E)) -
Total (32) - (32) -
At 30 June 201
Assets measured at farr value
Avallable-for-sale financial nstruments
IV irvestment 215 215 - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest rate swaps 95 - 95 -
Cross-currency swaps 77 - 177 -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts 4 - 14 -
Total sM 215 286 -
Liabilities measured at farr value
Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss
Cross-currency swaps 40) - (40) -
Forward foreign exchange and option contracts (28) - (28) -
Total (68) - {68) -

4
Levell

Fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities

Level 2
Fair values measured using nputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or hability erither
directly or indirectly

Level 3
Fair values measured using inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data
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24 Financial nsk management

Group Treasury actnaty

The Group's Treasury functions responsible for raising finance
for the Group s operations, together with associated liquidity
management and management of foreign exchange, interest
rate and credit nsks Treasury operations are conducted within
a framework of policies and guidelines authonsed and reviewed
by both the Audit Committee and the Board, which receve
regular updates of Treasury actvity Denvative Instruments are
transacted for nsk management purposes only It s the Groups
policy that all hedging s to cover known risks and no speculative
trading is undertaken Regular and frequent reporting to
management 1s required for all transactions and exposures, and
the internal control emvironment 1s subject to periodic review by
the Group’s internal audit team

The Group's principal market risks are exposures to changes in
interest rates and foreign exchange rates, which anse both from
the Group s sources of finance and 1ts operations Following
evaluation of those market risks, the Group selectively enters
into dervative financial Instruments to manage these exposures
The principal instruments currently used are interest rate swaps
to hedge Interest rate nsks, and cross-currency swaps, forward
foreign exchange contracts and currency options (collars) to
hedge transactional and translational currency exposures

Interest rate nisk

The Group has financial exposures to both UK and US interest
rates, ansing primarily from the Group’s long-term bonds and
other borrowings The Group's hedging policy requires that
between 50% and 75% of borrowings are held at fixed rates This
1s achieved by 1ssuing fixed rate bonds and then using interest.
rate swaps to adjust the balance between fixed and floating rate
debt. The Group s bank debt 15 at floating rates, and, when drawn
means that the mix of fixed and floating rate debt fluctuates
and 1s therefore managed to ensure compliance with the Group's
hedging policy At 30 June 2012 75% of borrowings were held at
fixed rates after hedging (2011 62%)

‘The Group uses denvatives to convert all of its US doliar-
denominated debt and associated interest rate obligations

to pounds stering (see section on foreign exchange nisk for
further detail) At 30 June 2012, the Group had no net US dollar
denominated interest rate exposure on its borrowings

The Group designates Its interest rate swaps as far value hedges
of interest rate risk, Movements in the farr value of the hedged
exposure are taken to the income statement and are offset

by movements in the fair value of the hedging instruments

which are also taken to the iIncome statement. Any hedge
ineffectveness is recognised directly in the income statement.

In the year ended 30 June 2012 this amounted to £1 milhion

(20M £3 million).

At 30 June 2012 and 30 June 20N, the Group s annual finance
costs would be unaffected by any change to the Group s credit
rating in either direction

Interest rate sensitiity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based

on the exposure to interest rates for both dervatives and
non-derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date
For floating rate habilities the analysis I1s prepared assuming
the amount of hability outstanding at the balance sheet date1s
outstanding for the whole year

For each one hundred basis point nse or fall in interest rates at
30 June 2012 and If all other vanables were held constant

«  The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2012 would
increase or decrease by £4 milkon (201 profit for the year
would increase or decrease by £6 million) The year onvyear
decrease 1s driven by a decrease in the cash balance held

«  Other equity reserves would decrease or increase by
£14 milhon (2011 decrease or increase by £17 million) ansing
from movements in cash flow hedges

A one hundred basts point nse or fall in interest rates represents
a large but reafistic movemnent which can easily be multiphed to
give sensitivities at different interest rates

The sensitnaty analyses provided are hypothetical only and
should be used with caution as the impacts provided are not
necessarily indicative of the actual impacts that would be
experienced because the Group's actual exposure to market
rates changes as the Groups portfolio of debt, cash and foreign
currency contracts changes In addition the effect of a change

w a particular market vanahble on fair values or cash flows 1s
calculated without considering interrelationships between the
various market rates or mitigating actions that would be taken by
the Group The changes invaluations are estimates of the mpact
of changes in market vanables and are not a prediction of future
events or antiapated gains or losses

Foreign exchange risk

A combination of cross-currency and interest rate swap
arrangements 1s used to convert the Group's US dollar
denominated debt and associated interest rate obligations

to pounds sterling, at fixed exchange rates At 30 June 2012,
the sphit of the Group's aggregate borrowings into their core
currencies was US dollar 67% and pounds sterling 33%

(201 US dollar 66% and pounds sterling 34%) At 30 June 2012,
100% of the Group's long-term borrowngs after the impact of
dervatives, are denominated in pounds sterling.

The Group's revenues and operating expenses are substantially
denominated in pounds sterling A small proportion of operating
expenses Is denominated in US dollars, while a small proportion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

24 Financial nsk management contmued

of revenues 1s denominated in Euros Inthe current year,
approximately 10% of operating expenses (£532 million) was
denominated in US dollars (2011 approximately 11% (£595 mullion))
and 5% of revenues was denominated in Eurocs (201 6%).

The US dollar expense relates mainly to the Group’s
programming contracts with US suppliers, together with US
dollar-denominated set-top box costs The Euro revenues are
primarily due to subscribers located in treland The Group’s
exposure to Euro-denominated revenue is offset to a certan
extent by Euro-denominated costs refated mainly to certain
transponder costs, the net position being a Euro surplus
(201 surplus)

The Group has some exposure to the European financial cnsis
although the Group s net euro cash flows are approximately 3%
of total group revenues and the Group s practice 1s to hold less
than £10 million on depeosit in euros Whilst some of the Groups
syndicate banks are headquartered in Europe, the Group does
not currently anticipate drawing the RCF To mitigate remaining
risks, counterparty credit and sovereign ratings are closely
monitored and no more than 10% of cash deposits are held
with a single bank counterparty (with the exception of overnight
deposits which are invested in a spread of AAA-rated

hguidity funds)

The Group hedges currency exposures on US dollar and
Euro-denominated highly probable cash flows by using forward
foreign exchange contracts and options (collars) purchased up
to five years ahead of the cash flow

It 1s the Group's policy that all anticipated foretgn currency
exposures are substantially hedged in advance of the year in
which they occur

At 30 June 2012 the Group had purchased forward foreign
exchange contracts and collars representing up te

+  Approxmately 85% of US dollar-denominated costs falling
due within one year (2011 90%), and approximately 80% of
US dollar-denominated costs falling due within five years
(201 approximately 80%) which are hedged via

¢ Qutstanding commitments to purchase in aggregate,
US$1,298 million (2011 US$1,456 million) at an average rate
of US$1 58 to £1 00 (201 US$H1 59 to £100)

» Collars relating to the purchase of a total of
US$20 million (201 US$45 million) In aggregate

*  Approximately 75% of net Euro-denominated exposures
relating to revenues and transponder costs falling due within
18 months (2011 approxmately 80%) which are hedged via
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+  Outstanding commitments to sell, in aggregate,
€400 million (2011 €405 million) at an average rate of €118
(20N €116)

¢ Outstanding commitments to purchase n aggregate
€88 million 201 €22 million) at an average rate of €122
20M €113)

No forward foreign exchange contracts or collars fall due beyond
five years (2011 none)

The Group designates the following as cash flow hedges for
hedge accounting purposes

» Forward foreign exchange contracts

« The intrinsic vatue of collars (all other fair value movements
are recognised directly in the income statement)

» Cross-currency swaps where interest on both legs is at a fixed
Interest rate

As such the effective portion of the gain or loss on these
contracts Is reported as a component of the hedging reserve
outside the income statement, and Is then reclassified to

the Income statement in the same penods that the forecast
transactions affect the income statement, Ineffectiveness of less
than £1 million was recogrused inthe income statement during
the year (2011 less than £1 milon)

During the year, the Group exchanged £3 million for US dollars
(2011 £55 milhon) and €12 million was exchanged for pounds
sterling 2011 €7 million) on currency spot markets

A combination of US dollar denominated interest rate and USD/GBP
cross-currency swaps 15 used to convert fixed dollar denominated
debt to floating sterling denominated debt The interest rate swaps
are designated as fair value hedges The associated cross-currency
swaps are not designated as hedging instrurnents for hedge
accounting purposes and as such, movements in their value are
recorded directly nthe income statement.

Foreign exchange sensitvity

The following analyses details the Group s sensitivity to
movements in pounds sterling against those currencies in

which it has significant transactions The sensitivity analysis
includes foreign currency denominated assets and habilities

at the balance sheet date and outstanding foreign currency
denominated financial Instruments and adjusts their translation
at. the period end for a 25% change in foreign currency rates
representing the maximum currency exposure reported to
management on a regular basis

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the US dollar
would have the effect of reducing profit by £27 million

(207 reducing profit by £29 milhon) of which losses of

£26 million refate to non-cash movements in the valuation of
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dervatives (2011 losses of £29 milllion) The same strengthening
would have an adverse impact on other equity of £185 million
(2011 adverse impact of £185 million)

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would
have the effect of increasing profit by £45 million

(201 increasing profit by £48 milhon) of which gains of

£44 million relate to non-cash movements in the valuation of
denvatives (2017 gains of £48 million) The same weakening
would have a beneficial Impact on other equity of £309 mithon
(201 beneficial impact of £309 million)

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling aganst the Euro

would have the effect of increasing profit by less than £1 million
(2011 increasing profit by £1 miflkon) None of this amount relates
to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same
strengthening would have a beneficial impact on other equity of
£52 milhon (2011 beneficial impact of £70 million).

A 25% weakening in pounds sterling agamst the Euro would have
the effect of reducing profit by less than £1 mithion (2011 reducing
profit by £2 milhon) None of this amount relates to non-cash
movements in the valuation of derivatives The same weakening
would have an adverse impact on other equity of £86 million
(201 adverse impact of £17 million),

The sensitivity analyses provided are hypothetical only and
should be used vath caution as the impacts provided are not
necessarity indicative of the actual impacts that would be
expenenced because the Group's actual exposure to market
rates 1s canstantly changing as the Group's portfolio of debt
cash and foreign currency contracts changes In addition the
effect of a change in a particular market varable on farr values
or cash flows Is calculated without considenng interrelationships
between the various market rates or mitigating actions that
would be taken by the Group The changes invaluations are
estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and are
not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses

Hedge accounting

The Interest rate and foreign exchange rate nisk sections above
outhne the Group's policies regarding use of dervative products
Further detail onvaluations and the impact of hedge accounting
durning the year are provided in note 23

Credit nsk

The Group 1s exposed to counterparty default nsk amounting to
invested cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits, and
the positive fair value of derivative financial assets held

This risk 1s deemed to be low Counterparty nisk forms a
central part of the Group s Treasury policy, which 1s monitored
and reported on regularly The Group manages credit nisk

by diversifying its exposures across a wide number of
counterparties, such that the maximum exposure to any

indrvidual counterparty was less than 18% of the total asset value
of Instruments at the end of the year Treasury policies enstire
that all transactions are only effected with strong relationship
banks and, at the date of signing, each carred aminimum credit
rating of “Baa2” or equivalent from Standard & Poor’s

The amount recognised in the income statement in respect of
credit nisk for dervatives deemed held for trading 1s nit 2011 nip

Credit nsk in our residential customer base 1s mitigated by billing
and collecting in advance for digital television subscriptions for
aver 99% of our residential customer base The Groups maximum
exposure to credit nsk on trade recewvables 1s the carrying
amounts as disclosed innote 19

Liquidity nsk

Qur prinaipal source of hguidity 1s cash generated from
operations combined with access to a £743 millon RCF which
expires in October 2016, with the right to request an extension of
either one or two further years At 30 June 2012 this faciiity was
undrawn (30 June 201 undrawn}

To ensure continuity of funding the Group’s policy 1s to ensure
that avadable funding matures over a period of years At

30 June 2012 58% (2011 59%) of the Group s total availlable
funding (including available undrawn amounts on our RCF) was
due to mature in more than five years

Full details of the Group s borrowings and undrawn facilities are
shown In note 22 other than trade and other payables, shown in
note 20, and provisions, shown in note 21
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued
24 Financial nsk management continued

The following table analyses the Group s non-derivative financial liabihties net settled denvative finanaial instruments and gross
settled financial Instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows These amounts may not
reconcile to the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet for borrowings derivative financial instruments, provisions and trade and

other payables
Between Between
Less than one and twoand More than
12menths twoyears fiveyears  five years
Em Em £m £m
At 30 June 2012
Non dernvative financal labilittes
Bonds - USD 167 107 760 1433
Bonds - GBP 4 41 123 903
Obhgauons under finance leases and other borrowings 8 8 24 153
Trade and other payables 1281 86 il -
Provisions 9 4 1 1
Net settled denvatives
Pinancial assets (32) (32) [¢1)] (28)
Gross settled denvatives
Qutflow 894 39 758 1255
Inflow (917) (397) (813) (1408)
Between Between
Less than one and twoand Morethan
12months twoyears fiveyears fiveyears
£m £m £m Em
At 30 June 201
Non derwvative financal habilities
Bonds - USD 104 104 766 1470
Bonds - GBP 41 41 123 933
Cbligations under finance leases and other borrowings 8 8 24 161
Trade and other payables 1 72 6 -
Provisions 8 6 2 2
Net settled dervatives
Financial assets 33 (33 @4 (48)
Gross settled derivatives
Qutflow B85S 417 824 13i3
Inflow (87T (410) {856} (1427}

Caprtal Risk Management

The Greup s objectives when managing capital are to endeavour to ensure that the Group has the ability to access capital markets
when necessary and to optimise hiquidity and operating flexibility through the arrangement of new debt while seeking to minimise
the cost of capital The Group monitors its iquidity requirements regularly and i1s satisfied that it has access to sufficient iquidity and
operating flexibility to meet its capital requrements

The Group manages its short and long-term caprtal structure by seeking to mantain leverage ratios consistent with along-term
mnvestment grade credit rating (BBB- or better from Standard & Poor's and Baa3 or better from Moody's) The Groups current ratings
are BBB+ (Standard & Poor's) and Baal (Moody's) The leverage ratios assessed by these rating agencies are those of Net Debt
EBITDA and Gross Debt EBITDA Net Debt is defined as total borrowings including the cash flows ansing under operating feases and
transponder prepayments, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding derivatives Gross Debt does not reduce total borrowings by the
inclusion of cash and cash equivalents

The Group Is also required to maintain a Net Debt EBITDA ratio below 3 00 1 under the terms of its RCF The RCF definition of Net Debt
does not require the inclusion of future operating lease or transponder cash flows

At 30 June 2012, the Net Debt EBITDA ratio as defined by the terms of the RCFwas 06 1201 06 1)
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25 Share capital

2012 20m
£m Em
Allotted, called-up and fully paid shares of S0p
1674 454 BB1 {2011 1752842599 837 B76
2012 201
Number of Numbser of
orchnary ordinary
shares shares
Allotted and fully paid during the year
Beginning of year 1752842599 1752842599
Shares repurchased and
subsequently cancelled {78 387718) -
End of year 1,674,454.881 1,752,842,599

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry equal
voting rights and no contractual nght to receive payment. Full
detaits of the Company’s share buy-back programme are provided
In note 26

Share option and conttngent share award schemes
The Company operates various eguity-settled share option
schemes (the “Schemes™) for certain employees

The number of newly 1ssued shares which may be allocated under
the Schemes on any day shall not, when aggregated with the
number of newly Issued shares which have been allocated m the
previous ten years under the Schemes and any cther employee
share scheme adopted by the Company, exceed such number

as represents five percent of the ordinary share capital of the
Company In issue Immediatety prior to that day In determining
thus kit no account shall be taken of any newly 1ssued shares
where the right to acquire the newly issued shares was released
lapsed cancelled or otherwise became incapable of exercise
Options and awards which will be satisfied by ESOP shares do not
fall wathin these headroom imits

The share awards outstanding can be summansed as follows

2012 20m

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary

shares shares

Executive Share Option Scheme options® 2630435 5583424
Sharesave Scheme gptionst 7238348 6554165
All Employee awards™ - 1168 200
Management LTIP awards™ 15018148 22326138
LTIP awards™ 6462723 8610930
Management Co-Investment LTIP awards! 1869416 1268 260
Co-Investment LTIP awards™ 1853013 1286906
35,172,083 46793023

(1) Executive Share Option Scheme options

All Executive Share Option Scheme options outstanding at
30 June 2012 and 30 tune 2011 have vested No options have
been granted under the scheme since 2004

Grants under the Executive Share Option Scheme were made on
an annual basts to selected employees with the exercise price of
options being equal to the Company’s share price on the date of
grant. For those options with performance conditions growth in
EPS had to exceed growth in the Retall Prices Index plus

3% per annum in order for awards to vest. Options vested on an
accelerated basis over a period of up to four years from the date
of grant. The contractual ife of all Executive Share Option Scheme
options s ten years

(1) Sharesave Scheme options

All Sharesave Scheme options outstanding at 30 June 2012 and
30 June 2011 have no performance criteria attached, other than
the requirement that the employee remains in employment with
the Group Options granted under the Sharesave Scheme must
be exercised within six months of the relevant award vesting date

The Sharesave Scheme s open to all employees Options are
normally exercisable after erther three or five years from the date
of grant The price at which options are offered 15 not less than
B80% of the middle-market price on the dealing day immediately
preceding the date of invitation It 1s the policy of the Group to
make an invitation to employees to participate in the scheme
following the announcement of the end of year results

() All Employee awards (20 Year Award Plan)

The All Employee awards had no performance critena attached
other than the requirement that the employee remained in
employment with the Group until the vesting date on 5 February
2012 The Company granted the All Employee award to all
permanent employees on S February 2009 Awards under the
scheme were granted In the form of a nd-priced option, and were
satisfied using market-purchased shares

{v) Management LTIP awards

All Management LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2012 and

30 June 2011 vest only if performance conditions are met. Awards
granted under the Management LTIP must be exercised within
five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the
Management LTIP Awards under this scheme murror the LTIP,
with the same performance conditions Awards exercised under
the Management LTIP can only be satisfied by the issue of
market-purchased shares

(V) LTIP awards

All LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 20T
vest only If performance conditions are met Awards granted
under the LTIP must be exercised within five years of the relevant
award vesting date

The Company operates the LTIP for Executive Durectors and
Senior Executrves Awards under the scheme are granted in
the form of a nil-priced option, and are satisfied using market-
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CONSOUDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

25 Share capital continued

purchased shares The awards vest in full or in part dependent
on the satisfaction of specified performance targets For awards
made n 2008 and 2009 (1e awards that vested in 2017), 30% of
the award vested dependent on TSR performance over a three
year performance period relative to the constituents of the
FTSE 100 at the time of grant, and the remaining 70% vested
dependent on performance aganst operational targets The TSR
performance targets are not applicable to awards made since
July 2010 but will be re-introduced for awards granted from July
2012 onwards

(v1) Management Co-Investment LTIP awards

All Management Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at
30 June 2012 and 30 June 201 vest only If performance
conditions are met Awards granted under the Management
Co-Investment LTIP must be exercised within five years of the
relevant award vesting date

The Company grants awards to selected employees under the
Management Co-lnvestment LTIP Awards under this scheme
rmirror the Co-Investment LTIP, with the same performance
conditions

vy Co-Investment LTIP awards

All Co-Investment LTIP awards outstanding at 30 June 2012 and
30 June 201 vest only If performance conditions are met Awards
granted under the Co-Investment LTIP must be exercised within
five years of the relevant award vesting date

The Company operates the Co-lnvestment LTIP award for
Executive Directors and Senior Executives Employees who
participate in the plan are granted a conditional award of shares
based on the amount they have invested 1n the Group The
investment will be matched up to a maximum of 15 shares for
every share Invested, subject to a three-year EPS performance
condiion

For the purposes of the disclosure below, the Sharesave Scheme
options and All Employee awards (“Sharesave Schemes”) and the
Management LTIP LTIP, Managemenit Co-Investment LTIP and
Co-Investment LTIP awards (“Semor Management Schemes™)
have been aggregated
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The movement in share awards outstanding 1s summansed in the following table

Senior Management
Executive Scheme Sharesave Schemes Schemes Total
Weighted Weghted Werghted Weaighted
average average average average
exercise exercise exarcise exercrse
price price price price
Number £ Number £ Number E Number 3
Qutstanding at 1 July 2010 13803846 744 7558 846 346 20645003 000 42007695 307
Granted dunng the year - - 2257055 565 14,317471 000 16574526 077
Exerased during the year (4287534) 639 (1094 690) 440 (315 398) 000 (5697622) 565
Forfeited dunng the year (383704) 735 (910357) 41 (814229) 000 (2108290) 3R
Expired during the year (3549)84) 995 (88 489) 435 (340613) 000 (3978286) 898
Qutstanding at 30 June 2011 5583424 665 7,722,365 388 33492234 Q00 456798023 143
Granted during the year - - 3533830 508 10660219 000 14194049 126
Exerased dunng the year (639882) 559 (2995574) 243 (17066 707) 000 (20702163) 052
Forfeited durning the year (69147) 586 (985,985) 470  (1,782446) 000  (2837578) 178
Expired duning the year (2243,960) 793 (36288) 525 - - (2280248) 789
Qutstanding at 30 June 2012 2630435 584 7238348 494 25303300 000 35172,083 145

The weighted average market price of the Group s shares at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the year was
£701(201 E785) For those exercised under the Executive Scheme it was £712 (201 £799) for thase exercised under the Sharesave
Schemes it was £6 89 (201 £754) and for those exerased under the Senior Management Schemes itwas £703 (201 £708)

The middle-market closing price of the Company’s shares at 29 June 2012 was £6 97 (1 July 2011 £849)

The following table summarises information about share awards outstanding at 30 June 2012

Senior Management

Executhve Scheme Sharesave Schemes Schemes Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
remaining remaining remaining remairing
contractual contractual contractual contractual
lfe life life life
Range of exerase prees Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£E0OCG-£100 - - - - 25303300 60 25303300 60
E300-£400 - - 578155 16 - - 578155 16
£400-£500 - - 1597612 16 - - 1597612 16
£500-£600 1318767 16 5062581 36 - - 6381348 32
EG 0D -E7QD 1316170 1" - - - - 1310170 n
£700-~£800 1498 17 - - - - 1498 17
2630435 14 7.238,348 30 25303300 60 35172083 50
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CONSOUDATED FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

25 Share capital continued
The following table summanses information about share awards outstanding at 30 June 20M

Senior Management
Executive Scheme Sharesave Schemes Schemes Total
Weghted Weghted Weighted Weghted
average average average average
remainng remamning remaining remaining
contractual contractual contractual contractual
hfe life Iife \ife
Range of exercrse prices Number Years Number Years Number Years Number Years
£000-£100 - - 1168200 06 33492234 19 34660434 19
£300-€400 - - 2348795 15 - -~ 2348795 15
£400-€E500 - - 1826019 24 - - 1926 19 24
E500-£600 1802435 25 227935 38 - - 4081786 32
£600-£700 1537964 21 - - - - 1537964 21
E700-E800 2243025 03 - - - - 2243025 03
5,583,424 15 7722365 23 33,492,234 19 46798023 20

The range of exercise prices of the awards outstanding at 30 June 2012 was hetween nil and £716 201 nil and £794)

For those awards outstanding under the Executive Scheme it was between £5 03 and £716 (2011 £503 and £794), for those
outstanding under the Sharesave Schemes it was between £3 72 and £5 65 (201 nil and £5 65) and for all awards outstanding under
the Semor Management Schemes the exercise price was nil (201 nil)

The following table summanses addiional information about the awards exercisable at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 201

2012 20Mm

Average Average

remaining remawing
. cortractual Weighted contractual weighted
Options Iife of average Options Ife of average
exercisable  exercrsable exercise  exertsable  exercrsable exercise
at 30 June options price at 30 June options price
Executive Scheme 2630435 14 584 5583424 15 665
Sharesave Schemes 160403 o1 380 72812 01 524
Seniar Management Schemes 1258950 a1 [o]ee} - - -
4 049,788 22 395 5656236 15 664

Information for awards granted dunng the year

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share options granted duning the year, as estimated at the date of grant, was £5 39
(2011 £595) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model except for grants of nil-priced options, which
were treated as the award of a free share The fair value of nil-priced options granted during the year was measured on the basts of
the market-price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, discounted for expected dwvidends which would not be receved over
the vesting peniod of the options

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histonical volatility of the Company s share price, over a period equal to the
expected life of the options Expected life was based on the contractual life of the awards and adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

(1) Sharesave Schemes
The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted dunng the year under the Sharesave Schemes, as estimated
at the date of grant, was £187 (2011 £191) This was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used in calculating these far values

2012 om
Share price £688 £709
Exeraise price £508 E565
Expected volatility 286% 287%
Expected ife 45years 46years
Expected dwvidends 34% 27%
Risk-free interest rate 10% 15%
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{n) Senior Management Schemes

The weighted average fair value of equity-settled share awards granted dunng the year under the Senior Management Schemes, as
estimated at the date of grant was £6 56 (201 £659) The fair value of awards granted as nil-pnced options were treated as the
award of a free share For all other awards fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes share option pricing model

The following weighted average assumptions were used In calculating these farr values

2012 20m

Share price E704 E/M
Exercisa price EOQO £000
Expected life 21years 30vyears
Expected dwidends 33% 25%

26 Shareholders’ equity

2012 201

Em £m

Share capital 837 875
Share precnium 1437 1437
ESOP reserve (12) 107
Hedging reserve 68 14
Avallable-for-sale reserve 165 157
Other reserves 399 358
Retaned earnings (1850) (1700
944 1,035

Share premium and special reserve

On10 December 2003 the High Court approved a reduction in the Company s share premium account of £1,20 million, as approved
by the Company’s shareholders at the AGM held on 14 November 2003 This amount was equal to the Company-only profit and loss
account reserve deficrt at 30 June 2003 As part of the application, the Company’s balance sheet at 30 September 2003 was required
to be presented At that date, the defiait on the Company-only profit and loss account reserve had reduced by £14 million since

30 June 2003 to £1,106 million As a condition of the reduction the reduction in the share premium account of £1120 milhon was
permitted to be offset aganst the profit and loss account reserve by the amount of the deficit at 30 September 2003 The excess of
£14 miliion was credited to a special reserve, which 1s included in other reserves, and, under the terms of the reduction will remain
undistributable until all the creditors of the Company and 1ts guarantors (as at 10 December 2003) are paid

Merger reserve

The merger reserve which 1s included in other reserves, represents amounts deducted from equity of £222 mullion (2011 £222 mflion)
The merger reserve was created as a resuit of the purchase by the Group of interests in two entities SIGwas purchased on

12 July 2000, where consideration was paid by the 1ssue of equity shares in the Group BiB was purchased between 28 June 2001

and 11 November 2002, where consideration was paid by the issue of equity shares in the Group

The merger reserve was created in accordance with the merger relief provisions under section 131 of the Companies Act 1985

(as amended) and section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the accounting for business combinations involving the issue

of shares at a premium Merger relief provided relief from the requirement to create a share premium account in a parent company s
balance sheet In preparing consclidated financial statements the amount by which the fair vatue of the shares issued exceeded their
nominal value was recorded within a merger reserve on consolidation rather than in a share premium account. This merger reserve was
retained upon transition to IFRS as allowed under UK law

Purchase of own equity shares for cancellation
On 29 November 2011, the Company’s shareholders approved a resolution ("the November 2011 resolution™) at the AGM for the
Company to return £750 milkon of caprtal to shareholders via a share buy-back programme

The Company has entered into an agreement with News Corporation under which, following any market purchases of shares by the
Company News Corporation will sell to the Company sufficient shares to maintain its percentage shareholding at the same level as
applied prior to those market purchases The price payable to News Corporation is the price payable by the Compa'ny n respect of the
relevant market purchases The effect of the agreement is to prowvide that there will be no change in News Corporation s economic or
voting Interests in the Company as a result of the share buy-back programme
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QONSOUDATED FANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

26 Shareholders’ equity contimnued

During the year the Company purchased and subsequently cancelled, 78387718 ordinary shares at an average price of £6 92 per
share with a nominal value of £39 million, for a total consideration of £546 milllon Consideration included stamp duty and commission
of E3milhkon This represents 4% of called-up share capital at the beginning of the penod Of these purchases, the Company
purchased and subseguently cancelied 30679157 ordinary shares from News Corporation at an average price of £6 92 per share, with
anominal value of €15 million, for a consideration of £213 milhion Consideration included stamp duty of £1million

The following tabte provides information about purchases of equity shares by the company including purchases by the Groups ESOP,
during the fiscal year

Capital

Total capital returned authonsed to be

Average as partof the returned under

Total number price paid Novernber 2071 the November 201

of shares per share resolution resolution

Period purchased® £ Em® £m
July - - - -
August 12044939 Al - -
September - - - -
October - - - -
November 11409N 752 9 741
Decernber 10575756 736 78 663
January - - - 663
February 21943653 692 143 520
March 11087157 690 77 443
Aprd 1208038 663 74 369
May 13883,329 693 96 273
June 19666 754 672 66 207
Total for the year ended 30 June 2012 101,550,617 6593 543 207

(1) All share purchases are included in the month of settlement

ESOP reserve
The cost of the Company’s ordinary shares held by the Group's ESOP 15 treated as a deduction i arniving at total shareholders equity
The movement in the ESOP reserve was as fallows

HNurnber of Average

ordinary price pad
shares per share £m
AL July 2010 8,515,344 £556 47

Share options exerased dunng the year (5697622) £537 (G0

Shares purchased by the ESOP dunng the year 11014 887 E821 S0
At 30 June 201 13,832,609 E775 107
Share options exercised dunng the year (20702)63) £755 (156)
Shares purchased by the ESOP during the year 23162899 £693 161
At 30 June 2012 16,293 345 E6 B5 112

Hedging reserve

Changes in the far values of dervatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are inttially recognised in the hedging reserve
and subsequently recogrised in the income statement when the related hedged items are recognised in the Income statement

fn addition, deferred taxation relating to these derivatives is also intially recognised tn the hedging reserve prior to transfer to the
income statement,

Available-for-sale reserve
Avalable-for-sale Investments are carned at fair value where this can be reliably measured, with movements in the fair value recognised
directly in the avalable-for-sale reserve At 30 June 2012, the Group's avarlable-for-sale reserve was £165 million (2011 £157 million)
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Other reserves

The Group's other reserves include a capital redemptron reserve, a merger reserve, a foreign currency translation reserve and a special
reserve The capital redemption reserve was £134 million as at 30 June 2012 (2011 £95 million) The merger reserve was £222 million

as at 30 June 2012 (20T £222 million) The special reserve was £14 milhon as at 30 June 2012 (2011 £14 mullion) The foreign currency
translation reserve was £29 million as at 30 June 2012 (201 £27 million).

27 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of profit before taxation from continuing operations to cash generated from contimuing operations

2012 0m
£m Em
Profit before taxation 1189 1.014
Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 179 173
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 165 159
Profit on disposa!l of avallable-for-sale investment - ()]
Share-based payment expense 66 69
Net finance costs 93 102
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 39 (34)
1,653 1474 o
Increase in trade and other recenvables 32 (59) 2
(Increase) decrease in Inventories (8n 6 ja
tncrease in trade and other payables 175 158 '.‘:3
Increase (decrease} 10 provisions 25 {8 2
Decrease In denvative financial instruments (3 (2) i
Cash generated from continuing operations 1737 1,569
28 Contracted commitments, contingencies and guarantees
a) Future minimum expenditure contracted for but not recognised in the financial statements
Year Year Year Year Year
ending ending ending ending ending Total at Total at -
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June Afters 30 June 30 June 5
2013 2014 2015 2016 207 years 2012 20M %
£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m o
Telewision programme nghts™ 1217 1266 1227 1015 221 156 5102 2922 %
Set-top boxes and related equipment 182 - - - - - 182 282 T
Third party payments™ 6% 44 4 38 18 - 210 73 g
Transponder capacity™ 87 77 78 74 70 297 683 838 3
Property, plant and equipment 7 - - - - - 27 47 g
Intangible assets®™ 37 2 19 20 20 26 144 142 @
Smartcards™ 43 43 44 45 45 55 276 360
Other 181 71 40 13 =] 23 337 227
1843 1,523 1,449 1,205 383 558 6,961 4,8

Foreign currency commitments are translated to pounds sterling at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date

(1) At 30 June 2012, the Group had mimmum teleision programming rights commitments of £5 102 mrihon (2011 £2,922 mitlion) of which £376 nulhon (2011 £344 million)
related to commitments poyable in US dollars for periods of up te six years (2011 seven years)
Assuming that movie subscrber numbers remain unchanged from current levels an additional £420 muhon (US$652 miflion) of commitments (2011 £455 million { Us$735
mudhon)) would atso be payable in US doliars relating to prce escalator clauses The pound steriing television programme nghts commitments inchide similar price
escalation clouses that would result in additional commutments of £9 miflon (201 £18 milhorif subscnber numbers were to remain at current levels

() The third party payment commitments are in respect of distrbution agreements for the televiston channels owned and broadcast by third parties retarled by the Group
to retarl and commercial subscribers (“Sky Distrbuted Channelsy and are for periods of up to five years (2011 five years) The extent of the commitment is largely
dependent upon the number of retail subscribers to the refevant Sky Distnbuted Channels and in certain cases upon inflationary increases if both the retad subscnber
fevels to these chennels and the rate payable for each Sky Distributed Channel were to remairt at curtent fevels subject to infletionary increases the additional .
commutment would be £463 mithion (2011 £525 miliion)

@y Transponder capacity commitments arein respect of the Astra Eutelsat and Telenor Satellite Broadcasting AS satelites that the Group uses for digitel transmissions to
both retai subscnbers and cable operators The commitments are for penods of up to thirteenyears (2011 fourteen years) |

(n) The Group has a contractual agreement with NDS a related party for the provisron of smartcards Smartcards under devefopment are nciuded within intongible assets
The amount s included above are the expected ongoing smartcard costs based on forecast customer levels

WO DALIO U JBPI0YE iDUS
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CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

28 Contracted commitments, contingencies and guarantees continued
b} Contingencies and guarantees

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to prowde additional funding to severa! of their investments in imited and unlimited

companies and partnerships, in accordance with funding agreements Payment of this addittonal funding would be required if

requested by the mvestees in accordance with the funding agreements The maximum potential amount of future payments which
may be required to be made by the subsidiaries of the Company to their nvestments in both imited and unlimited comparues and

partnerships under the undertakings and additional funding agreements, 1s £30 million (2011 £38 mitlion)
The Group has guarantees in place relating to the Groups borrowings see note 22

29 Operating lease commitments
The minimum lease rentals to be paid under non-c.,ancellable operating leases at 30 June are as follows

2012 20m

£m Em

Within one year 49 45
Between one and two years 39 33
Between two and three years 32 24
Between three and four years 27 77
Between four and five years 20 14
After five years 59 54
226 187

The majonty of operating leases relate to property The rents payable under these leases are subject to renegotiation at thevarious

intervals specified in the leases

The minimum sub-lease rentals to be received under non-cancellable operating sub-leases at 30 June are as follows

2012 20n

£m £m

Within cne year & 5
Between one and two years 3 5
Between two and three years 2 3
Between three and four years 2 2
Between four and five years 2 2
After five years 6, 8
21 25

Sub-lease rentals primarily relate to property leases
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Transactions with related parties and major
shareholders

a) Entities with joint control or significant influence

The Group conducts business transactions with companies that
are part of the News Corporation group ("News Corperation®),

a mayor shareholder

2012 20m
Em Em
Supply of goods or services by the Greup 79 * 49
Purchases of goods or services by the Group (199 (216)
Amounts owed by News Corporation to
the Group 12 10
Amocunts owed to News Corporation by
the Group (98) (74)

At 30 June 2012 the Group had expenditure commitments of
£462 milion (2011 £567 million) with News Corporation
companies of which £58 million (2011 £76 milhon) related to
minimum television programming rights commitments and
£404 million (201 £491 million) related to expected ongoing
smartcard costs

Goods and services supplied to News Corporation

During the year, the Group supphed set-top boxes, programming,
arrtime transmission, marketing, consultancy services, customer
relationship management senvices and a licence to use the Sky
brand to News Corporation

Purchases of goods and services and certain other relationships
with News Corporation

During the year, the Group purchased programming digital
equipment, smartcards and encryption services, set-top box
technologses, advertising and IT services from News Corporation
companies

News Corporation has entered into an agreement with the Group
pursuant to which it has been agreed that, for solong as News
Corporation directly or indirectly holds an interest of 30% or more
in the Group News Corporation will not engage inthe business of
satellite broadcasting inthe UK or lreland .

0On13 July 2011 News Corporation announced that (t no longer
intended to make an offer for the entire 1ssued and to be 1ssued
share capital of the Company not already owned by News
Corporation A break fee of £39 million was recewved dunng the
year which exceeded all of the Group s direct costs associated
with the proposal

Share buy-back programme

During the year, the Company purchased, and subsequently
cancelled, 30,679,157 ordinary shares held by News Corporation
as part of its share buy-back programme For further detalls, see
note 26

b) Joint ventures and associates

Transactions between the Group and its subsidianes which are
related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and
Its Jgint ventures and associates are disciosed below

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries joint
ventures and associates are disclosed 1n the Company’s separate
financial statements

2012 20m
£m Em
Supply of services by the Group 24 23
Purchases of goods or services by the Group &7) (57
Amounts owed by joint ventures and
associates to the Group 15 23
Amounts owed to joint ventures and
associates by the Group (19} (5)

Services supplied are prnimarily the provision of transponder
capacity marketing airtime sales and support services
Purchases represent fees payable for channel carriage Amounts
owed by joint ventures and associates include £7 million

(201 £16 million) relating to loan funding These loans bear
Interest at rates of six month LIBOR plus 1 5% and one month and
six month LIBOR plus 1% The maxmum amount of loan funding
outstanding in total from jomnt ventures and associates during
the year was £16 million (2011 £17 million)

The Group took out a number of forward exchange contracts
with counterparty banks during the year on behalf of the

joint ventures AETN UK and Sky News Arabia FZ - LLC Onthe
same dates as these forward contracts were entered into the
Group entered into equal and opposite contracts with the joint
ventures in respect of these forward contracts

Consequently, the Group was not exposed to any of the net gains
or losses on these forward contracts The face value of forward
exchange contracts with AETN UK that had not matured as at

30 June 2012 was £2 milhion (2011 £2 million)

During the year US$3 mulion (201 US$4 million) was paid to the
Jjoint ventures upon maturity of forward exchange contracts and
Us$14 millkon (2011 less than US$1 million) was received from joint
ventures upon matunity of forward exchange contracts

During the year £2 million (201 £3 millior) was receved from the

Jjoint ventures upon maturity of forward exchange contracts, and

E7 milien 2011 less than £1 million) was paid to the joint ventures
upon maturity of forward exchange contracts

During the year, no euro amounts were received from the joint
ventures upon maturity of forward exchange contracts (201

€1 million) and €2 milhton (2011 nifywas paid to the joint ventures
upon matunity of forward exchange contracts
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

30 Transactions with related parties and major
shareholders contimnued

At 30 June 2012 the Group had minimum expenditure
commitments of £1 millon (2011 £3 million) with its joint ventures
and associates

¢) Cther transactions with related parties

A close family member of one Director of the Company runs Freud
Entertainment Limited (“Freud™), which has provided external
support to the press and publicity activities of the Group During
the year the Group Incurred expenditure amounting to

£1million (2011 £2 milior) with Freud At 30 June 2012 there was
less than £1 million (2011 £1 million) due to Freud

During the prior year, a dose family member of one Director of
the Company who served during the prior year had a controling
interest in Shine in which the Group also had an equity
shareholding, until Shine was acquired by News Corporation on
5 April 201 (see note 5) Shine continues to be a related party of
the Group and transactions with Shine are included within the
balances disclosed in note 30a

In addition to the foregoing the Group has engaged in a number
of transactions with companies of which some of the Company’s
Directors are also directors These do not meet the definition of
Refated Party Transactions

d) Key management

The Group has a related party relationship with the Directors of
the Group At 30 June 2012 there were 14 (201 14) members of
key management all of whom were Directers of the Company Key
management compensation s disclosed in note 7b

31 Events after the reporting penod

On 25 July 2012 the Board agreed to seek the necessary
approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to
shareholders via a share buy-back programme Shareholder
approvals will be sought at the Company s AGM on 1 November
2012 The Company has entered inte an agreement with News
Corporation under which, following any market purchases

of shares by the Company, News Corporation will sell to

the Company sufficient shares to maintain its percentage
shareholding at the same level as applied prior to those market
purchases The price payable to News Corporation will be the
price payable by the Company in respect of the relevant market
purchases The agreement Is conditional on the appropriate
shareholder approvals being granted The effect of the
agreement Is to provide that there will be no change in News
Corporation s ecoOnomic or voting Interests in the Company as a
result of the share buy-back programme

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 Group investments
The significant Investments of the Company which principally affect the consolidated results and total assets of the Group are
as follows
Name Country of Descnption and proportion of
ingorporation shares held (%) Principal actaaty
Subsidianes
Direct holdings of the Company
British Sky Broadcasting Lmited  England and Wales 10 002 002 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Operation of pay television broadcasting and
home communications servces inthe UK and
Ireland
BSkyB Finance UK plc England and Wales 50 000 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Finance company
BSkyB Telecommunications Limited England and Wales 1000 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Management of the network assets in the UK
Subsidiaries
Indirect holdings of the Company
Sky Subscribers Services Limited  England and Wales 3 ordinary shares of £1.each (100%) Provision of ancillary functions supporting the pay
television broadcasting, residential broadband and
telephone operations of the Group
Sky Holdings Limited England and Wales 600 ordinary shares of E1 each (100%) Holding company
Sky In-Home Service Limited England and Wales 1576 Q00 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Supply installabion and mamtenance of satellite
television recenang equipment.
BSkyB LLU Assets Limited England and Wales 121 309 090 ordinary shares of £0 04 each (100%) Parent of companies managing the network
\ assets inthe UK
Sky Network Services Limited England and Wales 2 ordinary shares of £1 each (100%) Management of the network assets m the LK
BSkyB Telecommunications Engtand and Wales 5821764 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Management of the network assets in the UK
Services Limited
Sky Ventures Limited England and Wales 912 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Holding company
The Cloud Networks Limited England and Wales 30 583988 shares of £0 00025 per share (100%) Provision of telecommunications
Hestview Limited England and Wales 108 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Provision of sports betting actrmbes
Bonne Terre Limited Guermnsey 2504 ordinary shares of £1each (100%) Provision of gaming actmties
Jowt ventures and assoclates
Nickelodeon UK Limited® England and Wales 104 B Shares of £0 01 each (40%) Transmission of children s television channels
AETN UK England and Wales 50000 A Shares of £1aach{50%) Transmission of history biography crime and
investigation televiston programming
Paramount UK Partnershipt} England and Wales Partnership interest (25%) Transmission of general entertainment comedy
channels
Australian News Channel Pty Australia 1ordinary share of AUD$1(33 33%) Transmission of news and business channels
umited
NGC Network International LLC United States of Partnership interest (21%) Transmission of natural history and adventure
America channels
NGC Network Latin Amanca LLC United States of Partnership interest (21%) Transmission of natural history and adventure
Amenca channels
MUTV Limited England and Wales 800 8 Shares of £1each (33 33%) Transmission production and marketing of the
Manchester United football channel
Attheraces Holdings England and Wales 1500 ordinary shares of £1each (45 85%) Transmission of a horse raang channel and
Limited™ 20 Recoupment Shares of £0 01each related online actmties
MGM Channel (UK) Limited England and Wales €0 ordinary shares of £1each (50%) Transmission of classic mowes in MD
Sky News Arabia United Arab 16 666 666 shares of US$1 each (50%) Transmission of Arabi News Inthe MENA
Emirates region (Middle East and North Afnica)
Investments
mve England and Wales 291684 730 ordinary shares of E010 each Transmission of free-to-air channels
(7 499999965%)
Notes

(1} These entities have an accounting reference date of 31 December

(1) The registered address of Paramaunt UK Partnership ts 180 Oxford Street London WID 1DS The Paramaunt UK Partnership s ajoint venture of the Group and s included
within the consohdated accounts i accordance with Note XcXn). Consequently the Paramount UK Partnership has taken advantage of the exemption within the
Partnerships (Accounts) Reguiations 2008 (requiation 7) from filng annual financial statements

(1) This note sets oul an abbreviated st of the subsicdhartes of the Company A full kst had been Filed with Companies House in accordance with section 410 of the Comparues

Act 2006
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CONSOLIDATED AINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued
33 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc Company only finanaal statements

COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 20m
Notes Em Em
Revenue 200 192
Operating expense (20) (28)
Cperating profit 180 164
Dmdend income from subsidiaries @] 874 3445
Investment income g 56 63
Finance costs B (63) (65)
Impairment of iInvestment E - (1829)
Profit before tax C 1047 1778
Taxatton D (45) (38)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 1,002 1,740
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this income statement.
COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2012
2012 20m
£m Em
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 1,002 1740
Other comprehensive Income
Arnounts recogrised directly in equity
Gain {less) on cash flow hedges 12 23
Taxon cash flow hedges [E)] 5]
] (17}
Amounts reclassified and reported in the income statement
(Loss) gain on cash flow hedges 8) 27
Tax on cash flow hedges 2 [¢))]
©) 20
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax} 3 3
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 1,005 1743

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement of comprehensive income

All results relate to continuing operations
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
as at 30 June 2012
202 20m
Notes Em fm
Non-current assets .
Investments in subsidianes E 8272 8056
Other recevables G 3 6
Dervative financial assets J 384 272
8659 8334
Current assets
Other receivables G 1652 14086
Cash and cash equivalents ] 4
1653 1410
Total assets 10 312 9744
Current llabihties
QOther payables | 2774 2256
Non-current hablities
Borrowings H 12n 1154 a
Dervative financial habilities J 220 181 o
Deferred tax habiities F 3 3 B
1434 1338 e
Total habilities 4,208 3,594 B
Share capital 837 876 "
Share premium 1437 1437
Reserves 3830 3837
Total equity attnbutable to equity shareholders 5104 6,150
Total habilities and shareholders’ equity 10,312 5744
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet. .
These financial statements of British Sky Broadcasting Group ple registered number 2247735 have been approved by the Board of §
Directors on 25 July 2012 and were signed on its behalf by 8.
w
g
Jeremy Darroch Andrew Gnffith T
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer §
=
%]

COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2012

- 2012 20M
Notes £m £m

Cash flows from operating actmties
Cash generated from operations M - -
Net cash from operating activities - -
Cash flows from financang activities

W
-
2
a
3
o,
R
%
3
3
Q
3
9
Q
[}
3

Proceeds from the exerase of share opticns 10 32
Loan to subsidianes (3) (28)
Net cash (used in) from financing actnmties (3 4
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 3 4
Cash and cash eqguivalents at the beginning of the year : 4 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this cash flow statement.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

33 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc Company only financial statements continued
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 June 2012

Capital Total
Share Share Special redemption  Capital ESOP  Hedging Retamed Shareholders’
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve eamings equrty
£m Em Em £m Em £m Em £m £m
At 1July 2010 876 1,437 14 95 844 @n - 1,530 4,749
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1740 1740
Recognibion and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - - - - 4 - 4
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - m - m
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - - - - - 3 1,740 1,743
Share-based payment - - - - - (60) - n 1
Dividends - - - - - - (353) (353)
At 30 June 2011 876 1437 14 95 844 (107) 2988 6,150
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1002 1002
Recognition and transfer of cash flow
hedges - - - - - - 4 - ' 4
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - U} - m
Total comprehensive income for the
year - - - - - - 3 1,002 1005
Share-based payment - - - - - ) - {(80) (85)
Share buy-back programme {see note 26)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation (39) - - 39 - - - (546) (546)
- Finanaal hability for close period
purchases - - - - - - - [Lo)] am
Dividends - - - - - - - (410} (410)
At 30 June 2012 837 1437 14 134 B44 (12) 2,944 6,104

For a descnption of the nature and purpose of each equity reserve see note L.

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this statement of changes n equity
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CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A, Accounting policies

British Sky Broadcasting Group ple (the "Company™) 1s a imited
hability company incorporated in England and Wales, and dormiciled
inthe UK,

1) Basis of preparation

The Company financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS, consistent with the accounting policies set
out In note 1 of the Company’s consolidated finanoal statements

) Revenue

Revenue which excludes value added tax represents gross inflow
of economic benefit from the Company s operating activities
Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration
receved or receivable The Company's man source of revenue s
from licensing the Company’s brand name asset to subsidiaries
This revenue 1s recogrised on an accruals basis under the terms
of relevant licensing agreements

1 Investment in subsidianes

Aninvestment in a subsichary 1s recognised at cost less any provision
for mpairment. As permitted by section 133 of the Companies Act
2006, where the relief afforded under section 131 of the Companies
Act 2006 applies, cost 1s the aggregate of the nominal value of

the relevant number of the Company’s shares and the fair value of
any cther consideration given to acquire the share caprtal of the
subsidiary undertakings

B Investment income and finance costs

2012 20m
£m £Em
Investment income
tnvestment Income from subsidianes 56 63
2012 20m
£m Em
Finance costs
- Interest payable and similar charges
Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF™) (8) (6}
Guaranteed Motes (see note H) & 68)
{75) 74)

- Other finance Income (expense)

Remeasurement of borrowings and

borrowings-related derivative financial

Instruments {not qualifying for hedge

accounting) 12 8
Gain (loss) ansing on dervatives ina

designated fair value hedge accounting

relationship 42 )
(Loss) gain ansing on adjustment, for hedged

itemin a designated farr value hedge

accounting relabtlonship (42) 2
12 9
63 (65)

C. Profit before taxation
Employee henefits
The Company had no employees (2011 nil}dunng the year

Key management compensation
Amounts paid to the Directors of the Company are disclosed in
the Report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 54-63

D Taxation
1) Taxation recogrused in the income statement
2012 20m
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current year 46 43
Adjustment In respect of prior years - N
Total current tax charge 46 36
Deferred tax expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary
differences 3 2
Adjustment in respect of prior years “@ -
Total deferred tax {credit) charge (1)
Taxation 45 38
1) Deferred tax recognised directly In equity
2012 20m
£m Em
Deferred tax charge on hedging activities 1 1

1) Reconcihation of effective tax rate

The tax expense for the year s lower (2011 lower) than the
expense that would have been charged using the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK (25 5%) applied to profit before tax
The applicable enacted or substantvely enacted effective rate
of UK corporation tax for the year was 25 5% (2011 275%) The
differences are explained below

202 201
£m £m
Profit before tax 1047 1778
Profit before tax multiphed by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 25 5% (2011 275%) 267 489
Effects of
Non-taxable income (224 (947)
Non-deductible expenditure 6 503
Qver provision in respect of prior years [} (¢
Taxation 45 38
All taxation relates to UK corporation tax.
ANNUAL REPGRT 2012
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CONSOUDATED ANANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

33 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc Company only
financial statements continued
E Investments in subsidianes

G Other receivables

£m
Cost
At 1 July 2010 5727
Additions 5163
Impairment (1829
At 30 June 2011 9061
Additions 703
Disposal (487)
At 30 June 2012 9,277
Provision
AL 1 July 2010 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 1005
Carrying amounts
At1Juty 2010 4722
At 30 June 201 B0OS6
At 30 June 2012 B272

During the year, the Company transferred its investment in
British Interactive Broadcasting Holdings Limited to its subsidiary
British Sky Broadcasting Limited Following this transfer,

8nitish Interactive Broadcasting Holdings Limited was put into
hquidation

During the prior year, the Company purchased the assets

and habilities of BSkyB Investments Limited which included

its investment of £5150 million in British Sky Broadcasting
Limsted As a result of this transaction, the Company now holds
100% of the share capital of British Sky Broadcasting Limited
Following this purchase, BSkyB trvestments Limited was put
inte hquidation The Company recognised an impairment of
£1,805 mill:on for its investment in BSkyB Investments Limited

See note 32 for a hist of significant investments of the Company

F Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax habilities

Financial

nstruments

temporary

differences

£m

At 30 June 2010 -
Charge to income )
Charge to equity m
At 30 June 2011 (3)

Credit to tncome 1
Charge to equity Q)]
At 30 June 2012 {3)

At 30 June 2012, a deferred tax asset of £299 mithon

(2011 £324 million) has not been recognised in respect of potential
caprtal losses related to the Group's holding of KirchPayTV on

the basis that utilisation of these temporary differerces s not
probable At 30 June 2012 the Company has also not recognised a
deferred tax asset of £8 milion (2011 £1 milion) refating to capital
losses and prowisions in respect of footbalt dub irvestments, on
the basis that it I1s not probable that they will be utilised

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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2012 20m

Em £m

Amounts receivable from subsidianes 1652 1406
Current other receivables 1,652 1,406
Non-current prepayment 3 6
Total other recevables 1.655 1,412

On 5 March 2009, the Company made a loan of £634 milion to
British Sky Broadeasting Limuted which s repayable on demand
and bears interest at a rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 0 75% In
October 2009, the Company assigned £604 milion of this loan to
settle payables with BSkyB Finance Limited

On13 January 2009 the Company made a loan of £252 mullion
to British Sky Broadcasting Limited This loan bears interest at a
rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 100% and I1s repayable on demand

On13 January 2009, the Company made a loan of £91 million to
Sky In-Home Service Limited This loan 1s repayable on demand
and bears interest at a rate of 6 month LIBOR plus 100%

On 24 November 2008, the Company 1ssued US$600 milion
Guranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 9 5% and loaned the
proceeds to BSkyB Finance Limited BSkyB Finance Limsted pays
the same annual effective iInterest rate to the Company

©On 29 June 2008, the Company entered mto lcan agreements
with British Sky Broadcasting Limited for £143 milhon and £109
million both bearing interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus
075% These loans are repayable ondemand

0On 29 June 2008, Sky Ventures Limited transferred its £11 million
loan recevable from BSkyB Finance Limited to the Company This
loan bears interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 075% and s
repayable on demand

On 29 June 2008 the Company entered into a RCFwith BSkyB
Finance Limited worth £40 milhen Amounts loaned under this
facility bear interest at a rate of 1 month LIBOR plus 0 75% and 1s
repayable on demand

On 15 February 2008 the Company issued US$750 million
Guaranteed Notes with a coupon rate of 6100% and loaned
the proceeds to British Sky Broadcasting Limited British Sky
Broadcasting Limited pays the same annual effective interest
rate to the Company

All other amounts recevable from subsidianes are non-interest
beanng and are also repayable on demand

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other
receivables approximates their fair values




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s credit nisk 1s primanly attnbutable to its other recewvables The majority of its other recevables balance ts due from Briish
Sky Broadcasting Limited The nsk of this entrty defaulting on amounts owed 1s considered low due to its successful operation of pay
television broadcasting and home communications services in the UK and Irefand

H Borrowings

2012 20M
£m Em

Non-current borrowings
US$750 million of 6 100% Guaranteed Notes repayable (n February 2018 495 476
Us$582 8 million of 9 500% Guaranteed Notes repayable in November 2008 420 383
£300 million of 6 000% Guaranteed Notes repayable in May 2027 296 285
1,211 1,154

See note 22 for details of the Company’s Guaranteed Notes and RCF and note 24 for details of Capital Risk Management.

| Other payables

2012 20M
£m Em

Other payables
Amounts owed Lo subsidiary undertakings 2746 2238
Amounts owed to other related parties 4 -
Other 6 -
Accruals 18 18
2,774 2,256

Amounts payable to subsidiaries are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand The balance compnises £1,271 million of
non-interest bearning loans (201 £725 million) and £1,475 million of other payables (2011 £1,513 milion) The Directors consider that
the carrying amount of other payables approximates their fair values

J Derwatives and other financial instruments

Fair values

Set out below)s a companson of the carrying values and the estimated fair values of the Company’s financial assets and financial
habilitres at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 20M

202 2012 20m 20Mm

Carrying Far Carrying Fair

value value value value

£m £m Em Em

Financial assets and labilitses held orissued to finance the Company’s operations

Quoted bond debt Q21 L4 (1154) a7

Denvative finanoial nstruments 164 164 91 a1
Other payables and recewvables (1122) (122) (B50) {850)

The fair values of financial assets and financial habilities are determined as detailled in note 23 and all items held at fair value are
classified as Level 21n the fair value hierarchy
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

33 Bntish Sky Broadcasting Group plc Company only financial statements continued
Set out below are the dervative financial Instruments entered into by the Company to manage its interest rate and foreign exchange nsk.

2012 20m
Asset Liatility Assat Liabality
‘ Fair value Notional  Farr Value Notiona! Fair Value Notwnal  Fair Value Notional
Em £m Em £m £m £m £m Em

Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 87 494 - - 46 481 - -
Cash flow hedges
Cross-currency swaps B8O 290 - - 65 290 - -
Demvatives not in a formal hedge relaticnshap
Interest rate swaps 54 479 (54} 459 a9 33 %) 33
Cross-currency swaps 163 724 (166} 1017 12 724 (132) 1007 !
Total 384 1987 (220) 1,476 272 1,826 (181) 1,348 '

Note 23 provides further details of the Group’s dervative and other financial Instruments

The matunty of the dervative financial instruments 1s shown below

2012 20m
Asset Liability Asset Liabibity
Em £m £m Em
Between two and five years 99 [12)] 86 {86)
In more than five vears 285 {121y 185 (95) *
TJotal 384 (220) 272 (181

K Financial risk management

Interest rate and foreign exchange nsk management

The Company manages its exposure to interest rates and foreign exchange movements which anse from the Company’s sources
of finance by selectively entenng into dernvative financial iInstruments to manage its exposure The Company has also entered into
derwvative contracts on behalf of its subsidiary BSkyB Finance UK plc, and has back-to-back imtercompany contracts

Foreign exchange nsk

The followang analysis details the Company s sensitivity to movements in pounds steriing against all currencies in which it has
significant transactions The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated financial instruments and
adjusts their translation at the penod end for a 25% change in foreign currency rates representing the maximum currency exposure
reported to management on a regular basis

A 25% strengthening in pounds sterling against the US dollar would have an adverse impact on profit of £26 million (2011 adverse |
impact of £27 million), relating to non-cash movements in the valuation of derivatives The same strengthening would have an adverse |
impact on other equity of £21 million (2011 adverse impact of £15 million) ‘

A 25% weakening In pounds sterling against the US dollar would have a beneficial impact on profit of £43 million (201 beneficial
impact of £45 million) relating to non-cash movements mn the valuation of derivatives The same weakening would have a beneficial
impact on other equity of £34 million 201 beneficial mpact of £25 millior)

Interest rate nsk

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-dervative
financial instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilities, the analysis I1s prepared assuming the amount of habiity \
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year

For each one hundred basis point nise or fall in interest rates at 30 June 2012, and if all other variables were held constant, the
Company s profit for the year ended 30 June 2012 would decrease or increase by £3 million (201 decrease or increase by £3 mulion)
and other equity reserves would decrease or increase by £4 million (2011 decrease or increase by £5 milion).

A one hundred basis point nise or fall in interest rates represents a large but realistic movement which can easily be multiplied to give
sensitivities at different interest rates

The sensitnity analyses provided are hypothetical only and should be used with caution as the iImpacts provided are not necessanly
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

indicative of the actual impacts that would be expenenced because the effect of a change in a particular market vanable on farr values
or cash flows Is calculated without considering interrelationships between the vanous market rates or mitigating actions that would be
taken by the Company In addition the Company’s actual exposure to market rates changes as the Compary’s portfolio of debt changes

The changes in valuations are estimates of the impact of changes in market vanables and are not a prediction of future events or
antipated gams or losses

Liquidity nsk
See note 24 for the Company’s policy on lquidity management.,

.

The following table analyses the Company’s non-denvative financial habilities, net settled interest rate swaps and gross settled
currency swaps and collars mto relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date tothe
contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

These amounts may not reconcile to the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet for borrowings denvatve financial instruments and
other payables

Between Between
Lessthan one and twoand  Morethan
12months twoyears fveyears  fiveyears

£m Em £m £fm
At 30 June 2012
Non-denvative financial labilittes
Bonds - USD 65 65 195 938
Bonds - GBP 18 18 54 480
Other payables 2774 - - -
Net settled derivatives
Financial assets 8) (18) (56) (25)
Gross settled dernvates
Quitflow 50 50 149 840
Inflow a7 [C2)) {140} (O13)
Between Between
Less than one and twoand Morethan
12months twoyears fveyears  Fiveyears
Em Em £m £m
AL 30 June 20T
MNon-dervative financial habilizies
Bonds - USD 63 63 189 976
Bonds - GBP 18 8 54 498
Other payables 2,256 - - .-
Net settled denivatives
Financial assets {18} (18) (56) (44)
Gross settled dervatives
Qutflow 49 49 146 887
Inflow (45) 45) (134) 931

At 30 June 2012, the Company had an undrawn £743 milhon RCF with a matunity date of 31 October 2016 See note 22 for further
information

L. Notes to the Company statement of changes in equity
For details of share capital, share premium the special reserve, the capital redemption reserve and the hedging reserve see notes 25
and 26

For details of the Company's £750 million share buy-back programme see note 26
For detalls of dwidends see note

Capital reserve
This reserve arose from the surplus on the transfer of trade and assets to a subsidiary undertaking.
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

33 Bnush Sky Broadcasting Group plc Company only financial statements continued
M. Reconailiation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations

2012 20m

) £m £m

Profit before taxation 1,047 1778
Divndend mncome (874) (3 445) |

Impairment of mvestment - - 1829
Net finance costs 7 2 ‘
{Increase) decrease in other recevables (79) 2039 I
Decrease in other payables m (2 203) |
= = |

Cash generated from operations

N Contingent habilities and guarantees

The Company and certain of its subsichanies have undertaken, in the normal course of business, to provide support to several of the
Group's Investments in both imited and unlmited companies and partnerships, to meet their abilittes as they fall due Several of
these undertakings contain maximum financial imits These undertakings have been given for at least one year from the date of the
signing of the UK statutory accounts of the related entity A payment under these undertakings would be required in the event of an
investment being unable to pay its habilities

The Company has provided parent company guarantees in respect of the various contracts entered intewith the PL by British Sky
Broadcasting Limited covering the 2010/1 to 201213 football seasons In each case the guarantee covers all payment obligations now
of in the future due owing or incurred by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts and all habilities now or in the future
arising or mcurred under the indemnity given to the PL by British Sky Broadcasting Limited under the contracts

The Company has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the contract entered into with British Sky Broadcasting Limited
and Stanhope Plc In refation to the construction of a new building at the Qsterley Campus The guarantee covers all performance
obligations and payment obligations imposed on British Sky Broadcasting Limited under that contract

The Company has guarantees in place relating to the Group’s borrowings see note 22

Q Transactions with related parties and major shareholders

2012 20m
£m £m |
Supply of serwices to subsidiaries 200 192 .
Interest recewved from funding to subsidianes 56 &3
Amounts owed by subsidianes 1,652 1,406
Amounts owed to subsidianes (2,746) (2238)
Amounts owed tc other related parties (4) -

The Company has related party transactions with its subsidianies by virtue of its status as parent company of the Group In particular
it Is normal treasury practice for the Company te lend and borrow cash to and from its subsidianes as required Under this pohcy,
Bntish Sky Broadcasting Limited settled habilities of E67 million (201t £66 million) on behalf of the Company during the year Interestis
earned on certain loans to subsidiaries

The Company recogrised £200 million 201 £192 million) for icensing the Sky brand name to subsidiaries
The Company recognised dividends during the year from subsidianes totalling £874 milion (2011 £3 445 million)

©n 13 July 201 News Corporation announced that it no longer intended to make an offer for the entire 1ssued and to be issued share
capital of the Company not already owned by News Corporation For further details see note 30

Share buy-back programme
During the year the Company purchased, and subsequently cancelled 30679157 ardinary shares held by News Corporation as part of
its share buy-back programme For further details, see note 26

The Group's related party transactions are disclosed in note 30

P Events after the reportung penod
On 25 July 2012, the Board agreed to seek the necessary approvals to return a further £500 million of capital to shareholders viaa
share buy-back programme For further details see note 31 to the consolidated finanaial statements
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Group financial record - unaudted

CONSOQLIDATED RESULTS
Below is selected financial information for the Group under IFRS as at and for each of the five years ended 30 June 2012
Year Year Year ‘Year Year h
ended ended ended ended ended ‘}
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June s
2012 201 2010 2009 2008 ’
Consolidated income Statement £m £m £m Em Em o
Continuing operations ~
Retaill subsenption 5593 5471 4778 4187 3768 Py
Wholesale subscription 351 323 238 206 181 =
Advertising, 440 458 340 329 351
Installation hardware and service S8 nz 174 235 276
Other 309 233 179 200 158
Revenue®™ 6,791 6,597 5709 5157 4,774
Operating expenset (5548) (5524) {4865) (4 315) (4022)
Litigation settlement income - - 269 - -
Operating profit 1,243 1,073 1113 842 752
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 39 34 32 19 15 )
Investment income on ltigation settlement - - 49 - - Q
Investment income 18 9 3 35 47 Y
Finance costs a1 D) (122 (220} (177) 2
Profit on disposal of joint venture - - - - 67 2
Impairment of avalable-for-sale investment - - - (9% {616) ~
Profit on disposal of avallable-for-sale Investment - 9 115 - -
Profit before tax 1,189 1,014 1,150 4385 88
Taxation (283) (256) (294) (194) (184}
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations 906 758 896 29 (96)
Discontinued cperations
Frofit ¢{loss) for the year from discontinued operations - 52 (18) (32) {31y
Profit (loss) for the year 8906 810 878 259 {127) n
Net profit (loss) recognised directly in equity 64 8 61 134 187 g
Total comprehensive Income for the year 970 B8o? 939 393 60 z
Earnings (loss) per share from profit (loss) for the year (in pence) g
Basic 526p 46 5p 504p 149p 73)p v
Diluted 522p 459p 501p 148p 7Hp =
Dvidends per share (in pence)} 25 4p 233p 194p 176p 168p %
)
=
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 201 2010 2009 2008
Consolidated Balance Sheet Em £m £m Em Em
Non-current assets 3234 3025 2818 2632 2384 L_Q
Current assets 2275 2325 1,986 1937 1,698 @
Total assets 5,509 5354 4804 4569 4082 %
Current liabihties (20908) 1912) (1707} (2194) (1893) Q
Non-current habilities (2,467) (2407) (2537} (2439) (2357} %
Net assets (labilities) 944 1035 550 (64) (168) 5
Number of shares in issue (in millons) 1674 1,753 1,753 1753 1753 g
' 3
=2
Q
3
o
a
£
g
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CONSQUDATED INANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group financial record -uaudted

continued
Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 201t 2010 2009 2008
Statistics (in thousands)
Distribution of Sky Channels
TV homes 10288 | 10187 9860 9442 8980
Wholesale homes¥™ 4340 4382 4312 421 1248
Total Sky pay homes 14,628 14,569 18,172 13,713 10 228
Sky Broadband homes 400 3335 2624 2203 1628
Sky Talk homes 3768 3101 2367 1850 1241
Average number of full-time equivalent employees 17937 16006 16435 14922 14145
Notes N

{1) Toprowide @ more refevant presentation management has reclassified Sky Player and Sky Mabile revenue from other revenue to retail subscuption reveniue
Included withm retadf subscnption revenue for the year ended 30 June 200915 £36 mithon of additicnal revenue representing amounts invowced in pricr years whick did
nat meet revenue recogrition caterta under IFRS untd March 2009

() Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 2012 15 a credit of £31 milhon in relation to the News Corporation proposal consisting of costs incurred
offset by the recaipt of the break fee (see note 30} Also included are restructuning costs of £11 milhon which camprise severance payments 1 relation to approximately 35
semar roles as part of d restructuring initiative to improve operating efficiency
Included within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 2011is £26 milhon of restructuning costs arising on the acquisition of Living TV which compnse principally
redundancy payments and the early termnation of a pre-acquisition contract £15 muthon of costs in relation to the News Corporation proposal and a credit of £41 miflion
1n refation to the refund of import duty on set-top boxes paid out w1 pnor years This duty was recovered due to the judgment grven by the ECJ on 14 April 2011
Incuded within operating expense for the year ended 30 fune 2010 1s £32 mithon of expense refating te & restructuring exerase of which £22 mithor refated to the impairment of
assets asseciated with Prenic (the potential kaunch of a subscription television senvice on DTT) and £10 mithon rekated to reorgarusation costs and redundancy payments Also
incluced within operating expense for the year ended 30 June 201G 15 £1mifion{2009 £3milion 2008 £21miliron) of expense relating to fegal costs incurred on the Groups
clarm agamst EDS which prowided services to the Group as part of the Group s ivestment in customer management systems software and infrastructure and a £5 miliion credit
(2009 nif) related ta the cancellation of accounts payable on settiement of the clum against EDS
Included within operating expense for the yearended 30 June 2008 is £7 mullion of expense felating to a restructuring exercise undertaken following a review of
operating costs

() The number of whoiesale homes inciudes distribution ofour Freeview channels by wholesale operaters as part of @ “Free TV~ pack bundled with other products

(V) The number of wholesale homes is as reported to us by the wholesale operators Between February 2007 and November 2008 the reported number of wholesale homes
reflects the impact of Virgin Med:a ("vM*) ceasing to cary Sky s Basic Channels on its platform A new agreement was reached in November 2008 and VM resumed
carnage of the Sky Basic Channels

Factors which matenally affect the comparability of the selected financial data

Discontinued operations

During fiscal 2011, the Group sold its business-to-business telecommunications operation, Easynet, to LDC For further details
see note 9 to the consolidated financial statements

EDS Litsgation settlement
Duning fiscal 2010, EDS and the Group fully and finally settled the litigation between them and all related claims (including for damages,
costs and interest) for a total amount of £318 million

Available-for-sale investment
During fiscal 2011 we disposed of our equity investment in Shine and recognised a profit of £9 midhon For further details see note 5to
the consolidated financial statements

Dunng fiscal 2010 we disposed of part of our equity iInvestment 1n ITV and recognised a profit on disposal of £115 millon For further
details see note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

During fiscal 2009 we recorded an impairment loss of £191 mitlion (fiscal 2008 £616 million) in the carrying value of our equity
investment in TV

Business combinations
During fiscal 201, we completed the acquisitions of Living TV and The Cloud The results of these acquisitions were consolidated from
the date on which control passed to the Group (12 July 2010 and 23 February 2011 respectively)

During fiscal 2008, we completed the acquisition of Amstrad The results of this acquisition were consolidated from the date on which
control passed to the Group (5 September 2007)
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Disposal of joint venture

On 12 December 2007, the Group sold its 100% stake in BSkyB Nature Limited, the investment holding company for the Group's

50% interest in the NGC-UK Partnership As consideration for the disposal, the Group receved 21% interests in both NGC Network
International LLC and NGC Network Latin Amenica LLC (in effect, 21% of National Geographic Channel’s television operations outside
the US), The Group recognised a profit on disposal of £67 million.

Exchange rates

A significant portion of our habilities and expenses associated with the cost of programring acquired from US film licensors together
with set-top box costs are denomimated in US dollars For a discussion of the impact of exchange rate movements on our financial
condition and results of operations see note 24 to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOUDATED ANANGAL STATEMENTS

Non-GAAP measures

All continuing operations

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT AND ADJUSTED EBITDA
for the year ended 30 June 2012

202 201 2010
Notes Em Em £m
Operating profit 1,243 1,073 113
(Net recovery of ) costs in relation to News Corporation proposal 3 (3h 15 -
Costs relating to restructunng exercise 3 n - 32
Lmang TV restructunng tosts 3 - 26 -
Recavery of import duty on set-top boxes 3 - (41) -
Liugation settlement income relating to daim against EDS - - (269)
Legal costs relating to claim against EDS - - 1
Cancellation of accounts payable on settlement of daim against EDS - - {5)
Adjusted EBITDA 1567 1405 1185
Depreciation and amortisation (344) (332) {338
Costs relating to restructunng exercrse included within depreciation and amortisation - - 25
Adjusted operating profit 1,223 1,073 872

(1) Included within depreciation and amortisation for the year ended 30 June 2010 is E25 miflton of expense relating to a restructuning exercise of which £22 mihon refated
to the impairment of assets assocrated with Picnic (the potential launch of a subscrption television service on DTT) and £3 million refated to restructunng costs

RECONCILIATION OF CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS TO ADJUSTED FREE CASH FLOW
for the year ended 30 June 2012

202 20Mm 2010
Notes Em £m £m
Cash generated from operations 27 1737 1569 1,626
Interest receved ) 7 7 57
Taxation paid (254) (219) (319
Diwdends recewved from joint ventures and asscociates 39 29 30
Net funding to joint ventures and associates &) ()] (U]
Purchase of property plant and equipment (228) (197) (246)
Purchase of intangible assets (225) (226) (183)
Interest paid {125) {124} (156}
Free cash flow \ 951 835 808
Recovery of import duty on set-top boxes (after corporation tax) 25) - -
(Net recovery of) costs in refation to News Corporation proposal (after corporation tax) 3) 2 -
Receipt on disposal/closure of joint venture [{)] - 3
Cash paid relating to restructunng exercise 3 4] -
Living TV restructunng costs - 26 -
Liigation settlement income relating to claim against EDS (after corporation tax) - - (229)
Legal costs relating to daim against EDS - - 1
Adjusted free cash flow 910 HES 577
AVERAGE REVENUE PER USER {(ARPL)
for the year ended 30 June 2012
2m2 20m 2010
£ £ E
ARPU as previously reported nfa 539 508
Impact of Standalone Home Communications®™ - ® -
Benefit of zero-VAT magazine related income 9 - [€)] 3]
Elrmination of timing difference related to magazine dosure™ - 7 -
ARPU 548 538 S04

(1) We have restated ARPU to include standelone home communications customers

{1y We previously recognised the benefit arising from the zero rated VAT treatment on a small portion of customer revenue attnbutable to the Sky magazne Following
closure of the magazine we have restated the comparatives to present on a bke-for-ltike basis

() Following our decision to close the Sky customer magazine, a one off timing upside was reversed which related Lo revenue recognitton of the magazine element of
subscnption revenue. This equated to a £7 reduction to ARPU n 201
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting will be held on Thursday
1 November 2012 at 11 00am at The Queen Ehzabeth |l Conference
Centre, Broad Sanctuary Westminster, London SWiP 3EE.

Financial calendar
Results for the financial year ending 30 June 2013 will be
published

1 November 2012
31 January 2013
2 May 2013*

31 July 2013+

*  prowisionaldates

The Sky website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit the Sky website www sky
comwhich has awealth of information about the Company
There 1s a section designed specifically for nvestors at wwwsky
com/corporate where investor and media information can be
accessed This year's Annual Report and Annual Review and prior
year documents can be viewed

Share pnce information
The Company s share price can be found on the Company's
corporate website at www skycom/corporate

Shareholder enquines

The Company’s shareholder register 1s maintaned by its Registrar
Equinity Information on how to manage your shareholdings can
be found at https /help shareview co uk The pages at this web
address provide the following

«  Answers to commonly asked questions regarding shareholder
registration

»  Links to downloadable forms, guidance notes and Company
history fact sheets,

+ Achoice of contact methods - via email, phone orwntuing,

Alternatively, shareholders can contact Equiniti in relation to all
administrative enquines relating to their shares such as a change
of personal detarls the loss of a share certificate or an out-of
date dividend cheque.

Shareholders can contact Equinity at

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2091

Telephone number from outstde the UK +44121 215 7567

*  Calis to the above number are charged at 8p per minute from a BT andine.

Other telephony providers costs mayvary Lines are open from 8 30am to
5 30pm Monday ta Frday

Electronic shareholder communication

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and
the Company’s articles of association the Company i1s permitted
to use its corporate website as the main way to communicate
with shareholders serding out Annual Reports only to those

who have opted to receive a paper copy This reduces our impact
on the environment, minimises waste and reduces costs It also
enables shareholders to keep updated with developments at Sky
as they happen by accessing our website

Shareholders who have opted to receve shareholder
communications in paper form are encouraged to recewe these
electronically in future by registening at www shareview couk
Shareholders can also change therr instructions at any time by
contacting Equinits Limited

Dividends

Sharehclders can have ther dividends paid directly into a UK
bank or bullding society account with the tax voucher sent direct
to therr registered address Please contact Equiniti for a dmdend
mandate form

The Company also operates a consclidated tax voucher service
for those shareholders who have chosen to receve dvidends
directly into their bank account A single consolidated tax voucher
will be mailed by thi end of Novermnber each year to concade with
the final dvidend payment Full details are available at

www sky com/corporate

Overseas dividend payments

A service has been established to provide shareholders in

over 30 countnes worldwide with the opportunity to receive
their dividends in thesr local currency For a small flat-rate fee,
shareholders can have therr dvidends automatically corwverted
from Sterling and paid into their nominated bank account,
normally within five working days of the dividend payment date
For further details, please contact Equiniti on +44 121415 7567

Dvidend Reinvestment Plan

The Company operates a Dvidend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP7) which
enables shareholders to buy the Company's shares on the London
stock market with ther cash dvidend Further information about the
DRIP Is avallable from Equinty The helpline number 1s 0871 384 2268
from inside the UK and +44 121 415 7173 from overseas

ShareGift

Shareholders who only have a smalt number of shares whose
value makes it uneconomic to sell them may wish to consider
donating them to charity through ShareGift, the independent
chanty share donation scheme (registered charity no 1052686)
Further information about ShareGift may be obtained from
Equiniti or from ShareGift on 020 7930 3737 or at www sharegift
org There are no implications for capital gains tax purposes (no
gain or 1oss) on gifts of shares to ¢harity and it 15 also possible to
claim income tax relef
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder information

continued

Shareholder fraud Solicitors

Fraud s on the increase and many shareholders are targeted Herbert Smith LLP
every year If you have any reason to believe that you may have Exchange House

been the target of a fraud, or attempted fraud in refation toyour ~ Pnimrose Street
shareholding, please contact Equinityimmediately Toreducethe  London

rnisk of fraud happening to you please see our list of ‘preventing ECZAZHS
shareholder fraud tips’ in the shareholder imformation section of

our website at www skycom/corporate

American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs™)

The Company's ADR programme trades on the'over-the-counter
('OTC") market in the US The Company s ADRs are quoted on

the OTC market s highest tier, International PremierQX More
information can be obtained from, http MAwww otcgx.com ADRs
are quoted In US dollars and trade Just like any other US secunty
The Company has a sponsored Level 1 ADR programme for
which The Bank of New York Melton acts as Depositary One ADR
represents four ordinary shares

All enquines relating to the Company’s ADRs should be addressed
to

BNY Mellon

PO Box 358516

Pittsburgh, PA15252-8516

USA

US residents (888) 269 2377

if resident outside the US +1 2016806825
email shrrelatlons@bnymellon com

Company’s registered office
Grant Way

Isleworth

Middlesex

TW75QD

Telephone 0333100 0333
Overseas +44 333100 0333

Company registration number
2247735

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Delotte LLP

2 New Street Square

London

EC4A 3BZ

Principal bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
St Andrew's Square
Edinburgh

EH2 2YB
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Glossary of terms

Useful Definitions
ADS

Bonus channel

BSkyB or the
Company

Churn

DSL
DTH

DTT

EBITDA

EPG
ESOP
ESPN

Fiscal year or fiscal
Freeview

GAAP

The Group

HD

HMRC

IFRS

P

IPTV

LLY

Minidish
MMDS
MPF

Multiroom
NOWTV

NVN

Ofcom

PL

Premium Channels

Description

Amencan Depositary Share (each ADS currently represents four ordinary shares of BSkyB)

A channel provided to a TV customer in addition to one or more subscnption channels, but at no incremental
cost tothe TV customer

British Sky Broadcasting Group plc

The number of total customers over a given period that terminate therr subscription in its entirety net of
former customers who reinstated their subscription in that period (where such reinstatement 1s within a
12-month peried of the termination of their original subscription), expressed as an annuahsed percentage of
total average customers for the period

Digital Subscriber Line
Direct-to-Home the transmission of satellite services and functionality with reception through a minidish

“DTH customer” means a subscriber to one or more of our retalled packages of television channels made
avallable via DTH

Digital Terrestnal Television digital signals delivered to homes through a conventional aenial, converted through
a set-top box or integrated digital television set

Earmings before joint ventures, interest, profit on disposal of available-for-sale investment, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation 1s calculated as operating profit before depreciation amortisation and
impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Electromic Programme Guide
Employee Share Ownership Plan

Entertainment and Sports Programming Network broadcasting the ESPN ESPN Classic, ESPN America and ESPN
HD Channels

Refers to the twelve months ended on the Sunday nearest to 30 June of the given year

The free DTT offering available in the UK

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

BSkyB and its subsidiary undertakings

High Definition television

Her Majesty s Revenue and Customs

International Financial Reporting Standards

Internet Protocol a mechanism by which data packets may be routed between computers on a network
Internet Protocol Television

Local Loop Unbundling a process by which BT's exchange lines are physically disconnected from BT s network
and connected to other operators’ networks This enables operators other than BT to use the BT local loop to
provide services to customers

Satellite dish required to receive digital satellite television
Multipoint Microwave Distribution Service

Metallic Path Faciities which occur where a single communications provider uses the local loop to provide both
broadband and voice services over its network *

Installation of an additional set-top boxin the household of an existing DTH customer

Aninternet streaming service avallable to anyone in the UK wath an internet connection regardless of
ISP At launch on17 July 2012 the service was avaitable on devices including PC Mac and selected Android
smartphones with other devices and platforms to follow

New Voice Network

UK Office of Communications

Premier League

The Sky Premium Channels and the Premium Sky Distributed Channels
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Glossary of terms

continued

Premtum Sky
Distnibuted
Channels

PVR

RCF
Set-top box

Sky

Sky*
Sky*HD
Sky Active

Sky Basic Channels

Sky Bet
Sky Broadband

Sky Box Office

Sky Channels

Sky Distnbuted
Channels

Sky Go
Sky Mobile
Sky Player

Sky Premium
Channels

Sky Store
Sky Talk

SMATV
SMPF

Standalone home
communications

Transponder
TV Customer
Viewing share
VM

WAN

ESPN (& HD) Disney Cinemagic (& HD), MUTV Chelsea TV and MGM HD

Personal Video Recorder satellite decoder which utilises a built-in hard disk drive to enable viewers to record
without videctapes pause |ive telewision and record one programme while watching another

Revolving Credit Facility

Digital satellite equipment, responsible for receving converting and sending the picture and sound ofa
broadcast to the associated television set

British Sky Broadcasting Group Plc and its subsidiary undertakings

Sky's fully-integrated PVR and satellte decoder

High Definition box with PVR functionality

The brand name for Sky's transactional interactive television services, including customer services, games,
betting and messaging

Sky1 Sky 2, Pick TV, Challenge, Sky News, Sky Sports News, Sky Arts 1and Sky Arts 2, Sky Poker com, Sky Living,
Sky Living It and Sky Atlantic (and their muttiplex versions and their simulcast HD versions)

Sky's betting services, provided through set-top boxes the internet andvia phone

Home broadband service previously provided exclusively for Sky digital customers but now extended to
customers who do not take a television service from Sky

Our pay-per-view service offering movies, sporting events and concerts generally offered at scheduled times on
our 42 dedicated finear channels

Television channels wholly owned by the Group, being the Sky Bastc Channels and Sky Premium Channels
Telewision channels owned and broadcast by third parties, retailed by the Group to TV Customers

Sky's retalled packages of television channels and on demand content made avatable viaa broadband
connection, including the version made available to mobile devices via awireless or 3G connection

Sky's retalled packages of television channels made available to mobile devices via a wireless or 3G connection
and our Sky Mobile TV platform

Sky's retalled packages of television channels and on demand content made available via a broadband
connection and our Sky Player platform

Sky Sports 1, Sky Sperts 2, Sky Sports 3, Sky Sport 4 Sky Sports F1 Sky Movies Premier Sky Movies Showcase,
Sky Movies Comedy Sky Movies Family Sky Mowvies Action & Adventure Sky Movies Modern Greats, Sky Movies
SciF & Harror Sky Movies Drama & Romance, Sky Movies Cnme & Thriller, Sky Mowvies Classics and Sky Movies
Indte (and their multiplex versions and thewr simulcast HD versions) and Sky 3D

Qur pay-per-view, on demand mowvies rental service available via Sky Anytime, Sky Anytime* and Sky Go

Home telephany service provided for Sky digital subscribers and now extended to customers who do not take a
television service from Sky

Satelhite Master Antenna Telewision
Shared Metalhic Path Facility
Sky's retailed packages of broadband talk and line rental when taken without a television subscription package

Communication devices on satellites which send programming signals to minidishes

A paying subscriber to one or more of our DTH or Sky Go services

Number of people viewing a channel as a percentage of total viewing audience

Virgin Media

Wide Area Network Companies link networks at different sites over the internet to form a secure WAN

References to "US dollars”, “dollars” “US$”, “$” and “¢4” are to the currency of the United States ("US™) references to "Euro” and "€” are to
the currency of the participating European Union (“EU™) countries and references to “pounds sterling” "£", "pence” and "p” are to the

currency of the UK
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